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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

2014 represented our ¥Zonsecutive record year of increased gross sdbeess sales rose to
$2.83 billion in 2014, from $2.59 billion in 2013 his achievement was primarily attributable to
increased sales of our Monster Energy® drinks, bothe United States and internationally.

2014 was also a milestone year for the CompanyrinQuhe year, the Company entered into
significant agreements with The Coca-Cola Compd@p¢a-Cola"), providing for a long term
strategic partnership with Coca-Cola. Pursuanttih igreements, we (1) issued shares to Coca-
Cola representing 16.67% of our total outstandimgres; (2) acquired Coca-Cola’s worldwide
energy drink business; (3) sold our non-energykdbaosiness to Coca-Cola; and @greed

to expand the distribution of our energy drink Iesis in the United States with Coca-Cola
bottlers and to treat the international Coca-Callérs as our preferred distribution partners.

In turn, Coca-Cola paid us a net cash amount ofcqpately $2.15 billion. We anticipate that
a substantial portion of this cash amount will s®dito return capital to stockholders. The
timing, terms and amount of any such capital retuthbe determined by our board of directors.

The Coca-Cola transaction agreements were sulgeatriumber of conditions and approvals,
which were secured over the past 10 months andrémsactions closed on Friday, June 12,
2015. Under the terms of the Coca-Cola transaadgreements, we agreed, subject to certain
exceptions, not to compete with Coca-Cola in tha-ewoergy drink category and Coca-Cola
agreed, subject to certain exceptions, not to ceenwéh us in the energy drink category. Our
non-energy drink business comprised all of our ldais®, Hubert's® and Blue Sky® brand
drinks, which made up our Warehouse Division, al asour Peace Tea® brand drinks, which
formed part of our DSD Division.

The interim period between signing the Coca-Caadaction agreements and the closing of the
transactions was understandably a transitionabddar the Company, and we are now focused
on implementing the changes contemplated by th&ngoof the Coca-Cola transactions. We are
optimistic that we will achieve increased sales aratket share for our Monster Energy line in
2015 and beyond and that sales of our newly aadj@eeca-Cola energy brands will continue to
grow and contribute positively to our sales andiltesin the second half of 2015. We have
already transitioned the distribution of substdiytiall of our U.S. business to Coca-Cola
bottlers and we anticipate that we will transittbe vast majority of our international business to
Coca-Cola bottlers in due course. We are extrepetjtive about these developments which we
believe position the Company to continue to grovthim United States, as well as internationally.

With respect to the 2014 financial year, we repgbdt our Monster Energy® Ultra™ line

continued to make good progress. Gross salesolirtle increased to more than $379.1 million
in 2014. Due to the success of the Monster Energitga™ line, we launched Ultra Sunrise®
in October 2014 and Ultra Citron™ in January 2015.

During 2014, we continued to expand the distributod our Monster Energy® drinks into new
international markets. In 2014, gross sales oetsifithe United States increased to $657.9
million up from $580.6 million in the prior yeatOur Monster Energy® drinks are now sold in



approximately 116 countries and territories. We@ntinuing with our plans to expand the sale
of Monster Energy® drinks into additional countriaed are also continuing to focus on
introducing lower calorie drinks to meet increadedhand from consumers for such products.

Regrettably, criticism of energy drinks continueslte politically and emotionally charged,
which, in our view, is neither supported by theeace or the facts. We believe that Monster
Energy® drinks are and have always been safe.

Once again, | would like to express my gratitudetii@ support afforded to the Company by Mr.
Hilton Schlosberg, our President, Chief Operatirfilcér and Chief Financial Officer, and Mr.
Mark Hall, Chief Marketing Officer of Monster Engr@€ompany. Additionally, on behalf of the
entire Board, including Mr. Hilton Schlosberg angiself personally, | wish to acknowledge the
entire management team and employees of the foWfemehouse Division, who are in the
process of transitioning to the VEB division of @eC€ola. We wish to thank them for their
dedication and efforts over the years to suppadt gnow the Warehouse Division brands. We
will all miss the Warehouse team and wish themioolt success in the future.

| would also like to express my personal thankww consumers, stockholders, customers,
bottlers and distribution partners, and supplierstheir continued support. To our management
and employees, my sincere thanks and appreciatioallftheir efforts, which are evidenced by
our continued success. To our stockholders, thamkfor the trust you have placed in our
management team. We have an exciting road ahead which we anticipate will enhance the
Company's future performance.

Sincerely,

Rodney C. Sacks
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Monster Beverage Corporation was incorporated ilaWare on April 25, 1990. Our principal place of
business is located at 1 Monster Way, Corona, @ald 92879 and our telephone number is (951) 72886
When this report uses the words “Monster Energy Qamg”, “Monster”, “Hansen”, “Hansen Natural
Corporation”, “Hansen Beverage Company”, “the Camyp, “we”, “us”, and “our”, these words refer to
Monster Beverage Corporation and its subsidiatiedess the context otherwise requires. We are dirl
company and conduct no operating business exceqptgh our consolidated subsidiaries.

Acquisitions and Divestitures

On August 14, 2014, the Company and The Coca-Cdmpany (“TCCC”) entered into definitive
agreements for a long-term strategic relationshithe global energy drink category (the “TCCC Teant®n”).
As part of the TCCC Transaction, the Company, Neagdr Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (“NewCo"), New Laser Merger Corp., a whallyned subsidiary of NewCo (“Merger Sub”), TCCC
and European Refreshments, an indirect wholly oveudssidiary of TCCC, entered into a transactioreagent,
and the Company, TCCC and NewCo entered into &t &ssisfer agreement (together, the “TCCC Trarmact
Agreements”). Pursuant to the TCCC Transaction &gents, the Company will reorganize into a new ingld
company by merging Merger Sub into the Companyh wie Company surviving as a wholly owned subsydiar
of NewCo. In the merger, each outstanding shardefCompany’s common stock will be converted iote
share of NewCo’'s common stock.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the TCCGh3aation Agreements, upon the closing of the TCCC
Transaction, (1) NewCo will issue to TCCC newlyuisd shares of common stock representing approxiynate
16.7% of the total number of shares of issued ansgtanding NewCo common stock (after giving effiecthe
new issuance) and TCCC will have the right to natertwo individuals (reduced to one upon the eaoli€i) 36
months after the closing of the TCCC Transactiot @ TCCC's equity interest in NewCo exceedind/2of
the outstanding shares of NewCo common stock) teQ¢es Board of Directors, (2) TCCC will transfes it
global energy drink business (including the NOS®I| Fhrottle®, Burn®, Mother®, Play® and Power Ry
and Relentless® brands) to NewCo, and the Compahytransfer its non-energy drink business (inchgli
Hansen's® Natural Sodas, Peace Tea®, Hubert's® bauh® and Hansen’s® Juice Products) to TCCC, (3) the
Company and TCCC will amend their current distidutcoordination agreements, which will contemplate
expanding distribution of the Company’s product® indditional territories pursuant to long-termtulmition
agreements with TCCC’s network of owned or contalbottlers/distributors and independent bottlimgl a
distribution partners, and (4) TCCC will make a cash payment of $2.15 billion to the Company @ $625.0
million of which will be held in escrow, subject telease upon achievement of milestones relatinigedransfer
of distribution rights).

The waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino &nst Improvements Act of 1976 (the “HSR Act”)
with respect to the TCCC Transaction expired oro@&t 15, 2014, and all necessary approvals or atsig®m
foreign antitrust authorities have been obtaindae Tlosing of the transaction is subject to custgnedosing
conditions and is expected to close in the secoadter of 2015.

Overview

We develop, market, sell and distribute “alterngtibeverage category beverages primarily under the
following brand names:

e Monster Energy® ¢« Hansen's®
* Monster Rehab® * Hansen’s Natural Cane Soda®
» Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous Technology® e Junior Juice®



« Java Monster® e Blue Sky®

* Muscle Monster® ¢ Hubert's®

e Punch Monster® * Peace Tea®
e Juice Monster™

Our Monster Energy® brand energy drinks, which espnted 93.3%, 92.5% and 92.3% of our net sales
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 284pectively, primarily include the following:

Monster Energy®

Lo-Carb Monster Energy®

Monster Assault®

Juice Monster™ Khaos®

Juice Monster™ Ripper®

Monster Energy® Absolutely Zero

Monster Energy® Import

Punch Monster® Baller's Blend (formerly Dub Edit)on
Punch Monster® Mad Dog (formerly Dub Edition)
Monster Rehab® Tea + Lemonade + Energy
Monster Rehab® Rojo Tea + Energy

Monster Rehab® Green Tea + Energy

Monster Rehab® Tea + Orangeade + Energy
Monster Rehab® Tea + Pink Lemonade + Energy
Muscle Monster® Vanilla

Muscle Monster® Chocolate

Muscle Monster® Coffee

Muscle Monster® Strawberry

Muscle Monster® Peanut Butter Cup

Java Monster® Kona Blend

Java Monster® Loca Moca®

Java Monster® Mean Bean®

Java Monster® Vanilla Light

Java Monster® Irish Blend®

Java Monster® Cappuccino

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous
Technology® Super Dry™

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous
Technology® Anti-Gravity®

Monster Cuba-Lima®

Monster Energy® Zero Ultra

Monster Energy® Ultra Blue™
Monster Energy® Ultra Red™

Monster Energy® Ultra Black™
Monster Energy® Ultra Sunrise™
Monster Energy® Unleaded
Ubermonster® Energy Brew™

M3® Monster Energy® Super Concentrate

* Monster Energy® Valentino Rossi
Industry Overview

The “alternative” beverage category combines nobargated ready-to-drink iced teas, lemonades, juice
cocktails, single-serve juices and fruit beverageady-to-drink dairy and coffee drinks, energynldsi, sports
drinks, and single-serve still water (flavored, lambred and enhanced) with “new age” beveragesudng
sodas that are considered natural, sparkling jusces flavored sparkling beverages. According to eBage
Marketing Corporation, domestic U.S. wholesale sate2014 for the “alternative” beverage categofythe
market are estimated at approximately $38.8 billi@presenting an increase of approximately 5.1%r tlve
estimated domestic U.S. wholesale sales in 2018ppfoximately $36.9 billion (revised from a prewstu
reported estimate of $37.7 billion).

Corporate History

In the 1930s, Hubert Hansen and his sons startmtkimess to sell fresh non-pasteurized juices & Lo

Angeles, California. This business eventually bezatansen’s Juices, Inc., which subsequently bedaroan

as The Fresh Juice Company of California, Inc. C'ffJ FJC retained the right to market and selklfreon-
pasteurized juices under the Hansen’s trademark9mY, Tim Hansen, one of the grandsons of Hubartskn,
perceived a demand for shelf stable pasteurizegralguices and juice blends and formed Hansen §,dod.
(“HFI”). HFI expanded its product line from juicés include Hansen’s Natural Soda® brand sodas.9801
California Co-Packers Corporation (d/b/a HanseneBaye Company) (“CCC”) acquired certain assets feif H
including the right to market the Hansen’'s® braadhe. In 1992, we acquired the Hansen’'s® brand alasoda
and apple juice business from CCC. Under our ovwmgrdhe Hansen beverage business has significantly
expanded and includes a wide range of beveragdiwite growing “alternative” beverage categoryluding,
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in particular, energy drinks. In 1999, we acquiaicbf FIC's rights to manufacture, sell and disite fresh non-
pasteurized juice products under the Hansen's®eimaak together with certain additional rights. B2, we
changed our name from Hansen Natural Corporatidhaster Beverage Corporation.

Reportable Segments

We have two operating and reportable segments, Ipabieect Store Delivery (“DSD”), the principal
products of which comprise energy drinks, and Waweb (“Warehouse”), the principal products of which
comprise juice-based and soda beverages. The D8mDes¢ develops, markets and sells products priynaril
through an exclusive distributor network, wherdas Warehouse segment develops, markets and setlsqts
primarily directly to retailers. Corporate and uoehted amounts that do not relate to the DSD oreWause
segments specifically, have been allocated to “Gare and Unallocated.” Our DSD segment represedieido,
95.6% and 95.4% of our consolidated net sales Her years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Our Warehouse segment representéd, 3191% and 4.6% of our consolidated net saledher
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, ctasghe Following the consummation of the TCCC
Transaction, the Company anticipates that it walén two operating and reporting segments: Condenttiae
principal products of which will likely include thearious energy drink brands transferred to the o from
TCCC, and Finished Products, the principal prodwdtsvhich will likely include the Company’'s Monster
Energy® drink products that currently make up thearmty of the DSD segment.

For financial information about our reporting segiseand geographic areas, refer to Note 17 of Notes
the Consolidated Financial Statements set fortiPart I, Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supgletary
Data” of this report, incorporated herein by refex@ For certain risks with respect to our enaiggks see
“Part |, Item 1A — Risk Factors” below.

2014 Product Introductions

During 2014, we continued to expand our existingdprct lines and flavors and further develop our
distribution markets. In particular, we continuedocus on developing and marketing beveragesfafiatithin
the category generally described as the “alteraatieverage category. During 2014, we introducedrmaber of
new products, including the following:

. Punch Monster® Baller's Blend (formerly Dub Edit)Jadanuary 2014).

. Punch Monster® Mad Dog (formerly Dub Edition) (Janu2014).

. Peace Tea Beverage Company™ Viva Mango™, a maagoréd juice drink (February 2014).

. Monster Energy® Valentino Rossi, a carbonated gnérgk (May 2014).

*  Hubert's® Organic Lemonade, a line of certifiedamg lemonades in a variety of flavors (May 2014).

«  Monster Energy® Ultra Black™, a carbonated enenggkdwhich contains zero calories and zero sugar,
launched as a summer promotion with 7-eleven (J0h4).

*  Monster Energy® Unleaded, a carbonated energy avirigh contains no caffeine (August 2014).

«  Monster Energy® Ultra Sunrise™, a carbonated endrigpk which contains zero calories and zero sugar
(September 2014).

In the normal course of business we discontinugireproducts and/or product lines. Those prodacts
product lines discontinued in 2014, either indiatly or in aggregate, did not have a material aslvémpact on
our financial position, results of operations quidity.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the TCC@an3action Agreements, upon the closing of the
TCCC Transaction, the Company will transfer itssemergy drink business (including Hansen’s® Nat&adlas,
Peace Tea®, Hubert's® Lemonade and Hansen’'s® Fumgucts) to TCCC.



Products — DSD Segment

Monster Energy® Brand Energy Drinks:

Monster Energy® Drinks In 2002, we launched a new carbonated energyk drnder the Monster
Energy® brand name in 16-ounce cans, which wassdlomuble the size of our original Hansen’'s® brandrgy
drinks (in 8.3-ounce cans) and the vast majoritcaipetitive energy drinks on the market at thaieti Our
Monster Energy® drinks contain vitamins, mineralgirients, herbs and other dietary ingredientsléctively,
“dietary ingredients”) and are marketed through @t service distributor network. We primarily eff the
following products under the Monster Energy® dripkoduct line: Monster Energy®, Lo-Carb Monster
Energy®, Monster Assault®, Juice Monster™ Khaos@cel Monster™ Ripper®, Monster Energy® Absolutely
Zero, Monster Energy® Import, Punch Monster® B&ldélend (formerly Dub Edition), Punch Monster® Mad
Dog (formerly Dub Edition), M3® Monster Energy® SarpConcentrate energy drinks, Ubermonster® Energy
Brew™, Monster Energy® Zero Ultra, Monster Energy@ra Blue, Monster Energy® Ultra Red, Monster
Energy® Ultra Black™, Monster Energy® Ultra Sunifiée Monster Energy® Valentino Rossi, Monster
Energy® Unleaded, and Monster Cuba-Lima®.

Java Monste® Coffee + Energy Drinks A line of non-carbonated dairy based coffee ergy drinks.
We offer the following products under the Java Mer® product line: Java Monster® Kona Blend, Java
Monster® Loca Moca®, Java Monster® Mean Bean®, Jelmster® Vanilla Light, Java Monster® Irish
Blend® and Java Monster® Cappuccino.

Muscle Monste® Energy Shakes- A line of non-carbonated energy shakes contgird&-grams of
protein. We offer the following products under thkkiscle Monster® Energy Shake product line: Choeplat
Vanilla, Coffee, Strawberry and Peanut Butter Cup.

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous Techno®dsnergy Drinks- A line of carbonated energy drinks
containing nitrous oxide. We offer the followingopucts under the Monster Energy Extra Strengtholir
Technology® product line: Super Dry™ and Anti Gig@i.

Monster Rehab® Tea + Energy DrinksA line of non-carbonated energy drinks with &lelytes. We
offer the following products under the Monster Rae®alrink line: Monster Rehab® Tea + Lemonade + Bper
Monster Rehab® Rojo Tea + Energy, Monster Rehab&iTea + Energy, Monster Rehab® Tea + Orangeade
+ Energy and Monster Rehab® Tea + Pink Lemonadeerdy.

Other:

Peace Tea® Iced Teas and Juice Drinksline of ready-to-drink iced teas and juicentts. We offer the
following teas and juice drinks under the Peace®Ipeoduct line: Green Tea, Sweet Lemon Tea, Raergb
Tea, Pink Lemonade Tea, Georgia Peach Tea, Sng;B€exas-Style Sweet Tea, Caddy Shack® Tea +
Lemonade as well as Viva Mango™ juice drinks.

Products — Warehouse Segment

Hansen’'s® Brand SodasHansen's® brand sodas have been a leading natdal lsrand on the West
Coast of the United States for more than 35 yeadsaae made with natural flavors. Hansen's® braouhs,
sweetened with cane sugar, and Hansen’s® Diet Sedeesetened with Splenda® no calorie sweetener and
Acesulfame-K, contain no preservatives, sodiuncaffeine. We offer the following sodas in a variefyflavors
under the Hansen’s® brand name: Hansen’'s® Sodasdds® Diet Sodas and Hansen’s® Natural Mixers. We
also offer unsweetened Hansen's® Sparkling Wate$ ldansen’s® Sparkling Fruit Beverages, a line of
sparkling water beverages with 10 calories perisgrand naturally sweetened with apple juice, stdeiaf
extract and monk fruit extract in a variety of fas.



Blue Sk® Products -Our Blue Sky® products contain no preservativesfi@al sweeteners or caffeine
(other than our Blue Sky® energy drinks) and arelenaith natural flavors. We offer the following piacts
under the Blue Sky® product line in a variety @vibrs: Blue Sky® Natural Soda, Blue Sky® Zero Gal@odas
(sweetened with Truvia® brand stevia leaf extraBflye Sky® Organic Natural Sodas, Blue Sky® Seltzer
Waters, Blue Sky® Blue Energy® Drinks, Blue Sky®rdeCalorie Blue Energy® Drinks, Blue Sky® Juiced
Energy Drinks and Blue Sky® Café Energy Drinks.

Hansen'® Energy Drinks -Our original Hansen® Energy Drinks compete in the “functional” beverage
category, namely, beverages that provide a beimefiddition to simply delivering refreshment. Wdeofthe
following products under the Hansen’s® Energy Dnorkduct line: Hansen’'s® Energy and Hansen’s® Bnerg
Diet Red. In May 2014, we added Sun Burst and 1P243ch flavors to the Hansen’'s® Energy product line

Hansen’s® Juice ProductsQur fruit juice product line includes Hansen's®tital Apple Juice, Apple
Cider, Grape Juice, White Grape Juice, Pineapple Jépple Grape Juice, Apple Strawberry Juice,nQea
Juice, Cranberry Juice, Cranberry-Apple Juice, Beay-Grape Juice, Apple Orange Pineapple Juice and
Organic Apple Juice. Our juice product line consai®0% juice and 120% of the United States Recorden
Daily Allowances (the “USRDA”) for vitamin C. In Ma2014, we added Hansen's® Natural Organic Fruit
Punch and Organic Berry Juices. Hansen's® juicdymts compete in the shelf-stable juice category.

Hansen’s® Aseptic JuicesNe offer a number of aseptically packed boxed jpiceducts, including our
dual-branded multi-vitamin 100% juice line, whicte well in conjunction with Costco Wholesale Cortiora
(“Costco”) through Costco stores. We also offer élansen’s® Natural line of multi-vitamin 100% juge
containing eleven essential vitamins and six egdentnerals, Hansen’s® Natural Organic Juices ldadsen’s®
Natural Coconut Water Twist®, a line of fruit andconut water juices containing 100% of the daily
recommended allowance of vitamin C. In October 2@td added Hansen’'s® Natural Kale Apple Pineapple t
our boxed juice product line.

Our Hansen's® Junior Juice® product line is a 100%e line targeted at toddlers and preschoolers.
These juices have added calcium and all flavorsaiori00% of the daily recommended allowance airain C.
We also offer Hansen’s® Organic Junior Juice® afl a® Hansen’s® Organic Junior Water®, the latter,
lightly flavored reduced calorie beverage, botwbich also contain 100% of the daily recommendéalrgince
of vitamin C.

Hubert's® Lemonades ©Our original Hubert® Lemonade is a line of premium ready-to-drink
lemonades available in a variety of flavors. Huk@tLemonade is sweetened with cane sugar and steada |
extract and contains no preservatives, artificrgdeteners, artificial flavors or caffeine. We atster Hubert's®
Diet Lemonade, a line with 10 calories per a s@nand naturally sweetened with stevia leaf extnacmnk fruit
extract and cane sugar in a variety of flavors.alde market Hubert's® Half & Half, a line of premiuready-to-
drink lemonade + tea drinks, in a variety of flaazdn January 2014, we added Peach and Watermalorg to
the original Hubert® Lemonade line. In March 2014, we introduced Htib®r Organic Lemonade, a line of
certified organic lemonades in a variety of flavdrsMay 2014, we also added a Watermelon Habalieited
edition flavor to the original Hubert& Lemonade line.

PRE® Drink Mixes Our Hansen's® Natural PRE® Drink Mix is a line mbiotic digestive wellness
powder drink mixes containing specially formulatddnds by Jarrow Formulas. PREprobiotic powder drink
mix is sweetened with cane sugar and stevia ldade>and is available in a variety of fruit flagor

Other Products
We continue to evaluate and, where considered appte, introduce additional flavors and types of
beverages to complement our existing product likés.may also evaluate, and where considered apatepr

introduce additional types of consumer productscamsider are complementary to our existing prodant¥or
to which our brand names are able to add value.
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We also develop and supply, on a limited exclusiasis, selected beverages in different formats to a
limited number of customers, with the objective salidifying and/or enhancing our relationship witiose
customers.

Products — Packaging

We package our products in a variety of differemtkage types and sizes including, but not limited t
aluminum cans, sleek aluminum cans, glass botildgethylene terephthalate (PET) plastic bottlégh liensity
polyethylene plastic bottles, aseptic boxes aruk gtacks.

Manufacture and Distribution

We do not directly manufacture our products, bstead outsource the manufacturing process to third
party bottlers and contract packers.

We purchase concentrates, sweeteners, juicesrdlag@tary ingredients, cans, bottles, asepticebpx
caps, labels, trays, boxes and other ingrediemteudbbeverage products from our suppliers, whiehdelivered
to our various third party bottlers and co-packétssome cases, certain common supplies may béased by
our various third party bottlers and co-packerspéeling on the product, the third party bottlerpackers add
filtered water and/or other ingredients (includitigtary ingredients) for the manufacture and paicigagf the
finished products into our approved containerscicoadance with our formulas. Depending on the texyesrthe
bottler/packer may also add carbonation to the ywtsdas part of the production process.

Co-Packing Arrangements

All of our beverage products are manufactured byoua third party bottlers and co-packers situated
throughout the United States and abroad, underaeparrangements with each party. The majoritgwof co-
packaging arrangements are generally on a monthetath basis or are terminable upon request andotlo n
generally obligate us to produce any minimum qustof products within specified periods.

In some instances subject to agreement, certaiipregat may be purchased by us and installed at the
facilities of our co-packers to enable them to piaicertain of our products. In general, such egaig remains
our property and is returned to us upon terminatibthe packing arrangements with such co-packengss we
are reimbursed by the co-packer via a per casét aeet a pre-determined number of cases that mx@uged at
the facilities concerned.

We are generally responsible for arranging forpghechase and delivery to our third party bottlend a
co-packers of the containers in which our bevepgducts are packaged.

We pack certain of our products in a number oftiocs both domestically and internationally, inchgl
Australia, Brazil, Canada, Czech Republic, Japaexibb, Netherlands, Spain, the United Kingdom amel t
United States, to enable us to produce producteclm the markets where they are sold, with thjeatiie of
reducing freight costs as well as transportatidateel product damages. As distribution volumesease in both
our domestic and international markets, we willtoare to source additional packing arrangementseclto such
markets to further reduce freight costs. Our abtlit estimate demand for our products is impregseticularly
with new products, and may be less precise durergpgs of rapid growth, particularly in new markelfswe
materially underestimate demand for our productd/anare unable to secure sufficient ingredientsraav
materials including, but not limited to aluminumnsa PET plastic bottles, aseptic boxes, glass]dafiavors,
juice concentrates, dietary ingredients, otherddgmts and certain sweeteners, and/or procureuatiegacking
arrangements and/or obtain adequate or timely simpiwf our products, we might not be able to satigfmand
on a short-term basis. (See “Part I, Item 1A — Faktors”).
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Our production arrangements are generally of stioration or are terminable upon our request. For
certain of our products, including our Monster Ejy® brand energy drinks, our Peace Tea® produats, 0
Hansen's® brand energy drinks, our aseptic juicedpets, our Hubert's® lemonades, our Java Monster®
product line, our Muscle Monster® product line, dmunch Monster® product line and certain of oureoth
products, there are limited co-packing facilitiesour domestic and international markets with adégjgapacity
and/or suitable equipment to package our prodits believe a short disruption or delay in productieould
not significantly affect our revenues; however, @gernative co-packing facilities in our domestiada
international markets with adequate long-term ci#ypamay not be available for such products, eitlagr
commercially reasonable rates and/or within a neaisly short time period, if at all, a lengthy distion or delay
in production of any of such products could sigrafitly affect our revenues.

We continue to actively seek alternative and/oritamithl advantageously located co-packing facsitie
around the world, particularly in Asia, Canada, €anmmerica, Europe, Mexico, the Middle East, $oAtfrica,
South America and the United States with adequapadaity and capability for the production of ourigas
products to minimize transportation costs and partation-related damages as well as to mitigageritk of a
disruption in production and/or importation.

Distribution Agreements

During 2014, we continued to expand distributioroof products in both our domestic and internationa
markets, and our Monster Energy® drinks are now sokapproximately 116 countries and territoriesuad the
world. We have entered into agreements with varidigtributors providing for the distribution of roproducts
during initial terms of up to twenty years, whiclkayrbe renewed thereafter for additional terms ragfiom one
to five years. Such agreements remain in effectHeir then current term as long as our produnéskeing
distributed, but may be terminated by either paggn written notice. We are generally entitledeioninate such
agreements at any time without cause upon paynfientesmination fee.

Certain of our material distribution agreementsam&nded from time to time, are described below:

(a) Monster Beverages Off-Premise Distribution Coortiora Agreement and the Allied Products
Distribution Coordination Agreement (jointly, theOff-Premise Agreements”) with Anheuser-
Busch, Inc., a Missouri corporation (“AB”), undemhigh select Anheuser-Busch distributors (the “AB
Distributors”) distribute and sell, primarily ourdster Energy® drinks, as well as additional prasiuc
that may be agreed between the parties in var@uigories within the United States. In Februarg20
in accordance with its existing agreements withapglicable AB Distributors, the Company sent resic
of termination to the majority of the AB Distribugoin the U.S. for the termination of their respext
distribution agreements, to be effective at varialetes beginning in March 2015 (see Note 8
“Distribution Agreements” in the notes to the cdigated financial statements).

(b) On-Premise Distribution Coordination Agreement (tB&-Premise Agreement”) with AB, under which
select AB Distributors distribute and sell our MtarsEnergy® drinks to food service on-premise
accounts. In February 2015, in accordance with eitésting agreements with the applicable AB
Distributors, the Company sent notices of termorato the majority of the AB Distributors in the3J.
for the termination of their respective distributiagreements, to be effective at various datemhbew
in March 2015 (see Note 8 “Distribution Agreemenis” the notes to the consolidated financial
statements).

(c) Monster Energy Distribution Coordination Agreemdihie “TCCC North American Coordination
Agreement”) with TCCC, pursuant to which we havsigeated, and in the future may designate, subject
to TCCC's approval, territories in Canada and timédl States in which bottlers from TCCC’s network
of wholly or partially-owned and independent batleincluding Coca-Cola Refreshments USA, Inc.
(“CCR"),(formerly known as Coca-Cola Enterprisax;.| (‘CCE")), Coca-Cola Bottling Company
("CCBC"), CCBCC Operations, LLC (“Consolidated”), nited Bottling Contracts Company, LLC
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(d)

(e)

(f)

()

(h)

(i)

(“United”), and other TCCC independent bottlersll@ively, the “TCCC North American Bottlers”)
will distribute and sell primarily our Monster Egg® drinks. In connection with the TCCC
Transaction, the parties expect to amend and ees$tatTCCC North American Coordination Agreement,
including, to change the procedure under whichTta&€C North American Bottlers are appointed in
specified territories.

Monster Energy Distribution Agreement with CCR, guant to which CCR distributes, directly and
through certain sub-distributors, primarily our Mter Energy® drinks in portions of the United State
On October 2, 2010, TCCC completed its acquisiibthe North American business operations of CCE
(now CCR), through a merger with a wholly ownedssdiary of TCCC. The surviving wholly owned
subsidiary was subsequently renamed CCR, and tiyrréistributes our Monster Energy® drinks in
those portions of the United States in which CC&vjmusly distributed such drinks. Concurrently with
this acquisition, a new entity, which retained tieme Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc. (“New CCE”") was
formed, which currently distributes our Monster Ejy® drinks in certain European territories (see
paragraph (h) below).

Distribution agreements with Consolidated, Unitedl ather TCCC North American Bottlers for the
distribution of our Monster Energy® drinks in variterritories within the United States.

Monster Energy Canadian Distribution Agreement wi@CBC (now Coca-Cola Refreshments
Canada, Ltd. (“CCRC")), pursuant to which CCBC wvaspointed to distribute and sell, directly and
through certain sub-distributors, our Monster Eg@rgrinks in Canada.

Monster Energy International Coordination Agreemgtihte “TCCC International Coordination
Agreement”) with TCCC, pursuant to which we havesigieated, and in the future may designate,
countries in which we wish to appoint TCCC disttdmg to distribute and sell our Monster Energy®
drinks, subject to TCCC's approval. In connectiothwhe TCCC Transaction, the parties expect to
amend and restate the TCCC International Coordinatigreement, including to change the procedure
under which the TCCC distributors are appointesipacified territories.

Monster Energy International Distribution Agreemestd Monster Energy Belgium Distribution
Agreement with New CCE, pursuant to which New CCGiswappointed to distribute directly, and through
certain sub-distributors, our Monster Energy® dsimk Great Britain, France, Belgium, the Netheriand
Luxembourg, Monaco and Sweden.

Distribution agreements with bottlers of the CoadeCHellenic group (*Coca-Cola Hellenic”) for the
distribution of certain of our Monster Energy® dn in Austria, Bulgaria, Czech Republic,
Hungary, Ireland, Slovakia, Cyprus, Greece, Latiithuania, Estonia, Switzerland and Poland.

Distribution levels vary by product and geograplocation. Gross sales outside the United States

accounted for $657.9 million, $580.6 million and1$® million for the years ended December 31, 2@4,.3
and 2012, respectively. The distribution rightsatielg to each territory for which the Company seatices of
termination in February 2015, including certain Bistributors in the U.S. described above, will kensitioned
to TCCC'’s network of owned or controlled bottleistdbutors and independent bottling and distribatpartners
as of the effective date of termination of the eatrthird party’s rights in the applicable territprand in
connection therewith, the agreements referred tdanses (d)-(f) will be amended. The agreemerigsrez to in
clauses (h) and (i) are also expected to be amauutad or following the closing of the TCCC Transawt

We continually seek to expand distribution of oubducts by entering into agreements with other

regional bottlers or direct store delivery disttims with established sales, marketing and didiiobu
organizations. Many of our bottlers and distribatare affiliated with and manufacture and/or distie other
beverage products. In many cases, such productgeaterdirectly with our products.
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Raw Materials and Suppliers

The principal raw materials used in the manufaotuief our products are aluminum cans, PET plastic
bottles as well as flavors, juice concentratesagugucralose, milk, cream, protein, dietary inggets and other
packaging materials, the costs of which are sulijefttictuations.

We purchase beverage flavors, concentrates, jultetsyry ingredients, cane sugar, sucrose, sueraiog
other sweeteners as well as other ingredients iindiependent suppliers located in the United Staelsabroad.

Generally, raw materials utilized by us in our lbesis are readily available from numerous sources.
However, certain raw materials are manufactureditdy one company. We purchase certain flavorgmvii
blends and herbs, certain other dietary ingrediantssucralose, as well as certain other ingresliém@m single
manufacturers. Additionally, certain of our cons@mand flavors are only manufactured by singlepaomes.

With regard to our Java Monster® and Muscle Moi®&tproduct lines, the dairy and protein industries
are subject to shortages and increased demandifrento time, which may result in higher prices.

With regard to our fruit juice and juice-drink praxds, the fruit juice industry is subject to varidp in
demand and weather conditions, which may resuitgher prices and/or lower consumer demand foegiic

Generally, flavor suppliers own the proprietanhtigyto their flavor formulas which they make avaliéa
to customers for specific use in the productionthafir customers’ products. Consequently, we do hate
possession of the list of flavor ingredients owdliaformulas used in the production of our prodwactd certain of
our blended concentrates (our “Product Flavor Fdasiyand we may be unable to obtain comparabiefaor
concentrates from alternative suppliers on shaiteoOur flavor suppliers generally do not makesirs used in
our products available to third parties. We haw® &ntered into agreements with certain of ourofiauppliers
who have agreed, subject to the terms of such ammets, to maintain our Product Flavor Formulas in
confidence, not to use our Product Flavor Formindahe production of other customers’ products singrovide
us with access to our Product Flavor Formulas unddain circumstances, such as the bankruptcheoflavor
supplier. We have identified alternative suppliersmany of the ingredients contained in many aof loeverages.
However, industry-wide shortages of certain fraitsl fruit juices, coffee, tea, dietary ingrediesumsl sweeteners
have been, and could from time to time in the fthe, encountered, which could interfere with and&lay
production of certain of our products.

We continually endeavor to develop back-up souofesipply for certain of our flavors and concerdsat
as well as to negotiate arrangements with suppliestich would enable us to obtain access to certain
concentrates or our flavor formulas in certain winstances. We have been partially successful isethe
endeavors. Additionally, in a limited number of &sscontractual restrictions and/or the necessitpttain
regulatory approvals and licenses may limit ouritgbto enter into agreements with alternative digop,
manufacturers and/or distributors.

In connection with the development of new prodwntsl flavors, independent suppliers bear a large
portion of the expense of product development.eiweenabling us to develop new products and flasbrshat
we consider to be reasonable economic levels. We historically developed and successfully intratboew
products, flavors and packaging for our product iatend to continue to develop and introduce daliéd new
beverages, flavors and innovative packaging.

Competition
The beverage industry is highly competitive. Thmgpal areas of competition are pricing, packaging
development of new products and flavors as wefirasnotional and marketing strategies. Our prodootapete

with a wide range of drinks produced by a relatividrge number of companies, many of which have
substantially greater financial, marketing andribstion resources than we do.
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Important factors affecting our ability to compsteccessfully include taste and flavor of produttsde
and consumer promotions, rapid and effective dgwveénmt of new, unique cutting edge products, attracnd
different packaging, brand exposure and marketsgell as pricing. We also compete for distributets will
give our products more focus than those of our a@iitgrs, provide stable and reliable distributiord asecure
adequate shelf space in retail outlets. Competjiressures in the “alternative”, energy, coffee dndctional”
beverage categories could cause our products tmdigle to gain or to lose market share or we cexfierience
price erosion, which could have a material adveffext on our business and results of operations.

We have experienced and continue to experience efitiop from new entrants in the energy drink and
energy shot categories. A number of companies wdudenh and distribute iced teas, juice cocktails amdanced
waters in larger volume packages, such as 16- @rml@ce glass and plastic bottles, including S&ude Life
Water, Vitamin Water, Snapple, Arizona, Fuse, OcBpray, Honest Tea, Gold Peak Tea, Activate andd\eu
have added dietary ingredients to their producth wiview to marketing their products as “functibroa energy
beverages or as having “functional” benefits. Wéelve that many of those products contain loweels\of
dietary ingredients, principally deliver refreshrhand are positioned differently from our energyfonctional”
drinks. Our Peace Tea® ready-to-drink iced teapastioned more closely against those products.

We are also subject to increasing levels of regujaissues particularly in relation to the registma and
taxation of our products in certain new internasilomarkets, which may put us at a competitive diaathge.
(See “Government Regulation” below for additiorrdbrmation).

We compete not only for consumer preference, s &r maximum marketing and sales efforts by
multi-brand licensed bottlers, brokers and distiobs; many of which have a principal affiliationtivicompeting
companies and brands. Our products compete withiqalld refreshments and in many cases with praio€t
much larger and in some cases better financed ddmpge including the products of numerous natinahnd
internationally known producers such as TCCC, Rapdinc. (“PepsiCo”), The Dr. Pepper Snapple Groop,
(the “DPS Group”), Red Bull Gmbh, Kraft Foods, InSuntory Holdings, Ltd., Nestle Beverage Compdimge
Top Inc. (“Tree Top”) and Ocean Spray Cranbernes (“Ocean Spray”). We also compete with compatfias
are smaller or primarily local in operation. Ouogucts also compete with private label brands sagithose
carried by grocery store chains, convenience sfoaens and club stores.

Domestically, our energy drinks compete directlyhwRed Bull, Rockstar, Full Throttle, No Fear, Amp,
Adrenaline Rush, NOS, Venom, Redline, Red Devih RiXenergy, 5-Hour Energy Shots, MiO Energy,cR&
2, VPX Redline Energy Shots, and many other brafdCC and PepsiCo also market and/or distribute
additional products in that market segment sucRegssi Max, Mountain Dew, Mountain Dew MDX, Mountain
Dew Kickstart and Vault. Internationally, our engmdrinks compete with Red Bull, Rockstar, Burn, Yeggy,
Lucozade, Adrenaline Rush, Relentless and numdiomad and private label brands that usually difflerm
country to country, such as Play, Power Play, Mothiell, Shock, Tiger, Boost, TNT, Shark, Hot 6, Ila
Samurai, Battery, Bullit, Flash Up, Black, Non-Stdgomba, Semtex, Vive 100, Dark Dog, Speed, Guarana
Ultra, Sting and a host of other international loisan

Our Java Monster® product line competes directifhv@tarbucks Frappuccino, Starbucks Double Shot,
Starbucks Double Shot Energy Plus Coffee and ddebucks coffee drinks, Rockstar Roasted, SeatBest
and illy issimo coffee.

Our Muscle Monster® product line competes direuatith Muscle Milk, Core Power, ABB Pure Pro and
Gatorade Recover Protein Shake.

Our Peace Tea® ready-to-drink iced tea product diompetes directly with Arizona, Lipton, Snapple,
Nestea, Xing Tea, Honest Tea, Gold Peak Tea, Feaeamd other tea brands.

Our natural sodas compete directly with traditiosadla products, including those marketed by TCCC,
PepsiCo, the DPS Group, Cott Corporation and Nati@everage Corporation, as well as with carbonated
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beverages marketed by smaller or primarily locahpanies such as Jones Soda Co., Crystal Geyser, J.M
Smucker Company, Reeds, Inc., Zevia and with peilabel brands such as those carried by grocerg shains,
convenience store chains and club stores.

Our apple and other juice products compete diretilly Tree Top, Mott's, Martinelli's, Welch’s, Ocea
Spray, Tropicana, Minute Maid, Langers, Apple ang,ESeneca, Northland, Juicy Juice, Old Orchardasal
with other brands of apple juice and juice blenmasluding store brands.

Our Hubert'® Lemonades and Hubert's® Half & Half lemonade +steampete directly with Calypso,
Simply Lemonade, Minute Maid, Cabana, Tropicanaldedman’s Own.

In the TCCC Transaction, we will acquire the NO$Sy® Full Throttle, Play, Power Play, Relentless,
Mother, Nalu and Samurai brands and, as a reauitewergy drink business will no longer competehvgitich
brands. In addition, as a result of the TCCC Tretisa, we will no longer sell ready-to-drink iceglt products,
traditional soda products, carbonated beveragee @ice, juice blends or lemonades.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing strategy for all our beyesais to focus our efforts on developing brand
awareness through image enhancing programs andigiredmpling. We use our branded vehicles and other
promotional vehicles at events where we offer sammf our products to consumers. We utilize “pushi-p
methods to enhance shelf and display space expossedes outlets (including advertising, in-stpremotions
and in-store placement of point-of-sale materigdgks, coolers and barrel coolers) to enhance deérfram
consumers for our products. We also support oundzravith prize promotions, price promotions, coritjgts,
endorsements from selected public and sports figyrersonality endorsements (including from telewisand
other well-known sports personalities), couponsang and sponsorship of selected causes, eahtstes and
teams. In-store posters, outdoor posters, prirdjorand television advertising (directly and thrbugur
sponsorships and endorsements) and coupons malyealsed to promote our brands.

We historically marketed our Monster Energy®, Hans® and Blue Energy® energy drink products as
dietary supplements in accordance with the statuflefinition of “dietary supplement” set forth ihd Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (the “FFDC Act”). Hewer, as permitted under the FFDC Act and the Bogd
and Drug Administration (the “FDA”) regulations, vieansitioned the labeling and marketing of thesergy
drink products from dietary supplements to con@ral foods beginning in the first quarter of 2013.

We believe that one of the keys to success in éverage industry is differentiation, making ourrs
and products visually distinctive from other beyms on the shelves of retailers. We review our yetedand
packaging on an ongoing basis and, where pracecaleavor to make them different, better and unighe
labels and graphics for many of our products adesgned from time to time to maximize their vikipiand
identification, wherever they may be placed inasomhich we will continue to reevaluate from titodime.

Where appropriate, we partner with our retaileid wholesalers to assist our marketing efforts.

We decreased expenditures for our sales and megk@tiograms by approximately 6.3% in 2014
compared to 2013. As of December 31, 2014, we gpld,538 employees in sales and marketing aetbyitf
which 842 were employed on a full-time basis.

Customers

Our customers are primarily full service beveragstridbutors, retail grocery and specialty chains,

wholesalers, club stores, drug chains, mass mediders, convenience chains, health food distrils,tiwod

service customers and the military. Gross salemutovarious customer types for the years ended ibieee31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 are reflected below. Such nmtion includes sales made by us directly to thetacoer
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types concerned, which include our full service drage distributors in the United States. Such delivice
beverage distributors in turn sell certain of ouwrducts to the same customer types listed below likMe our

description of our customer types to include only sales to such full service distributors withoeference to
such distributors’ sales to their own customers.

2014 2013 2012
Full service distributors 62% 63% 63%
Club stores, drug chains & mass merchandisers 9% % 9 9%
Outside the U.S. 23% 23% 22%
Retail grocery, specialty chains and wholesalers % 4 3% 4%
Other 2% 2% 2%

Our customers include the TCCC North American Bostl New CCE, certain bottlers of Coca-Cola
Hellenic, Swire Coca-Cola, USA and certain othec&Qola independent bottlers, Asahi, Kalil Bottli@goup,
Wal-Mart, Inc. (including Sam’s Club) Costco ane thB Distributors. In February 2015, in accordandth its
existing agreements with the applicable AB Distiis, the Company sent notices of termination éortfajority
of the AB Distributors in the U.S. for the termiieat of their respective distribution agreementsyeceffective at
various dates beginning in March 2015. The assatidistribution rights will be transitioned to TCG@ network
of owned or controlled bottlers/distributors andeépendent bottling and distribution partners athefeffective
date of termination of the AB Distributors’ righia the applicable territories (see Note 8 “Disttibn
Agreements” in the notes to consolidated finansiatements). CCR accounted for approximately 2% and
28% of our net sales for the years ended Decenthe?(d4, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Seasonality

Sales of ready-to-drink beverages are somewhabsehsvith the second and third calendar quarters
accounting for the highest sales volumes. The velwhsales in the beverage business may be affésted
weather conditions. However, the energy drink aatg@ppears to be less seasonal than traditionadrbges.
Quarterly fluctuations may also be affected by otfaetors including the introduction of new prodsjcthe
opening of new markets, particularly internatiopalhere temperature fluctuations may be more prooed,
the addition of new bottlers and distributors, aem in the mix of the sales of our finished produahd
increased or decreased advertising and promotexuenses.

Intellectual Property

We presently have more than 5,200 registered tradesrand pending applications in various countries
worldwide, and we apply for new trademarks on agoamg basis. We regard our trademarks, service snark
copyrights, domain names, trade dress, and othelleictual property as very important to our busgeWe
consider Monster® (registered outside of the Uniates in certain jurisdictions), Monster Energ;w@,), M
Monster Energy®, Monster Rehab®, Java Monster®, ddudionster®, Punch Monster®, Juice Monster™,
Unleash the Beast®, Monster Energy Extra Strengthodé Technology®, Hansen's Natural Cane Soda®,
Hansen's®, Peace Tea®, Blue Sky®, Hubert's® andoduluice® to be our core trademarks.

We protect our trademarks by applying for registreg and registering our trademarks with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office and with govenmtnagencies in other countries around the world,
particularly where our products are distributed @odd. We assert copyright ownership of the statds)
graphics and content appearing on the packaginguof products and in our marketing materials. We
aggressively pursue individuals and/or entitiekisegeto profit from the unauthorized use of ourdeenarks and
copyrights, including, without limitation, wholesa$, street vendors, retailers, online auction sitkers and
website operators. In addition to initiating cigittions against these individuals and entitiesywoek with law
enforcement officials where appropriate.
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Depending upon the jurisdiction, trademarks arévas long as they are in use and/or their redistra
are properly maintained and they have not beendfdarhave become generic. Registrations of tradesmzan
generally be renewed as long as the trademarks ase.

We enforce and protect our trademark rights ag#ist parties infringing or disparaging our tradeks
by opposing registration of conflicting trademar&sd initiating litigation as necessary.

Government Regulation

The production, distribution and sale in the Unigdtes of many of our products are subject toouari
U.S. federal and state regulations, including batt Irmited to: the FFDC Act, including as amended the
Dietary Supplement Health and Education Act of 198% Occupational Safety and Health Act; various
environmental statutes; and a number of other &dstate and local statutes and regulations aglgécto the
production, transportation, sale, safety, advergismarketing, labeling and ingredients of suchdpots. Outside
the United States, the production, distribution aate of many of our products are also subjectumearous
statutes and regulations.

We also may in the future be affected by othertigs proposed and potential future regulations or
regulatory actions, including those described belamy of which could adversely affect our busindssncial
condition and results of operations. See “Pdtein 1A — Risk Factors — Changes in governmentlatign, or
failure to comply with existing regulations, cowdversely affect our business, financial condiaon results of
operations” below for additional information.

Furthermore, legislation may be introduced in thétéd States and other countries at the federate st
and municipal level in respect of each of the sttbfgeas discussed below. Public health officiadd health
advocates are increasingly focused on the pubkdtiheonsequences associated with obesity, es|yeamlthe
disease affects children, and are seeking legislatinange to reduce the consumption of sweetenesdges.
There also has been an increased focus on caffeirtent in beverages, as discussed below.

In January 2013, the FDA announced that it wouldirbestigating the safety of caffeine in food
products, particularly its effects on children adblescents. Also in January 2013, we receivedtar [fom
Representative Edward J. Markey, Senator Richar®urbin and Senator Richard Blumenthal requesting
information from us to enable them to better unides a number of issues relating in part to andtigation
they said has been launched by the FDA examinimgggndrinks and potential health risks, particyldr
groups of vulnerable individuals, including youngople and those with pre-existing cardiac cond#iolve
provided a response to their letter. The Congresseseied a report and recommendations in April 20id@st of
which we had already implemented. The Congressnelaased a follow-up report in January 2015,
recommending inter alia that the energy drink indusot market to consumers under age 18 and ndtentheir
products for hydration, and that the FDA develog eglease definitions and guidance for this masketor.

In July 2013, we received a letter from Michael Minda, the former director of the FDA's Center for
Food Safety and Applied Nutrition, asking for doamnts and information about the Company’s judgmbat t
caffeine in its energy drinks is generally recogdias safe (“GRAS”) for this use. We provided gpoese to this
letter.

In August 2013, at the request of the FDA, the ittt of Medicine (IOM”) conducted a public
workshop to review the available science regardaig levels of caffeine consumption in foods, bages and
dietary supplements and to identify data gaps.|Ohé released a report summarizing the workshop gedigs
in January 2014.

In January 2015, the European Food Safety Autheprtylished a draft scientific opinion on the safety
caffeine, particularly in energy drinks. The draftinion concluded inter alia that daily caffein¢akes from all
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sources up to 400 milligrams per day do not rasfetg concerns for adults in the general popula(@2o0
milligrams per day for pregnant women).

Product Labeling and AdvertisingVe are subject to Proposition 65 in Californidaa which requires
that a specific warning appear on any product gol@alifornia that contains a substance listedhat state as
having been found to cause cancer or birth defeagcess of certain levels. If we were requireadd warning
labels to any of our products or place warningsdrtain other locations where our products are, $oisl difficult
to predict whether, or to what extent, such a waynvould have an impact on sales of our producthase
locations or elsewhere.

In addition, the FDA is considering revising redigdas with respect to serving size information and
nutrition labeling on food and beverage produdtsadopted, we may incur significant costs to atiar existing
packaging materials to comply with new regulatiohdditionally, revised serving size information mawypact
and/or reduce and/or otherwise affect the purchadeconsumption of our products by consumers.

In July 2012, we received a subpoena from a stHtenay general for the State of New York in
connection with an investigation relating to theextising, marketing, promotion, ingredients, usagd sale of
our Monster Energy® brand energy drinks. We capnetlict the outcome of this inquiry and what effécany,
it may have on our business, financial conditionesults of operations.

In October 2012, we received a written requestrftarmation from the City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco concerning the Company&riding and marketing of its Monster Energy® latan
energy drinks and specifically concerning the safet its products for consumption by adolescentse S
“Part I, Item 3 — Legal Proceedings” below for aftfial information.

Regulations took effect in Canada on January 11323@at inter alia re-classified energy drinks from
“natural health products” to “food.” As a reswdhergy drinks are required to carry a warning thay are not
recommended for children or breast-feeding womehsdnould not be mixed with alcohol.

On December 13, 2014, new European Union (the “BE¥§ulations governing the labeling of food and
beverages took effect. We have amended our EUslabeéflect these changes.

In the United States, as permitted under the FFBCaAd FDA regulations, we transitioned the latgelin
and marketing of our products sold under the MonEteergy®, Hansen’s Energy® and Blue Energy® brands
from dietary supplements to conventional foods teigig in the first quarter of 2013.

Age and Other Restrictions on Energy Drink ProduBtoposals to limit or restrict the sale of energy
drinks to minors and/or persons below a specifigel @nd/or restrict the venues in which energy dricdn be
sold and/or to restrict the use of the SupplemeNtatrition Assistance Program (“SNAP”) (formerly oo
stamps) to purchase energy drinks have been rars#/dr enacted in certain U.S. states, countiesjaipalities
and/or in certain foreign countries.

In January 2013, Chicago Alderman Ed Burke propasdzhn on the sale and distribution of energy
drinks to all consumers, not just minors, in Chxdthe “Chicago Proposal”). The Chicago Proposdingd
“energy drink” to include “a canned or bottled beage which has 180 milligrams or more of caffeiee gingle-
serve container and contains Taurine or Guaramhat proposal has not been enacted to date.

In March 2013, a bill was proposed in the lllin@&neral Assembly to ban the sale of energy drinks
(defined as beverages containing one or more ofaflewing ingredients: taurine, guarana, glucuractone or
ginseng) to anyone younger than 18 years of agéannary 2014, Los Angeles City Councilman BerriRaks
proposed a bill to ban anyone younger than 18 yehi@ge from purchasing energy drinks. In addition
February 2014, a bill was introduced in the Margl@eneral Assembly that would prohibit the salewérgy
drinks to individuals younger than 18 years of ddeese bills have not been enacted to date.
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In March 2013, Suffolk County enacted two local $awne bans the distribution of free samples of
energy drinks (which the law characterizes as ‘sfamt drinks”) to individuals under the age of dé&gn in that
county, and the second bans the sale or distribaficuch drinks in Suffolk County parks.

In November 2014, Lithuania introduced legislatfmohibiting the sale of non-alcoholic energy drinks
with more than 150 milligrams of caffeine per literpersons under the age of 18.

Excise Taxes on Energy Drinkkegislation that would impose an excise tax oret@ned beverages has
been proposed in Congress, in some state legisfatincluding Connecticut, Hawaii, Massachusetthriiska,
Oregon, Rhode Island and Texas, and in some lanargments, with excise taxes generally rangingvéen
$0.01 and $0.02 per ounce of sweetened beveragikelBy, California, became the first jurisdictimnpass such
a measure, by ballot question approved in Noverab&4d. A general tax of $0.01 per ounce on certagesened
drinks, including energy drinks, became effectiveBerkeley on January 1, 2015. However, the impteat®on
of this tax has been deferred until March 2015. ihmgosition of such taxes on our products wouldéase the
cost of certain of our products or, to the extenidd directly on consumers, make certain of oodpcts less
affordable. Excise taxes on sweetened beveragesdal are in effect in certain foreign countriesevehwe do
business. On January 1, 2011, Mexico institut28% excise tax on certain energy drinks, to whichproducts
are currently not subject; however, in October 20M8xico passed a $1 MXN tax per liter on sugaretered
beverages, which became effective January 1, 2014.

Effective January 1, 2013, Hungary instituted acisxtax of approximately $0.18 (at current excleang
rates) per liter on drinks containing more thanriigrams of caffeine per 100 milliliters, to wiicour products
are subject. In October 2013, the French Parliarpassed legislation taxing energy drinks at a o&t€l EUR
per liter, which was approved by the French Supr@mart in December 2013 and went into effect orudanl,
2014. However, in September 2014, France’s Cotistital Council found the tax on energy drinks
unconstitutional because it only affects energyldriand does not apply to other beverages congasimilar
levels of caffeine. The Court gave the French govient a January 1, 2015 deadline to remove or ehthreg€l
EUR per liter levy. Accordingly, as of January D18, the law was amended to remove any refereneadry
drinks. However, the tax on beverages containingentttan 220 milligrams of caffeine per liter rensin place.
We adjusted the caffeine levels in certain of ownster® Energy products that are sold in Franatbess this
regulation.

Limits on Caffeine ContentLegislation, including the Chicago Proposal, haen proposed to limit the
amount of caffeine that may be contained in bevegaimcluding energy drinks. Some jurisdictions reh&e do
business have prescribed limited caffeine contenbéverages. On January 1, 2013, regulations effekt in
Canada that limit the amount of caffeine contaimedny beverage in a single-serving can or bottless than
180 milligrams. We adjusted the caffeine levelantain of our Monster Energy® products that akel $n
Canada to address these regulations, although dfaity of our products were unaffected. Howewbere can
be no assurance that we will be able to satisfdto so in other jurisdictions that adopt similagislation.

Limitations on Container Sizeln September 2012, the Board of Health of NewKYGity approved
regulations prohibiting the sale, in certain sald®mnnels, mainly food service establishments, otate
sweetened drinks in containers larger than 16 fluwidces. The regulations were expected to takecteife
March 2013, but a New York state court invalidatieeim as exceeding the Board of Health’s authoaity the
state’s highest court agreed with this ruling opesd. The mayor of Cambridge, Massachusetts hgmped a
similar initiative.

We currently package certain of our Monster Energlyi®ks and our Peace Tea® iced teas in aluminum
cans larger than 16 fluid ounces. Although curpoposals would not extend to beverages sold impdacipal
sales channels such as convenience stores, greimees, mass merchandisers, drug stores and duissive
cannot predict whether any such sales channel rhigjlatdded to current proposed regulations or cdveyether
similar regulatory initiatives.
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Container DepositsVarious municipalities, states and foreign cowsttiequire that a deposit be charged
for certain non-refillable beverage containers. Tnecise requirements imposed by these measurgsbyar
jurisdiction. Other deposit, recycling or produtggardship proposals have been introduced in cedes. states,
counties, municipalities and in certain foreign mties.

Compliance with Environmental Laws

Our facilities in the United States are subjectféderal, state and local environmental laws and
regulations. Our operations in other countriessagect to similar laws and regulations that mawpglicable in
such countries. Compliance with these provisiors et had, nor do we expect such compliance to,ave
material adverse effect upon our capital expenglitfunet income or competitive position.

In California, we are required to collect redemptigalues from our customers and to remit such
redemption values to the State of California Departt of Resources Recycling and Recovery based thgon
number of cans and bottles of certain carbonateldnam-carbonated products sold. In certain otheestand
countries where our products are sold, we are ralgoired to collect deposits from our customers @nemit
such deposits to the respective jurisdictions bagexh the number of cans and bottles of certaibarated and
non-carbonated products sold in such states.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we employed a total 0d2 @mployees of which 1,298 were employed on a
full-time basis. Of our 2,001 employees, we emptb$63 in administrative and operational capackied 1,538
persons in sales and marketing capacities.

Available Information

As a public company, we are required to file ounwal reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy steats on Schedule 14A and other information (inclgcny
amendments) with the Securities and Exchange Cosionigthe “SEC”). You may read and copy such niater
at the SEC’s Public Reference Room located at 1@@ré&et, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You mayaiwbt
information on the operation of the Public Refeee®Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Yamualso
find the Company’s SEC filings at the SEC’s wehsithich contains reports, proxy and informatiortestaents,
and other information regarding issuers that fikeeonically with the SEC, at http://www.sec.gov.

Our Internet address is www.monsterbevcorp.conforfmation contained on our website is not part of
this annual report on Form 10-K. Our SEC filingsc{uding any amendments) will be made available vé
charge on www.monsterbevcorp.com, as soon as rabigopracticable after we electronically file sutlaterial
with, or furnish it to, the SEC. In addition, yowaynrequest a copy of these filings (excluding ex$)kat no cost
by writing to, or telephoning us, at the followiaddress or telephone number:

Monster Beverage Corporation
1 Monster Way
Corona, CA 92879
(951) 739-6200
(800) 426-7367
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information in this repgrbu should carefully consider the following risksany
of the following risks actually occur, our businegfisancial condition and/or operating results cblbé materially
adversely affected. The risk factors summarizedwedre not the only risks we face. Additional risksd
uncertainties not currently known to us or thatouerently deem to be immaterial may also materiatlyersely
affect our business, financial condition and/orrafiag results.

Following the TCCC Transaction, NewCo and TCCC Wwidle extensive commercial arrangements and, as a
result, NewCo’s future performance is expectedutsstntially depend on the success of its relatigmsvith
TCCC.

In connection with the TCCC Transaction, the amendgstribution coordination agreements to be
entered into with TCCC will provide for the tranait of third parties’ rights to distribute the Coamy’s products
in most territories in the U.S. to members of TCE@istribution network, which consists of ownedcontrolled
bottlers/distributors and independent bottlingfilisttion partners. On February 9, 2015 in accordanih its
existing agreements with the applicable third-patistributors, the Company sent notices of ternmmato
certain affected third-party distributors, inclugithe majority of the AB Distributors in the U.providing for
the termination of their respective distributionregments, to be effective at various dates beginmm
March 2015. The associated distribution rights sl transferred to TCCC'’s distribution network iaclke
applicable territory as of the effective date oé ttermination of the applicable third party’s righh such
territory. In addition, it is expected that TCCQiecome our preferred distribution partner gldpahs a result,
we will be reducing our distributor diversificatiand will be substantially dependent on TCCC’srma¢ional
distribution platform.

Also in connection with the TCCC Transaction, TC@@l make a substantial equity investment in
NewCo and has agreed, subject to certain exceptiwisto compete in the energy drink category. Wi
believe that this will incentivize TCCC to take [steto assure that our products receive the appitepaitention
in the TCCC distribution system, there can be mu@sice of this as TCCC is a much larger compatty many
strategic priorities. In addition, TCCC does notteol all members of its distribution system, mariywhich are
independent companies that make their own busihesisions that may not always align with TCCC'®iests.
Moreover, it is also possible that we may fail ®cagnize the expected benefits of the new distobut
arrangements regardless of TCCC'’s priorities orpherities of the members of TCCC's distributioysem. In
any such case, our operating results could suffdrthe value of NewCo’s common shares could beradixe
affected.

Under the terms of the TCCC Transaction, we haveealj subject to certain exceptions, not to compete
with TCCC in the non-energy drink category follogithe closing. As a result, our sole focus will ibethe
energy drink category and our business will beconoee vulnerable to adverse changes impacting theggn
drink category and business, which could adversBepact our business and the trading price of oumraon
stock.

The failure to transition the distribution of ourqaucts to TCCC's distribution network in a timethanner could
reduce and/or delay the expected benefits of tHed Transaction.

If the expected transition of the U.S. distributiaghts to TCCC's distribution network describecbad
is not completed in a full, timely and/or efficiemanner, the expected benefits of the new distobut
arrangements could be reduced and/or delayedidndfard, we have been informed that approximaélyAB
Distributors are challenging our right to termin#teir distribution agreements in accordance wlid ¢éxpress
terms of such distribution agreements. We havel fleparate arbitration demands against each of thedies
seeking declarations of our rights, including oight to terminate the applicable distribution agneats in
accordance with their terms. We have also filegetion in the United States District Court, Ceniatrict of
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California, against these parties to enforce edctheair respective obligations to arbitrate anypdigs arising
under such distribution agreements. We believenthependent distributors’ allegations are withoetrim

We expect to incur costs associated with transivibdistribution which we currently estimate at 2B
million. The final amount of those costs could biedent and such differences could be materialadidition,
under the TCCC Transaction Agreements, up to $628lion of the net $2.15 billion cash payment ®taid to
us by TCCC will be held in escrow, subject to rekeapon achievement of milestones relating tordngsition of
distribution rights to TCCC's distribution networK. failure to meet those milestones would resul&idecrease
in, and/or delay of, the cash payment.

Following the TCCC Transaction, TCCC will be a sfigant shareholder of NewCo and may have intertdsis
are different from NewCo'’s other shareholders (ugthg current shareholders of the Company).

In connection with the TCCC Transaction, each anding share of the Company’s common stock will
be converted into one share of NewCo’s common stdeimediately following the consummation of the@C
Transaction, TCCC will own NewCo common sharesesgnting approximately 16.7% of the total number of
NewCo’s outstanding common shares. TCCC will alawgehthe right to nominate two directors to the NewC
board of directors, subject to reduction in certainumstances.

Following the completion of the TCCC TransactiofGAC’s ownership could also have an effect on
NewCo'’s ability to engage in a change in contrahtaction. TCCC will be obligated for a periodiofe to vote
all of its NewCo common shares in excess of 20%hef outstanding NewCo common shares in the same
proportion as all NewCo common shares not owne@i®gC with respect to a proposal for a NewCo chasfge
control. However, if TCCC were to oppose such angkain control transaction, a bidder would be rexlito
secure the support of holders of 62.5% of NewColmmon shares not owned by TCCC (assuming that TCCC
increased its ownership from approximately 16.792@86 of NewCo’s common shares) to achieve a vota of
majority of NewCo'’s outstanding shares for a chaimgeontrol transaction. In addition, assuming toenpletion
of the TCCC Transaction, TCCC would have a bid@idgantage if the NewCo board of directors wereetkgo
sell NewCo in the future because TCCC would nodrieepay a control premium on the shares it owrsuah
time, including the shares it acquires in the TCO@nsaction. TCCC and NewCo would also be permitbed
terminate TCCC's distribution coordination agreetsasith NewCo after a change in control of NewGoslich
event, TCCC would receive a termination fee if TC@Eminated the distribution coordination agreersent
following a change in control of NewCo involvingrtzan TCCC competitors, or if NewCo terminated daling
a change in control of NewCo, involving any thimty.

The interests of TCCC may be different from or diohfvith the interests of NewCo'’s other sharehadde
(including current shareholders of the Company, whithé receive NewCo common shares in the TCCC
Transaction) and, as a result, TCCC's influence mesult in the delay or prevention of potentiali@ts or
transactions, including a potential change of manant or control of NewCo, even if such actionransaction
may be beneficial to NewCo’s other shareholdersrddeer, TCCC’s ownership of a significant amount of
NewCo’s outstanding common shares could resultdwndvard pressure on the trading price of NewCo'’s
common shares if TCCC were to sell a large pontibits shares or as a result of the perceptiongbeh a sale
might occur.

The TCCC Transaction may not be completed or maydlayed, and even if the TCCC Transaction is
successfully completed, the anticipated benefitsedCompany’s stockholders may not be realized.

The completion of the TCCC Transaction is subjectdrtain customary conditions. The Company or
TCCC may be unable to satisfy the conditions reqlio complete the transaction, and there is narasse that
the TCCC Transaction will be completed on a timedgis or at all. If the TCCC Transaction is nanpteted,
we will nonetheless bear significant transactiostgoln addition, the current market price of otock may
reflect an assumption that the TCCC Transactiohagitur, and failure to complete the TCCC Transactiould
result in a decline in our stock price. The falwf the TCCC Transaction to be completed may sdsalt in
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negative publicity and/or a negative impressiothef Company in the investment community and magcafbur
relationship with customers and other partners.

Changes in government regulation, or failure to pbymwith existing regulations, could adversely efffeur
business, financial condition and results of opierad.

Legislation has been proposed and/or adopted aUtBe federal, state and/or municipal level and
proposed and/or adopted in certain foreign jurtialis to restrict the sale of energy drinks (inahgdprohibiting
the sale of energy drinks at certain establishmenfsursuant to certain governmental programs)i loaffeine
content in beverages, require certain product liadpedisclosures and/or warnings, impose excisestakmit
product size, or impose age restrictions for thie sd energy drinks. For a discussion of certainsiach
legislation, see “Part I, Item 1 — Business — Gaweent Regulation.” Furthermore, additional ledisia may
be introduced in the United States and other caméat the federal, state, local and municipallleveespect of
each of the foregoing subject areas. Public hedftbials and health advocates are increasingbpu$ed on the
public health consequences associated with obesspecially as the disease affects children, aadseeking
legislative change to reduce the consumption okeseveed beverages. There also has been an incfeasemn
caffeine content in beverages. To the extent ach $qgislation is enacted in one or more jurisdicd where a
significant amount of our products are sold indiMdtly or in the aggregate, it could result in autbn in
demand for or availability of our energy drinks aadi/ersely affect our business, financial conditma results
of operations.

The production, distribution and sale in the Unittdites of many of our products are also currently
subject to various federal and state regulatiorduding, but not limited to: the FFDC Act, inclagi as amended
by the Dietary Supplement Health and Education &fct994; the Occupational Safety and Health Actjotes
environmental statutes; and various other fedest@te and local statutes and regulations applictbléhe
production, transportation, sale, safety, advewisiabeling and ingredients of such products. @atthe United
States, the production, distribution and sale ohynaf our products are also subject to numerousitsts and
regulations. If a regulatory authority finds tlaturrent or future product or production run i$ inocompliance
with any of these regulations, we may be finedswech products may have to be recalled and/or refiated
and/or have the packaging changed, which couldradieaffect our business, financial condition aesults of
operations.

We cannot predict the effect of inquiries from andictions by attorneys general and/or other gowesnt
agencies and/or quasi-government agencies intadvertising, marketing, promotion, ingredients, gesand/or
sale of our energy drink products.

We are subject to the risks of investigations andfdorcement actions by state attorneys genediban
other government and/or quasi-governmental agenmésing to the advertising, marketing, promotion,
ingredients, usage and/or sale of our energy drilmkduly 2012, we received a subpoena from a sttiteney
general in connection with an investigation relgtto the advertising, marketing, promotion, ingesd$, usage
and sale of our Monster Energy® brand energy driviks cannot predict the outcome of this inquiry aiwt, if
any, effect it may have on our business, financ@idition or results of operations. If an inquiry & state
attorney general or other government or quasi-gowent agency finds that our products and/or theiiding,
marketing, promotion, ingredients, usage and/a esuch products are not in compliance with applie laws
or regulations, we may become subject to finesjyebreformulations, container changes, changéisenisage
or sale of our energy drink products and/or chamgesir advertising, marketing and promotion preesi each of
which could have an adverse effect on our busiriess)cial condition or results of operations.

Litigation regarding our products, and related unfmable media attention, could expose us to sicguif
liabilities and reduce demand for our products.

In 2012, we were named as a defendant in a prdidbdity lawsuit, which alleged that the consunupti
of two 24-ounce cans of Monster Energy® over theree of two days, caused the wrongful death ofuatéen
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year old girl (Anais Fournier) in December 2011. & not believe that our products are responsibiette
death of Ms. Fournier and intend to continue tooxagisly defend the lawsuit. In addition, additiopabduct
liability lawsuits have since been filed againsteamntaining similar allegations to those presemtetie Fournier
lawsuit, each of which we believe is also withowtrinand would not have a material adverse effecbor
financial position or results of operations in thent any damages were awarded.

In October 2012, we received a written requestrftarmation from the City Attorney for the City and
County of San Francisco (the “City Attorney”) condeg our advertising and marketing of our Monster
Energy® brand of energy drinks and specifically aaming the safety of our products for consumptign
adolescents. In a subsequent letter, the City Adtpthreatened to bring suit against us if we dilagree to take
certain steps immediately and, on May 6, 2013 Qitg Attorney filed a complaint against us for daeitory and
injunctive relief, civil penalties and restitutidar an alleged violation of California’s Unfair Cqmtition Law.
We deny that we have violated the Unfair Competitiaw or any other law and believe that the CityoAtey’'s
claims and demands are preempted and unconstalitidfe intend to vigorously defend against the latvat
this time, no evaluation of the likelihood of arfavorable outcome or range of potential loss caaxXpeessed.

Several other lawsuits have been filed against lagmmg that certain statements made in our
advertisements and/or on the labels of our produeee false and/or misleading in nature and/or that
products are not safe. Putative class action lasvduive also recently been filed against certainowf
competitors asserting that certain claims in tlagivertisements amount to false advertising. We atdbalieve
any statements made by us in our promotional nadgeor set forth on our product labels are falsmisleading
or that our products are in any way unsafe anchéhte vigorously defend these lawsuits.

Any of the foregoing matters or other product-redhlitigation, the threat thereof, or unfavorabledia
attention arising from pending or threatened prodelated litigation, could consume significantdircial and
managerial resources, and result in decreased defoamur products, significant monetary awardsi@gaus
and injury to our reputation.

Criticism of our energy drink products, and/or @ism or a negative perception of energy drinkseyahy,
could adversely affect us.

An unfavorable report on the health effects of eaff, or criticism or negative publicity regarditige
caffeine content in our products or energy drinksiagally, could have an adverse effect on our lessin
financial condition and results of operations. idéles critical of the caffeine content in energynés and/or
indicating certain health risks of energy drinksédn@deen published in recent years. We believe ikeatl growth
of the energy drink market in the U.S. may havenbeegatively impacted by the ongoing negative mityliand
comments that continue to appear in the media iquirsg the safety of energy drinks, and suggedimgations
on their ingredients (including caffeine) and/oe tlevels thereof and/or imposing minimum age retbrs for
consumers. If reports, studies or articles critmfataffeine and/or energy drinks continue to bblighed or are
published in the future, they could adversely aftee demand for our products.

Increased competition could hurt our business.

The beverage industry is highly competitive. Thmgpal areas of competition are pricing, packaging
development of new products, flavors, product pasing as well as promotion and marketing stratgg{@ur
products compete with a wide range of drinks preduley a relatively large number of manufactureoses of
which have substantially greater financial, markgtnd distribution resources than we do.

Important factors affecting our ability to competaccessfully include the taste and flavor of our
products, trade and consumer promotions, rapideffiedtive development of new, unique cutting edgepcts,
attractive and different packaging, branded produwietertising and pricing. Our products compete \altHiquid
refreshments and in some cases with products ohnarger and substantially better financed comgeit
including the products of numerous nationally ameérinationally known producers such as TCCC, Pepdred
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Bull Gmbh, the DPS Group, Kraft Foods Inc., Suntdildings, Ltd., Nestle Beverage Company, Tree d&og
Ocean Spray. We also compete with companies tleasraaller or primarily national or local in opecais. Our
products also compete with private label brand$ siscthose carried by grocery store chains, coeweristore
chains, and club stores.

There can be no assurance that we will not encoudliffeculties in maintaining our current revenuas
market share or position due to competition in Ilewerage industry. If our revenues decline, ounness,
financial condition and results of operations cduddadversely affected.

Uncertainty in the financial markets and other ageechanges in general economic or political caodi in any
of the major countries in which we do business @¢adversely affect our industry, business and tesof
operations.

Global economic uncertainties affect businesseb asoours in a number of ways, making it diffictolt
accurately forecast and plan our future businesgitees. There can be no assurance that econanpecavements
will occur, or that they would be sustainable, lmattthey would enhance conditions in markets reiet@us. In
addition, we cannot predict the duration and sévefi disruptions in any of our markets, or the anpthey may
have on our customers or business, as our expaasisitde of the United States has increased ouvsexp to
any developments or crisis in European and othternational markets. If economic conditions deteti®, our
industry, business and results of operations cbelthaterially and adversely affected.

Changes in consumer preferences may reduce deroaadrhe of our products.

The beverage industry is subject to changing coeswreferences and shifts in consumer preferences
may adversely affect us. There is increasing avesm®f and concern for the health consequencebesHity.
This may reduce demand for our non-diet beveragksh could reduce our revenues and adversely tafigc
results of operations. Recently, concerns have gederegarding diet sodas and in particular, aspetavhich
we do not use in our beverages.

Consumers are seeking greater variety in their iages. Our future success will depend, in partnupo
our continued ability to develop and introduce a@iént and innovative beverages that appeal to cogrsu In
order to retain and expand our market share, we cmrtinue to develop and introduce different ambivative
beverages and be competitive in the areas of tq@#dity and health, although there can be no asserof our
ability to do so. There is no assurance that coessimill continue to purchase our products in titere. Product
lifecycles for some beverage brands and/or prodaot¥or packages may be limited to a few yearsrbefo
consumers’ preferences change. The beverages wentyrmarket are in varying stages of their prdduc
lifecycles and there can be no assurance thatlsxdrages will become or remain profitable for Uge may be
unable to achieve volume growth through product packaging initiatives. We may also be unable toepate
new markets. If our revenues decline, our businéeancial condition and results of operations doble
adversely affected.

Operations outside the United States expose usdertain conditions and other risks in internatibnaarkets.

Our gross sales to customers outside of the UrStates were approximately 23%, 23% and 22% of
consolidated gross sales for the years ended Dexedib 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and ooty
strategy includes further expanding our internaidiusiness. If we are unable to continue to exphstribution
of our products outside the United States, our gnomate could be adversely affected. In many irgeonal
markets, we have limited operating experience argbme areas we have no operating experiencecdisity to
establish, develop and maintain international apmra and develop and promote our brands in intenmal
markets. Our percentage gross profit margins inymaternational markets are expected to be less tha
comparable percentage gross profit margins obtamede U.S. We face and will continue to face saibsal
risks associated with having foreign operations;luiding: economic and/or political instability inuio
international markets; restrictions on or costatied) to the repatriation of foreign profits to thkmited States,
including possible taxes and/or withholding obligas on any repatriations; and tariffs and/or tresrictions.
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These risks could have a significant impact on ability to sell our products on a competitive bagis

international markets and could have a materiatestyeffect on our business, financial conditiod esults of

operations. Also, our operations outside of thetéthiStates are subject to risks relating to appatgpr
compliance with legal and regulatory requirememtdoical jurisdictions, potential difficulties inaffing and

managing local operations, higher product damagasgicularly when products are shipped long distanc
potentially higher incidence of fraud and/or cotrap, credit risk of local customers and distribgtand

potentially adverse tax consequences.

Global or regional catastrophic events could impact operations and affect our ability to grow dausiness.

Because of our increasingly global presence, owsiness could be affected by unstable political
conditions, civil unrest, large-scale terroristsa@specially those directed against the UniteteStar other major
industrialized countries where our products ar¢ribisted, the outbreak or escalation of armed litiss, major
natural disasters or widespread outbreaks of iimigstdiseases. Such events could impact the prioduanhd
distribution of our products. In addition, suchents could disrupt global or regional economic\étgti which
could affect consumer purchasing power, therebyaied demand for our products. If we are unablgrtav our
business internationally as a result of these factur growth rate could decline.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates radyersely affect our operating results.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rsitewith respect to our sales, expenses, profisgetas
and liabilities denominated in currencies othemtlize U.S. dollar. We enter into forward currencgle@ange
contracts with financial institutions to create egsonomic hedge to specifically manage a portiothefforeign
exchange risk exposure associated with certainotiolased subsidiaries’ non-functional currency deiated
assets and liabilities. We have not used instrusnenhedge against all foreign currency risks anedtlaerefore
not protected against all foreign currency fluced. As a result, our reported earnings may bectdtl by
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Moreawy favorable impacts to profit margins or fiogh results
from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange saee likely to be unsustainable over time.

We derive a substantial portion of revenues fromemergy drinks and competitive pressure in thergndrink
category could adversely affect our business amdaijng results.

A substantial portion of our sales are derived fiaum energy drinks, including in particular our Nber
Energy® brand energy drinks. Our DSD segment, wigcbomprised primarily of energy drinks, represent
96.1% of net sales for the year ended Decembe2@ll4. Any decrease in the sales of our Monster dgy®er
brand and other energy drinks could significantivexsely affect our future revenues and net income.
Historically, we have experienced substantial cditipa from new entrants in the energy drink catggas well
as from the energy shot category. Domestically,emargy drinks compete directly with Red Bull, Rstek, Full
Throttle, No Fear, Amp, Adrenaline Rush, NOS, Vendtedline, Red Devil, Xenergy, MiO Energy, Rip It,
Starbucks Double Shot, Starbucks Double Shot EnPigg Coffee, Rockstar Roasted, 5-Hour Energy Shots
Stacker 2, VPX Redline Energy Shots and many diherds. A number of companies who market and digti
iced teas, juice cocktails and enhanced watersffiereht packages, such as 16- and 20-ounce glasplastic
bottles, including Sobe, Sobe Life Water, Snappiézona, Fuse, Ocean Spray, Honest Tea, Gold Peak T
Activate, Neuro and Vitamin Water, have added dyetagredients to their products with a view to kRetng
their products as “functional” or energy beveragesis having “functional” benefits. In additiorertain large
companies such as TCCC and PepsiCo, market andtabdte products in that market segment suchepsiP
Max, Mountain Dew, Mountain Dew MDX, Mountain Dewidkstart and Vault. Internationally, our energy
drinks compete with Red Bull, Rockstar, Burn, V-EJye Lucozade, Adrenaline Rush, Relentless and nouse
local and private label brands that usually diffem country to country, such as Play, Power Plagther, Hell,
Shock, Tiger, Boost, Speed, TNT, Shark, Hot 6, Klkarergy, Nalu, Battery, Bullit, Flash Up, BlackphtStop,
Bomba, Semtex, Vive 100, Dark Dog, Speed, Guardhég, Sting and a host of other international loiarOur
Java Monster® product line competes directly witarBucks Frappuccino, Starbucks Double Shot, St&sbu
Double Shot Energy Plus Coffee and other Starbuokfee drinks, Rockstar Roasted, Seattle’s Bestitiynd

27



issimo coffee drinks. Our Muscle Monster® produige Icompetes directly with Muscle Milk, Core PowaBB
Pure Pro and Gatorade Recover Protein Shake. Civggiressures in the energy drink category camlpact
our revenues and/or we could experience price @masnd/or lower market share, any of which couldeha
material adverse effect on our business and resiutiperations.

We rely on bottlers and other contract packers smufacture our products. If we are unable to maimigood
relationships with our bottlers and contract packemd/or their ability to manufacture our produdtecomes
constrained or unavailable to us, our business dauiffer.

We do not directly manufacture our products, bstaad outsource such manufacturing to bottlers and
other contract packers. In the event of a disrupgind/or delay, we may be unable to procure altempacking
facilities at commercially reasonable rates anaVithin a reasonably short time period. In addititmere are
limited alternative packing facilities in our doriesand international markets with adequate capaaitd/or
suitable equipment for many of our products, intlgdour Monster Energy® brand energy drinks, ouadee
Tea® product line, our Hansen's® brand energy drirdur aseptic juice products, our Hubert's® Lenumsa
our Muscle Monster® product line, our Java Monst@r®duct line and certain of our other products.ilé/tve
believe a short-term disruption or delay in productwould not significantly affect our revenue, endgthy
disruption or delay in the production of any of lsymroducts could significantly adversely affect oevenues
from such products because alternative co-paclaniities in the United States and abroad with adéeg)long-
term capacity may not be available for such prosi@ither at commercially reasonable rates, andithirwa
reasonably short time period, if at all.

We rely on bottlers and distributors to distributer DSD segment products. If we are unable to maingood
relationships with our existing bottlers and dibtriors and/or secure such bottlers and distributots business
could suffer.

Many of our bottlers and distributors are affil@tevith and manufacture and/or distribute other soda
carbonated and non-carbonated brands and otheragevproducts (both alcoholic and non-alcoholiod|uding
energy drinks. In many cases, such products congetetly with our products.

The TCCC North American Bottlers, New CCE, Coca&CHlellenic and the AB Distributors are our
primary domestic and international distributorsoaf Monster Energy® products. However, in Febr0y5, in
accordance with its existing agreements with thdiegble third-party distributors, the Company seatices of
termination to the majority of the AB Distributoirs the U.S. for the termination of their respectdistribution
agreements, to be effective at various dates bewjrin March 2015. The associated distributiortsgwill be
transitioned to TCCC's network of owned or congdllbottlers/distributors and independent bottlingl a
distribution partners as of the effective date efmination of the AB Distributors’ rights in the @izable
territories (see Note 8 “Distribution Agreementsthe notes to consolidated financial statemeAs) result, if
we are unable to maintain good relationships with TCCC North American Bottlers and/or New CCE and/
Coca-Cola Hellenic, or if the TCCC North Americaatfers and/or New CCE and/or Coca-Cola Helleniaidb
effectively focus on marketing, promoting, selliagd distributing our products, sales of our Mon&rergy®
products could be adversely affected.

We continually seek to expand and/or improve thstrithution of our products by entering into
agreements with regional bottlers and/or other ctlirstore delivery distributors having establisheales,
marketing and distribution organizations.

The marketing efforts of our distributors are intpot for our success. If our DSD segment brandgepro
to be less attractive to our existing bottlers aigtributors and/or if we fail to attract additidrnaottlers and
distributors, and/or our bottlers and/or distrivatdo not market, promote and distribute our prigleffectively,
our business, financial condition and results afrafions could be adversely affected.
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We rely upon our ongoing relationships with our Reyor suppliers. If we are unable to source flavors on
acceptable terms from our key suppliers, we couffésdisruptions in our business.

Generally, flavor suppliers hold the proprietamghtis to their flavors. Consequently, we do not hidnee
list of flavor ingredients or formulae for our flars and certain of our concentrates readily aviltdus and we
may be unable to obtain comparable flavors or asnates from alternative suppliers on short notite/e must
replace a flavor supplier, we could experiencenmaptaary disruption in our ability to deliver prodsdo our
customers and/or a reduction in demand for our yotsdcontaining replacement flavors, which coulgeha
material adverse effect on our business and resutiperations.

Our customers are material to our success. If we unable to maintain good relationships with ouisting
customers, our business could suffer.

Unilateral decisions could be taken by our distidios, convenience chains, grocery chains, specialty
chain stores, club stores and other customerssmoxiinue carrying all or any of our products tttety are
carrying at any time, which could cause our businesuffer.

CCR accounted for approximately 29% of our netssfde both the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013. A decision by CCR, CCRC, New CCE, Wal-Mant,.I(including Sam’s Club), Coca-Cola Hellenic aoy
other large customer to decrease the amount pwdHasm us or to cease carrying our products cbakk a
material adverse effect on our financial conditma consolidated results of operations.

Increases in costs and/or shortages of raw matersaid/or ingredients and/or fuel and/or costs ofpeaking
could harm our business.

The principal raw materials used by us are alumimams, PET plastic bottles, as well as flavorggui
concentrates, sugar, sucralose, milk, cream, protietary ingredients and other packaging materihle costs
and availability of which are subject to fluctuai$o In addition, certain of our co-pack arrangemetiow such
co-packers to increase their charges based onrceftéheir own cost increases. We are uncertaiethdr the
prices of any of the above or any other raw matea ingredients, certain of which have recenibem, will
continue to rise or may rise in the future. We @ameure whether we will be able to pass any of socteases on
to our customers. We generally do not use hedggngeanents or alternative instruments to manageishke
associated with securing sufficient ingredientsaw materials although we do, from time to timeteennto
purchase agreements for a significant portion af amnnual anticipated requirements for certain raatemals
such as aluminum cans, apple juice, sugar andlesera

In addition, some of these raw materials, includoggtain sizes of cans, are available from a lichite
number of suppliers.

Our failure to accurately estimate demand for owodqucts could adversely affect our business andnfiral
results.

We may not correctly estimate demand for our preslu©ur ability to estimate demand for our product
is imprecise, particularly with regard to new proty and may be less precise during periods otirgmwth,
particularly in new markets. If we materially undstimate demand for our products or are unablestore
sufficient ingredients or raw materials includirmyt not limited to, aluminum cans, PET plastic lestt glass
bottles, labels, sucralose, flavors, dietary ingnets, juice concentrates, certain sweetenerseepféa, protein,
packaging materials or co-packing arrangementsmight not be able to satisfy demand on a short-teasis.
Moreover, industry-wide shortages of certain juioacentrates, dietary ingredients and sweetenesstieen and
could, from time to time in the future, be expeded. We generally do not use hedging agreemerdiesnative
instruments to manage this risk. Such shortagekl doterfere with and/or delay production of cemtaf our
products and could have a material adverse effeouo business and financial results.
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If we do not maintain sufficient inventory levetwéor if we are unable to deliver our products r austomers
in sufficient quantities, and/or if our customeos’ retailers’ inventory levels are too high, oureypting results
could be adversely affected.

If we do not accurately anticipate the future dethfor a particular product or the time it will take
obtain new inventory, our inventory levels may badequate and our results of operations may betinelya
impacted. If we fail to meet our shipping schedules could damage our relationships with distribsitand/or
retailers, increase our distribution costs andérse sales opportunities to be delayed or losirder to be able
to deliver our products on a timely basis, we n@ethaintain adequate inventory levels of the ddsm®ducts. If
the inventory of our products held by our distrdistand/or retailers is too high, they will notq#aorders for
additional products, which could unfavorably impaat future sales and adversely affect our opegatsults.

The costs of packaging supplies are subject teepricreases from time to time and we may be untalpass all
or some of such increased costs on to our customers

Many of our packaging supply contracts allow oupgiers to alter the costs they charge us for
packaging supplies based on changes in the coste afnderlying commodities that are used to predhose
packaging supplies, such as aluminum for cansn rfesi PET plastic bottles, and pulp and paper fantans
and/or trays. These changes in the prices we paguiopackaging supplies occur at certain predetesthtimes
that vary by product and supplier. In some casesang able to fix the prices of certain packagungpses and/or
commodities for a reasonable period. In other cagesdear the risk of increases in the costs ¢falpackaging
supplies, including the underlying costs of the pwodities that comprise these packaging supplies.d@/eot
use derivative instruments to manage this risthdfcosts of these packaging supplies increasejayebe unable
to pass these costs along to our customers throoghsponding adjustments to the prices we chavbeh
could have a material adverse effect on our resfiltgperations.

Our intellectual property rights are critical to osuccess, and the loss of such rights could naltgradversely
affect our business.

We own numerous trademarks that are very impottaatir business. We also own the copyright in and
to a portion of the content on the packaging of praducts. We regard our trademarks, copyrightd, samilar
intellectual property as critical to our succesg attempt to protect such intellectual propertytigh registration
and enforcement actions. However, there can be ssorance that other third parties will not infringe
misappropriate our trademarks, copyrights and ampitoprietary rights. If we lose some or all of mtellectual
property rights, our business may be materiallyeasiy affected.

If we are unable to maintain our brand image or gwot quality, our business may suffer.

Our success depends on our ability to build andhtami the brand image for our existing productsy ne
products and brand extensions. There can be noaassuthat our advertising, marketing and promation
programs will have the desired impact on our prétgluzrand image and on consumer preference and rema
Product quality and/or ingredient content issudicaey or lack thereof, real or imagined, or alégns of
product contamination, even if false or unfoundsmld tarnish the image of the affected brandsraag cause
consumers to choose other products. Furthermonre,bmand image or perceived product quality could be
adversely affected by litigation, unfavorable répdn the media, internet or elsewhere, studiegeineral and
regulatory or other governmental inquiries, in eaase whether involving our products or those of ou
competitors, as well as proposed or new legislaitecting our industry.

If we encounter product recalls, our business mdfes and we may incur material losses.

We may be required from time to time to recall pratd entirely or from specific co-packers, markats
batches if such products become contaminated, dainagjslabeled or otherwise materially not comgliaith
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applicable regulatory requirements. Product reaaldd adversely affect our profitability and ouabd image.
We do not maintain recall insurance.

If we are not able to retain the full-time serviagssenior management there may be an adverse effiecur
operations and/or our operating performance un# find suitable replacements.

Our business is dependent, to a large extent, thmrservices of our senior management. We do not
maintain key person life insurance on any membérguo senior management. The loss of services tbkeei
Mr. Sacks, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Bchlosberg, President and Chief Financial Officerany
other key members of our senior management cowldraely affect our business until suitable replasets can
be found. There may be a limited number of perslowith the requisite skills to serve in these posis and we
may be unable to locate or employ such qualifiedqenel on acceptable terms.

Climate change may negatively affect our business.

There is concern that a gradual increase in glabalage temperatures could cause significant clsange
weather patterns around the globe and an increaskei frequency and severity of natural disastérhile
warmer weather has historically been associateld iwitreased sales of our products, changing weatitterns
could result in decreased agricultural productiuityertain regions, which may limit availabilitpé/or increase
the cost of certain key ingredients, juice conaes and dietary ingredients used in our produotseased
frequency or duration of extreme weather conditiomsld also impair production capabilities, disropt supply
chain including, without limitation, the availalyliof, and/or result in higher prices for juice centrates, natural
flavors and dietary ingredients or impact demandia products. In addition, public expectationsreductions
in greenhouse gas emissions could result in inete@mergy, transportation and raw material costk raay
require us to make additional investments in faefliand equipment. As a result, the effects ahale change
could have a long-term adverse impact on our basiaed results of operations. Sales of our produags also
be influenced to some extent by weather conditiortie markets in which we operate. Weather coottimay
influence consumer demand for certain of our begesawhich could have an adverse effect on ourtsest
operations.

Potential changes in accounting practices and/aiateon may adversely affect our financial results.

We cannot predict the impact that future changesctounting standards or practices may have on our
financial results. New accounting standards co@dsued that change the way we record revenupenses,
assets and liabilities. These changes in accourgiagdards could adversely affect our reportedimgsn
Increases in direct and indirect income tax ratesccaffect after-tax income. Equally, increasesdirect taxes
(including environmental taxes pertaining to thepdisal of beverage containers and/or indirect taxes
beverages generally or energy drinks in particidatid affect our products’ affordability and reéumur sales.

Volatility of stock price may restrict sale opparities.

Our stock price is affected by a number of factarsluding stockholder expectations, financial fesu
the introduction of new products by us and our cetibgrs, general economic and market conditionsmeses
and projections by the investment community andipwomments by other parties as well as many dideors
including litigation, many of which are beyond oaontrol. We do not provide guidance on our future
performance, including, but not limited to, our eaues, margins, product mix, operating expensestancome.
We may be unable to achieve analysts’ net revemaon earnings forecasts, which are based on tweir
projected revenues, sales volumes and sales nman¥ product types and/or new products, certaintoth are
more profitable than others, as well as their ostineates of gross margin and operating expensaegeTdan be
no assurance that we will achieve any projectediseor mixes of product sales and/or revenues ampiss
margins and/or operating profits and/or net incoAga result, our stock price is subject to siguaifit volatility
and stockholders may not be able to sell our stdchttractive prices. In addition, periods of viikgtin the
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market price of our stock could result in the aiittn of securities class action litigation agaiast During the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, our stocle figh was $113.50 and our stock price low wasGiB3.

Provisions in our organizational documents and conby insiders may prevent changes in control eifech
changes would be beneficial to other stockholders.

Our organizational documents may limit changes ontiol. Furthermore, as of February 17, 2015,
Mr. Sacks and Mr. Schlosberg together may be dedméeneficially own and/or exercise voting contoekr
approximately 12% of our outstanding common stoCknsequently, Mr. Sacks and Mr. Schlosberg could
exercise significant control over matters submitteda vote of our stockholders, including electitigectors,
amending organizational documents and disapprassiigaordinary transactions such as a takeover ptieaven
though such actions may be favorable to the othemeon stockholders.

Our cash flow may not be sufficient to fund ouigléerm goals.

Although we currently have sufficient cash to suppar planned operating activities in the currgedr,
we may be unable to generate sufficient cash foaupport our capital expenditure plans and geragatating
activities in the future. In addition, the termsdéor availability of our credit facility and/or thectivities of our
debtors and/or creditors could affect the finan@hgur future growth.

Our investments in marketable securities are sulifecisks which may cause losses and affect thedity of
these investments.

At December 31, 2014, we had $370.3 million in casti cash equivalents, $781.1 million in short-term
investments and $42.9 million of long-term investise We have historically invested these amountb.i.
Treasury bills, certificates of deposit, commerg@aper, government agencies and municipal secui(tdich
may have an auction reset feature), variable rateatid notes and money market funds meeting cetiémia.
Certain of these investments are subject to gereedit, liquidity, market and interest rate risk$iese risks
associated with our investment portfolio may haweadverse effect on our future results of operatiiquidity
and financial condition.

If we fail to maintain effective disclosure consraind procedures and internal control over finahcgporting on
a consolidated basis, our stock price and investorfidence in our Company could be materially addessely
affected.

We are required to maintain both disclosure costesid procedures and internal control over financia
reporting that are effective for the purposes dbsdrin “Part Il, Item 9A — Controls and Proceduréswe fail
to do so, our business, results of operationsnéi@h condition or the value of our stock could haterially
harmed.

Litigation, legal proceedings, government and regmly inquiries and/or proceedings could exposetas
significant liabilities and thus negatively affextr financial results.

We are a party, from time to time, to various btign claims and legal proceedings, government and
regulatory inquiries and/or proceedings, includibgt not limited to, intellectual property, frauthfair business
practices, false advertising, product liability,edch of contract claims, securities actions andesiodder
derivative actions. Material legal proceedingsdascribed more fully in “Part |, Item 3 — Legal Peedings” and
in “Part 11, Item 8, Note 10” to our consolidateddncial statements contained in this Form 10-K.

Defending these proceedings can result in sigmficangoing expenditures and the diversion of our

management’s time and attention from the operatfoour business, which could have a negative effecbur
business operations. Our failure to successfulfgriteor settle any litigation or legal proceediegsild result in
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liabilities that, to the extent not covered by msurance, could have a material adverse effedurrfinancial
condition, revenue and profitability, and could athe market value of our common stock to decline.

We must continually maintain, protect and/or upgradir information technology systems.

Information technology helps us operate efficieniiyerface with customers, maintain financial aecy
and efficiency, and accurately produce our findnsfatements. If we do not allocate and effectiveBnage the
resources necessary to build and sustain the ptepienology infrastructure, we could be subjedramsaction
errors, processing inefficiencies, the loss of awgrs, business disruptions, or the loss of or dana
intellectual property through security breaches;luding cybersecurity attacks. Cybersecurity atacke
evolving and include, but are not limited to, malics software, attempts to gain unauthorized adeedata, and
other electronic security breaches that could teatisruptions in systems, unauthorized releasmofidential or
otherwise protected information and corruption afad We believe that we have adopted appropriatesunes to
mitigate potential risks to our technology and aperations from these information technology-relate
disruptions. However, given the unpredictabilitytbé timing, nature and scope of such disruptieves,could
potentially be subject to operational interruptialtgmage to our brand image and private data exposur
Moreover, if our data management systems, including SAP enterprise resource planning system, do no
effectively collect, store, process and report vate data for the operation of our business, whethe to
equipment malfunction or constraints, software aeficies, cybersecurity attack, or human error, afility to
effectively plan, forecast and execute our busimass and comply with applicable laws and regutatiavill be
impaired, perhaps materially. Any such impairmemild materially and adversely affect our finandandition,
results of operations, cash flows and the timetin@#th which we report our internal and externaémgping
results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our owned corporate office is located at 1 Mon®¥ay, Corona, California 92879, and consists of an
approximately 141,000 square-foot, free standingstory building. Our main warehouse and distribatspace
is located in a leased 346,495 square-foot building€orona, California. In addition, we lease siigaintly
smaller office and warehouse space both domestiaatl in certain international locations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On October 17, 2012, Wendy Crossland and Richawlriter filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court of the
State of California, County of Riverside, stylédendy Crossland and Richard Fournier v. MonstereBage
Corporation against the Company claiming that the death eir th4 year old daughter (Anais Fournier) was
caused by her consumption of two 24-ounce Monsteerdy® drinks over the course of two days in
December 2011. The plaintiffs allege strict prodiiability, negligence, fraudulent concealment, dufe of
implied warranties and wrongful death. The plafatiflaim general damages in excess of $25,000 andiye
damages. The Company filed a demurrer and a mutisirike the plaintiffs’ complaint on November 2412,
and the plaintiffs filed a first amended complaintDecember 19, 2012. The Company filed its ansavére first
amended complaint on June 7, 2013. The partienicate a court ordered mediation on January 23, 2014.
Discovery has commenced and trial has been scleedofeAugust 21, 2015. The Company believes that th
plaintiffs’ complaint is without merit and plansvigorous defense. The Company also believes thatsanh
damages, if awarded, would not have a materialradveffect on the Company'’s financial position esuits of
operations.

The Company has also been named as a defendattiteincmmplaints containing similar allegations to
those presented in the Fournier lawsuit, each aflwthe Company believes is also without merit ewodild not
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have a material adverse effect on the Companyantial position or results of operations in the ntvany
damages were awarded.

Securities Litigatior- On September 11, 2008, a federal securities @etson complaint styleGunha v.
Hansen Natural Corp., et alvas filed in the United States District Court foe Central District of California (the
“District Court”). On September 17, 2008, a secdederal securities class action complaint styBrdwn v.
Hansen Natural Corp., et alvas also filed in the District Court. After thedDict Court consolidated the two
actions and appointed the Structural Ironworkersal®&nion #1 Pension Fund as lead plaintiff, a @tdated
Complaint for Violations of Federal Securities Lawss filed on August 28, 2009 (the “Consolidated
Class Action Complaint”).

The Consolidated Class Action Complaint purportedbe brought on behalf of a class of purchasers of
the Company’s stock during the period November@)62through November 8, 2007 (the “Class Periold”).
named as defendants the Company, Rodney C. Sadksn H. Schlosberg, and Thomas J. Kelly. Plaintiff
principally alleged that, during the Class Perithdy, defendants made false and misleading statemedatsg to
the Company'’s distribution coordination agreemeawith Anheuser-Busch, Inc. (“AB”) and its sales dlfted”
energy drink lines, and engaged in sales of sharethe Company on the basis of material non-public
information. Plaintiff also alleged that the Comparfinancial statements for the second quarte2Gff7 did not
include certain promotional expenses. The Cons@liti€lass Action Complaint alleged violations otiBms
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act @841 as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder, and sought an unspecifieniiat of damages.

The District Court dismissed the Consolidated Chstton Complaint, with leave to amend, on July 12,
2010. Plaintiff thereafter filed a Consolidated Arded Class Action Complaint for Violations of Fealer
Securities Laws on August 27, 2010 (the “Amendess€Action Complaint”). While similar in many resfgeto
the Consolidated Class Action Complaint, the Amendélass Action Complaint dropped certain of the
allegations set forth in the Consolidated Classolc€omplaint and made certain new allegationduiting that
the Company engaged in “channel stuffing” during tBlass Period that rendered false or misleadieg th
Company’s reported sales results and certain cttaéements made by the defendants. In additiom ibnger
named Thomas J. Kelly as a defendant.

On September 4, 2012, the District Court dismissadain of the claims in the Amended Class Action
Complaint, including plaintiff's allegations relag to promotional expenses, but denied defendambsion to
dismiss with regard to the majority of plaintifitdaims, including plaintiff's channel stuffing aflations. Plaintiff
filed a motion seeking class certification on Debenb, 2012, which the court denied, without prijedon
January 17, 2014.

Following a mediation conducted by an independesdiator, the Company entered into a Stipulation of
Settlement on April 16, 2014 to resolve the litigat Following a fairness hearing, on January Z815, the
District Court granted final approval of the seatilnt and entered a final judgment dismissing th®m@avith
prejudice.

Under the terms of the settlement, certain of then@any’s insurance carriers paid $16.25 milliowo iab
escrow account for distribution to a settlemensslaertified by the District Court for settlemguirposes only
and consisting of all persons who purchased omaike acquired the Company’s stock during the ClRessod
(with certain exclusions as specified in the setdat agreement). Under the settlement, defendemts/arious
of their related persons and entities receivedladlease of all claims that were or could haverbbrought in
the action as well as all claims that arise outao§ based upon or relate to the allegations, ddioss, facts,
representations, omissions or other matters indolwvethe complaints filed in the action or any staént
communicated to the public during the Class Peaod, the purchase, acquisition or sale of the Cosipatock
during the Class Period.
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The settlement contained no admission of any ligtilr wrongdoing on the part of the defendantghea
of whom continues to deny all of the allegationaiagt them and believes that the claims were withoerit.
Because the full amount of the settlement was pgithe Company’s insurance carriers, the settlerdihhot
have an effect on the Company’s results of oparatio

State Attorney General Inquiry In July 2012, the Company received a subpoema the Attorney
General for the State of New York in connectionhwiis investigation concerning the Company’s adsieng,
marketing, promotion, ingredients, usage and shits dlonster Energy® brand of energy drinks. Prithn of
documents pursuant to that subpoena was completguproximately May 2014.

On August 6, 2014, the Attorney General for theeStd New York issued a second subpoena seeking
additional documents and the deposition of a Compganployee. On September 8, 2014, the Company mioved
quash the second subpoena. The motion has begrbfidgfed and argument has been scheduled on thiermo
for March 17, 2015. It is unknown what, if any,iantthe state attorney general may take againsCtrapany,
the relief which may be sought in the event of angh proceeding or whether such proceeding could ha
material adverse effect on the Company’s busiriges)cial condition or results of operations.

San Francisco City Attorney Litigation On October 31, 2012, the Company received denmritequest
for information from the City Attorney for the Citgnd County of San Francisco concerning the Cormipany
advertising and marketing of its Monster Energy@nar of energy drinks and specifically concerning shafety
of its products for consumption by adolescenta latter dated March 29, 2013, the San FrancisgoATiorney
threatened to bring suit against the Company didt not agree to take the following five steps indmagely:

() “Reformulate its products to lower the caffeicentent to safe levels”; - (ii) “Provide adequatarning
labels”; (iii) “Cease promoting over-consumptionnmarketing”; (iv) “Cease use of alcohol and drufigrences in
marketing”; and (v) “Cease targeting minors.”

(i) The Company Actior On April 29, 2013, the Company and its whollynad subsidiary, Monster
Energy Company, filed a complaint for declaratong &njunctive relief against the San Francisco @itiorney
(the “Company Action”) in United States District @bfor the Central District of California (the “G&al District
Court”), styledMonster Beverage Corp., et al. v. Dennis HerréFae Company sought a declaration from the
Central District Court that the San Francisco Gitjorney’s investigation and demands are imperriesand
preempted, subject to the doctrine of primary fliggon, are unconstitutional in that they violake First and
Fourteenth Amendments’ prohibitions against conggeipeech, content-based speech and commercighspee
are impermissibly void-for-vagueness, and/or violdte Commerce Clause. On June 3, 2013, the Citrrgy
filed a motion to dismiss the Company Action, anguin part that the complaint should be dismisselight of
the San Francisco Action (described below) fileavay 6, 2013. On August 22, 2013, the Central stCourt
granted in part and denied in part the City Attgieemotion. On October 17, 2013 (after the San E&isoo
Action, described below, was remanded to San FsaacBuperior Court), the City Attorney filed a reee
motion to dismiss the Company Action and on Decertbe 2013, the Central District Court granted @iey
Attorney’s renewed motion, dismissing the Compamgign. The Company filed a Notice of Appeal to tieth
Circuit on December 18, 2013. The Company filedbjiening brief on November 28, 2014. The City Atgy’'s
filed an answering brief on February 13, 2015, #dred Company’s reply brief is currently due on Fely27,
2015.

(i) The San Francisco Actior- On May 6, 2013, the San Francisco City Attorfilad a complaint for
declaratory and injunctive relief, civil penaltiesd restitution for alleged violation of CaliforfgaUnfair
Competition Law, Business & Professions Code sesti/y200¢t seq., styled People Of The State Of California
ex rel. Dennis Herrera, San Francisco City Attorrveyonster Beverage Corporatigim San Francisco Superior
Court (the “San Francisco Action”). The City Attesnalleges that the Company (1) mislabeled its yetsdas a
dietary supplement, in violation of California’s @man Food, Drug and Cosmetic Law, California Heélt
Safety Code sections 109875 et. seq.; (2) is gelim “adulterated” product because caffeine isgeterally
recognized as safe (“GRAS") due to the alleged taHckcientific consensus concerning the safetheflévels of
caffeine in the Company'’s products; and (3) is gedain unfair and misleading business practicegumx its
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marketing (a) does not disclose the health risks ¢émergy drinks pose for children and teens;dtg to warn
against and promotes unsafe consumption; (c) imtlgligromotes mixing of energy drinks with alcolal drugs;
and (d) is deceptive because it includes unsubatedtclaims about the purported special benefitssdkiller”
ingredients and “energy blend.” The City Attorneught a declaration that the Company has engagadfair
and unlawful business acts and practices in vimatf the Unfair Competition Law; an injunction fno
performing or proposing to perform any acts in aimn of the Unfair Competition Law; restitutionda civil
penalties. On June 3, 2013, the Company remove&aneFrancisco Action to the United States Distdiotirt
for the Northern District of California (the “Nortn District Court”). On July 3, 2013, the City éthey filed a
motion to remand the San Francisco Action backtatescourt. On September 18, 2013, the NorthertriBtis
Court granted the City Attorney’s motion to remahe San Francisco Action back to state court.

On January 15, 2014, the Company filed a demuor@ntl motion to strike allegations in the complaint
in the San Francisco Action. On March 5, 2014,Goert overruled the demurrer, granted the motiosttize as
to one theory for relief pleaded by the City Atteynand lifted the stay on discovery.

On March 20, 2014, the City Attorney filed an amethccomplaint, adding allegations supporting the
theory for relief as to which the Court had granteel motion to strike. On April 18, 2014, the Comypdiled a
renewed motion to strike, challenging the theonyrédief previously rejected by the Court, as wasdla motion
asking the Court to bifurcate and/or stay claimistiieg to the safety of Monster Energy® drinks, ¢ieg
resolution of the ongoing FDA investigation of thafety and labeling of food products to which dateis
added. On May 22, 2014, the Court denied the Cogipanotion to strike and motion to bifurcate andétay
claims relating to safety.

On June 16, 2014, the Company filed a petitionifior of mandate with the Court of Appeal, asking éo
writ directing the trial court to vacate its ord#gnying the Company’s motion to bifurcate and/ayghe San
Francisco Action, and instead to stay proceedirgglipng FDA'’s investigation. On June 19, 2014, tlven® of
Appeal denied the petition. On June 25, 2014, tbeniany filed a petition for review with the Califoa
Supreme Court. On July 23, 2014, the Supreme @awmitd the petition.

On August 27, 2014, the Court issued an ordemsgttie case for a two-week bench trial beginning on
February 8, 2016. On September 5, 2014, the CitgrAey filed a second amended complaint, adding $ton
Energy Company as a defendant. The Company and tbtoBasergy Company filed answers to the second
amended complaint on October 4, 2014 and Novene2dl14, respectively. A case management confenence
scheduled for March 10, 2015. Discovery is ongoing.

The Company denies that it has violated the Ur@aimpetition Law or any other law and believes that
the City Attorney’s claims and demands are preedhptel unconstitutional, as alleged in the actienGompany
filed in the Central District Court. The Companyeinds to vigorously defend against this lawsuitthd time, no
evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable @ute or range of potential loss can be expressed.

In addition to the above matters, the Company leas Inamed as a defendant in various false adwertisi
putative class actions and in a private attorngyegd action. In these actions, plaintiffs allepattdefendants
misleadingly labeled and advertised Monster Enerdiy@nd products that allegedly were ineffective tloe
advertised benefits (including, but not limited & allegation that the products do not hydrataceertised
because they contain caffeine). The plaintiffstfartallege that the Monster Energy® brand prodattssue are
unsafe because they contain one or more ingredibatsallegedly could result in illness, injury death. In
connection with these product safety allegatiohs, plaintiffs claim that the product labels did rpybvide
adequate warnings and/or that the Company didnotide sufficiently specific statements with reggeaontra-
indications and/or adverse reactions associatdu ttvit consumption of its energy drink productsl(iding, but
not limited to, claims that certain ingredients, emhconsumed individually or in combination with eth
ingredients, could result in high blood pressuadpipations, liver damage or other negative heeftbcts and/or
that the products themselves are unsafe). Basdllese allegations, the plaintiffs assert claimsviotation of
state consumer protection statutes, including umf@npetition and false advertising statutes, amdofeach of
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warranty and unjust enrichment. In their prayenrs rigief, the plaintiffs seek, inter alia, competasg and

punitive damages, restitution, attorneys’ fees,, amgome cases, injunctive relief. The Companyardg these
cases and allegations as having no merit. Furthesntioe Company is subject to litigation from titeetime in

the normal course of business, including intellatproperty litigation and claims from terminatadtdbutors.

The Company evaluates, on a quarterly basis, dewelots in legal proceedings and other matters that
could cause an increase or decrease in the ambtim bability that is accrued, if any, or in tleount of any
related insurance reimbursements recorded. As otmber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company’
consolidated balance sheets include accrued logsgencies of approximately $3.7 million and $1imhlion,
respectively, and receivables for insurance reis¢ments of approximately $0.0 million and $16.2Hioni,
respectively. Although it is not possible to predite ultimate outcome of such litigation, basedtloa facts
known to the Company, management believes that [gugdttion in the aggregate will likely not havenaaterial
adverse effect on the Company’s financial positoresults of operations.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Principal Market

The Company’s common stock began trading in the-thescounter market on November 8, 1990 and
was subsequently quoted on the Nasdaq Capital Mankder the symbol “HANS”. On July 5, 2007, the
Company’s common stock began trading on the Na&daljal Select Market under the same symbol, “HANS".
On January 5, 2012, stockholders of the Companyoapd the Company’'s name change from Hansen Natural
Corporation to Monster Beverage Corporation. Initamid on January 9, 2012, the Company’s commoksto
began trading under the symbol “MNST”. As of Febyubs, 2015, there were 170,016,322 shares of the
Company’s common stock outstanding held by apprateéiy 247 holders of record. The holders of reawghot
include those stockholders whose shares are hettofd by banks, brokers and other financial iastins.

Stock Price and Dividend Information

The following table sets forth high and low per rehaales price of our common stock for the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31, 2014 High Low
First Quarter $ 7563 $ 66.31
Second Quarter $ 73.38 $ 63.00
Third Quarter $ 9493 $ 63.82
Fourth Quarter $ 11350 $ 89.56
Year Ended December 31, 2013 High Low
First Quarter $ 5434 $  45.3¢
Second Quarter $ 62.94 $ 47.1¢
Third Quarter $ 66.12 $  51.8¢
Fourth Quarter $ 68.33 $ 51.1f

The per share sales prices of our common stoclogbtabove represent bid quotations between dgaler
do not include retail markups, mark-downs or consiniss and bid quotations may not necessarily reptes
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actual transactions and “real time” sale pricese Bource of the bid information is the NASDAQ Stock
Market, Inc.

We have not paid cash dividends to our stockholdarse our inception and do not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

On April 7, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directarghorized a new share repurchase program for the
repurchase of up to $200.0 million of the Companysstanding common stock (the “April 2013 Repusgha
Plan”). During the year ended December 31, 2014 simares of common stock were purchased under the
April 2013 Repurchase Plan. During the year endedeinber 31, 2013, the Company purchased 0.95 millio
shares of common stock at an average purchase qfri$86.98 per share for a total amount of $54.Riani
(excluding broker commissions).

During the year ended December 31, 2014, 0.09anilhares were repurchased from employees in lieu
of cash payments for options exercised or withimgjdaxes due for a total amount of $8.2 million. i&Isuch
purchases are considered common stock repurchsgsare not counted as purchases against ourraagtio
share repurchase programs, including the April ZR&purchase Plan.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information as ofdeenber 31, 2014 with respect to shares of our cammo
stock that may be issued under our equity compiemsplans.

Number of securities
remaining available for future
issuance under equity

Number of securities to Weighted-average compensation plans
be issued upon exercise exercise price of (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in column
warrants and rights  warrants and rights ()
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by stockholders 13,214,554 $19.73 11,384,395
Equity compensation plans not
approved by stockholders - - -
Total 13,214,554 $19.73 11,384,395
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Performance Graph

The following graph shows a five-year comparisogwhulative total returns:

COMPARIZSONOF CUMULATIVEFIVEYEAR TOTALRETURN
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—+— Monster Beverage Corporation

$500 —8— S&P 500 Index
$400 ==-k--- Peer Group
$300
$200
$100

50 r . T .

12/2008 1212010 1212011 1212012 1212013 1212014

1Annual return assumes reinvestment of dividendsm@ative total return assumes an initial investh@#r$100 on December 31, 2009.
The Company’s current self-selected peer grouprispeised of TCCC, DPS Group, National Beverage G@ton, Jones Soda Company
and Cott Corporation.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The consolidated statements of operations datéodét below with respect to each of the fiscal gear
ended December 31, 2012 through 2014 and the lmalsimeet data as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, are
derived from our audited consolidated financiatesteents included herein, and should be read inucctipn
with those financial statements and notes thegetd, with Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofFRcial
Condition and Results of Operations included ag IRdtem 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. &h
consolidated statements of operations data fofishal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010henidatiance
sheet data as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2@l@exived from the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements not included herein.

(in thousands, except

per share information) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Gross sales*! $2,827,092 $ 2,586,53 $ 2,373,499 $1,950,490 $ 1,488,516
Net sales $2,464,867 $ 2,246,421 $ 2,060,702 $1,703,230 $1,303,942
Gross profit? $1,339,810 $ 1,172,93 $ 1,065,656 $ 894,309 $ 680,240
Gross profit as a percentage to net sales 54.4% 52.2% 51.7% 52.5% 52.2%
Operating income2 $ 747505 $ 57291t $ 550,623 $ 456,423 $ 347,814
Net incom $ 483,185 $ 338,66 $ 340,020 $ 286,219 $ 212,029
Net income per common she

Basic $ 289 $ 20 $ 196 $ 162 $ 1.20

Diluted $ 277 $ 19t % 18 $ 153 $ 1.14

Cash, cash equivalents and investment$1,194,397 $ 623,38{ $ 340,949 $ 793,807 $ 643,680
Total assets $1,938,875 $ 1,420,50° $ 1,043,325 $1,362,399 $1,146,950

Stockholders’ equity $1,515,150 $ 992,27¢ $ 644,397 $ 979,158 $ 828,398

lIncludes $15.0 million, $14.8 million, $13.2 mil, $13.0 million and $10.0 million for the yearsded December 31, 2014, 2013,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to¢legnition of deferred revenue.

2Includes ($0.2) million, $10.8 million, $1.5 mdk, $1.1 million and $0.3 million for the years eddDecember 31, 2014, 2013,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to edipars attributable to the costs associated witiminating existing distributors.

*Gross sales is used internally by management aisdigator of and to monitor operating performanagluding sales performance
of particular products, salesperson performancegdurct growth or declines and overall Company perfance. The use of gross
sales allows evaluation of sales performance befloeceffect of any promotional items, which cankr@stain performance issues.
We therefore believe that the presentation of gsadss provides a useful measure of our operaterfppmance. Gross sales is not a
measure that is recognized under generally acceptedunting principles in the United States of Ans(*GAAP”) and should not
be considered as an alternative to net sales, whictietermined in accordance with GAAP, and shawt be used alone as an
indicator of operating performance in place of sates. Additionally, gross sales may not be coniglarto similarly titted measures
used by other companies as gross sales has besmedidfy our internal reporting practices. In additi, gross sales may not be
realized in the form of cash receipts as promotiggayments and allowances may be deducted from gragmeceived from certain
customers (See “Part Il, ltem 7 — Results of Ogerat”).
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analyfig-inancial Condition and Results of Operations
(“MD&A") is provided as a supplement to — and shibble read in conjunction with — our financial staémts
and the accompanying notes (“Notes”) included int Paltem 8 of this Form 10-K. This discussionntains
forward-looking statements that are based on manages current expectations, estimates and projestabout
our business and operations. Our actual results diffgr materially from those currently anticipateshd
expressed in such forward-looking statements. $eeward-Looking Statements” and “Part I. ltem 1/Risk
Factors.”

This overview provides our perspective on the iitilial sections of MD&A. MD&A includes the
following sections:

« Our Business— a general description of our businefise value drivers of our business;
opportunities and risks facing our Company;

» Results of Operatiol — an analysis of our consolidated results of opematitor the three yee
presented in our financial statements;

« Sales- details of our sales measured on a quarterig baboth dollars and cases;
« Inflation — information about the impact that inflation m@ymay not have on our results;

« Liquidity and Capital Resourc — an analysis of our cash flows, sources and ofasa$ anc
contractual obligations;

« Accounting Policies and Pronouncem¢ — a discussion of accounting policies that requitgcet
judgments and estimates including newly issuedw@ating pronouncemen

« Forward-Looking Statements- cautionary information about forwalobking statements and
description of certain risks and uncertainties tt@ild cause our actual results to differ matey
from the Company’s historical results or our cutrexpectations or projections; and

» Market Rsks — information about market risks and risk managemé¢See “Forward-ooking
Statements” and “Part I, Item 7A — Qualitative @dantitative Disclosures About Market Risks”).

Our Business
Acquisitions and Divestitures

On August 14, 2014, the Company and TCCC enter¢a definitive agreements for the TCCC
Transaction. Pursuant to the TCCC Transaction Agests, the Company will reorganize into a new hgdi
company by merging Merger Sub into the Companyh wie Company surviving as a wholly owned subsjdiar
of NewCo. In the merger, each outstanding shamh@iCompany’s common stock will be converted iobe
share of NewCo’'s common stock.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the TCCGh3aation Agreements, upon the closing of the TCCC
Transaction, (1) NewCo will issue to TCCC newlyuisd shares of common stock representing approXynate
16.7% of the total number of shares of issued ansgtanding NewCo common stock (after giving effiecthe
new issuance) and TCCC will have the right to natertwo individuals (reduced to one upon the eaoli€i) 36
months after the closing of the TCCC Transactiot @ TCCC's equity interest in NewCo exceedind/2of
the outstanding shares of NewCo common stock) teQ¢es Board of Directors, (2) TCCC will transfes it
global energy drink business (including the NOS@&I| Fhrottle®, Burn®, Mother®, Play® and Power P&y
and Relentless® brands) to NewCo, and the Compahytransfer its non-energy drink business (inchgli
Hansen's® Natural Sodas, Peace Tea®, Hubert's® bauh® and Hansen’s® Juice Products) to TCCC, (3) the
Company and TCCC will amend their current distidutcoordination agreements, which will contemplate
expanding distribution of the Company’s product® indditional territories pursuant to long-termtulsition
agreements with TCCC’s network of owned or contalbottlers/distributors and independent bottlimgl a
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distribution partners, and (4) TCCC will make a cash payment of $2.15 billion to the Company @ $625.0
million of which will be held in escrow, subject telease upon achievement of milestones relatingedransfer
of distribution rights).

The waiting period under the HSR Act with respecthe TCCC Transaction expired on October 15,
2014, and all necessary approvals or consents fiooaign antitrust authorities have been obtaindte €losing
of the transaction is subject to customary closingditions and is expected to close in the secaradtgr of
2015.

Overview

We develop, market, sell and distribute “alterngltiveverage category beverages primarily under the

following brand names:

Monster Energy®

Monster Rehab®

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous Technology®
Java Monster®

Muscle Monster®

Punch Monster®

Hansen's®

Hansen’s Natural Cane Soda®
Junior Juice®

Blue Sky®

Hubert's®

Peace Tea®

Our Monster Energy® drinks, which represented 93.8266% and 92.3% of our net sales for the years

Monster Energy®

Lo-Carb Monster Energy®

Monster Assault®

Juice Monster™ Khaos®

Juice Monster™ Ripper®

Monster Energy® Absolutely Zero

Monster Energy® Import

Punch Monster® Baller’s Blend (formerly Dub Editjon
Punch Monster® Mad Dog (formerly Dub Edition)
Monster Rehab® Tea + Lemonade + Energy
Monster Rehab® Rojo Tea + Energy

Monster Rehab® Green Tea + Energy

Monster Rehab® Tea + Orangeade + Energy
Monster Rehab® Tea + Pink Lemonade + Energy
Muscle Monster® Vanilla

Muscle Monster® Chocolate

Muscle Monster® Coffee

Muscle Monster® Strawberry

Muscle Monster® Peanut Butter Cup

Monster Energy® Valentino Rossi

ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsagtpréharily include the following:

Java Monster® Kona Blend
Java Monster® Loca Moca®
Java Monster® Mean Bean®
Java Monster® Vanilla Light
Java Monster® Irish Blend®
Java Monster® Cappuccino

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous
Technology® Super Dry™

Monster Energy Extra Strength Nitrous
Technology® Anti-Gravity®

Monster Cuba-Lima®

Monster Energy® Zero Ultra

Monster Energy® Ultra Blue™

Monster Energy® Ultra Red™

Monster Energy® Ultra Black™

Monster Energy® Ultra Sunrise™

Monster Energy® Unleaded
Ubermonster® Energy Brew™

M3® Monster Energy® Super Concentrate

We have two operating and reportable segments, Ipabieect Store Delivery (“DSD”), the principal

products of which comprise energy drinks, and Waweb (“Warehouse”), the principal products of which
comprise juice-based and soda beverages. The D8mese develops, markets and sells products priynaril
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through an exclusive distributor network, wherdas Warehouse segment develops, markets and setlagts

primarily direct to retailers. Following the consonation of the TCCC Transaction, the Company ardieip that
it will have two operating and reporting segmefsncentrate, the principal products of which wikely include

the various energy drink brands transferred toGbenpany from TCCC, and Finished Products, the jpaic
products of which will likely include the Companysonster Energy® drink products that currently makethe

majority of the DSD segment.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we cadito expand our existing product lines and flavors
and further developed our markets. In particulag,centinued to focus on developing and marketingtages
that fall within the category generally describexdtie “alternative” beverage category. During tlearyended
December 31, 2014, we introduced the following picts:

. Punch Monster® Baller's Blend (formerly Dub Edit)Jadanuary 2014).

. Punch Monster® Mad Dog (formerly Dub Edition) (Janu2014).

. Peace Tea Beverage Company™ Viva Mango™, a maagoréd juice drink (February 2014).

. Monster Energy® Valentino Rossi, a carbonated gnérgk (May 2014).

. Hubert's® Organic Lemonade, a line of certifiedamg lemonades in a variety of flavors (May 2014).

. Monster Energy® Ultra Black™, a carbonated enemgykdvhich contains zero calories and zero st
launched as a summer promotion with 7-eleven (J0h4).

. Monster Energy® Unleaded, a carbonated energy dvinikh contains no caffeine (August 2014).

. Monster Energy® Ultra Sunrise™, a carbonated energyk which contains zero calories and zero
sugar (September 2014).

In the normal course of business we discontinugiteproducts and/or product lines. Those prodacts
product lines discontinued in 2014, either inditly or in aggregate, did not have a material aslvémpact on
our financial position, results of operations quidity.

Our gross sales of $2,827.1 million for the yeadezh December 31, 2014 represented record annual
sales. The vast majority of our gross sales arweatkbfrom our Monster Energy® brand energy drinksoss
sales of our Monster Energy® brand energy drinksev#2,649.3 million for the year ended December2814,
an increase of $236.9 million, or 98.5% of our @eincrease in gross sales for the year ended rDeee31,
2014. Any decrease in gross sales of our Monsterdy® brand energy drinks could have a signifiGhterse
effect on our future revenues and net income. Cdithyge pressure in the energy drink category coailsb
adversely affect our operating results.

Our DSD segment represented 96.1%, 95.6% and 96f4r consolidated net sales for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.\Wanehouse segment represented 3.9%, 4.4% andcf.6%
our consolidated net sales for the years endedrbleee31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Our sales and marketing strategy for all our beyesais to focus our efforts on developing brand
awareness through image enhancing programs andigiresdmpling. We use our branded vehicles and other
promotional vehicles at events where we offer sammf our products to consumers. We utilize “pushi-p
methods to enhance shelf and display space expwssades outlets (including racks, coolers anddbaoolers),
advertising, in-store promotions and in-store phaeet of point-of-sale materials to encourage demfaoch
consumers for our products. We also support oundzravith prize promotions, price promotions, coritjgts,
endorsements from selected public and sports figyrersonality endorsements (including from telewisand
other well-known sports personalities), couponsang and sponsorship of selected causes, eahtstes and
teams. In-store posters, outdoor posters, prirdjorand television advertising (directly and thrbugur
sponsorships and endorsements) and coupons malyealsed to promote our brands.

We have historically marketed our Monster Energy®nsen’'s® and Blue Energy® energy drink
products as dietary supplements in accordance thithstatutory definition of “dietary supplementt $erth in
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the FFDC Act. However, as permitted under the FFRE€ and FDA regulations, we transitioned the laigel
and marketing of these energy drink products froetady supplements to conventional foods beginmmthe
first quarter of 2013.

We believe that one of the keys to success in éiverdage industry is differentiation, making ourrus
and products visually distinctive from other beyms on the shelves of retailers. We review our yetedand
packaging on an ongoing basis and, where practcaleavor to make them different, better and unighe
labels and graphics for many of our products adesigned from time to time to maximize their vikipiand
identification, wherever they may be placed inaspmhich we will continue to reevaluate from titadime.

All of our beverage products are manufactured byoua third party bottlers and co-packers situated
throughout the United States and abroad, underaeparrangements with each party.

Our growth strategy includes expanding our intéomatl business. Gross sales to customers outsile th
United States amounted to $657.9 million, $580.6iani and $513.9 million for the years ended Decentil,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Such sales aggyoximately 23%, 23% and 22% of gross saleshioyears
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respgctivel

Our customers are primarily full service beveragstridbutors, retail grocery and specialty chains,
wholesalers, club stores, drug chains, mass mediders, convenience chains, health food distrils,itiwod
service customers and the military. Gross salemutovarious customer types for the years ended iDieee31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 are reflected below. Such nmtion includes sales made by us directly to thetacoer
types concerned, which include our full service dvage distributors in the United States. Such dalivice
beverage distributors in turn sell certain of owducts to some of the same customer types listdoivb We
limit our description of our customer types to ud# only our sales to our full service distributarghout
reference to such distributors’ sales to their awstomers.

2014 2013 2012
Full service distributors 62% 63% 63%
Club stores, drug chains & mass merchandisers 9% 9% 9%
Outside the U.S. 23% 23% 22%
Retail grocery, specialty chains and wholesalers % 4 3% 4%
Other 2% 2% 2%

Our customers include the TCCC North American Bostl New CCE, certain bottlers of Coca-Cola
Hellenic, Swire Coca-Cola, USA and certain othec&Qola independent bottlers, Asahi, Kalil Bottli@goup,
Wal-Mart, Inc. (including Sam’s Club) Costco ané #B Distributors. In February 2015, in accordangth its
existing agreements with the applicable AB Distiis, the Company sent notices of termination éortfajority
of the AB Distributors in the U.S. for the termiimat of their respective distribution agreementsyeceffective at
various dates beginning in March 2015. The assatidistribution rights will be transitioned to TCG@ network
of owned or controlled bottlers/distributors andependent bottling and distribution partners athefeffective
date of termination of the AB Distributors’ righia the applicable territories (see Note 8 “Disttibn
Agreements” in the notes to consolidated finansiatements). CCR accounted for approximately 2% and
28% of our net sales for the years ended Decenthe?(B4, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We continue to incur expenditures in connectiorhwilite development and introduction of new products
and flavors.

Value Drivers of our Business
We believe that the key value drivers of our bussriaclude the following:

« International Growtl — The introduction, development and sustained piafitg of our Monste
Energy® brand irdrnationally remains a key value driver for ourpmyate growth. The TCC
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Transaction is expected to secure fully aligneceasdo TCCC's leading global distribution sys:
which we anticipate will accelerate our internaibperformance. In additionye anticipate that tl
TCCC Transaction will provide scale and platfornmexgies in a range of international geogray
where we currently have limited presence, whiclexpected to increase our energy business
number of international markets and establishangtpresence in additional countries.

« Profitable Growtl —We believe “functional” value added brands propstpported by marketing a
innovation, targeted to a diverse consumer base grofitable growth. We continue to broadem ou
family of brands. In particular, we are expanding energy drinks, including through the additio
TCCC's existing energy product lines in connectwith the TCCC Transaction, to provide m
alternatives to consumers. We are focused on nmaiimjgprofit margins and believe that tailo
branding, packaging, pricing and distribution chelnstrategies help achieve profitable growth.
are implementing these strategies with a view tainaing profitable growth.

« Cost Management The principhfocus of cost management will continue to be educing inpt
supply and production costs on a per-case basikidimg raw material costs and packing fee:
Another key area of focus is to decrease promdtiaiwances, selling and general
administrative costs, including sponsorships, samplipgpmotional and marketing expenses,
percentage of net sales. The reduction of accoentsvable and inventory days on hand also rer
a further key area of focus.

- Efficient Capital Structre — Our capital structure is intended to optimize owrking capital t
finance expansion, both domestically and intermatily. We believe our strong capital position,
ability to raise funds, if necessary, at a reldfiviow effective cost of boowings, provide
competitive advantage. Furthermore, it is anti@dahat, following the TCCC Transaction, we
have a substantial amount of cash and cash equoisabnd we expect that a substantial portion ¢
cash and cash equivalents will lbsed to return capital to our shareholders purst@anghar
repurchases, which could be effected pursuantdelfaender offer, accelerated share repurcha
otherwise, alone or potentially in conjunction wittvidend payments. The timing, terms ardoun
of any such share repurchase will be determinethéyNewCo board of directors.

We believe that, subject to increases in the cofstertain raw materials being contained, theseeval
drivers, when properly implemented in the U.S. andrnationally, will result in: (1) improving or amtaining
our product gross profit margins; (2) providing diddial leverage over time through reduced experses
percentage of net operating revenues; and (3) gtighour cost of capital. The ultimate measurewécess is
and will be reflected in our current and futureufessof operations.

Gross and net sales, gross profit, operating incar@eincome and net income per share represent key
measurements of the above value drivers. Theseumsasnts will continue to be a key management facus
2015 and beyondSee “Part Il, ltem 7 — Results of Operations — Resof Operations for the Year Ended
December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended Deaxredih 2013").

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had workirgtalaof $1,337.7 million compared to $867.0
million as of December 31, 2013. The increase imking capital was primarily the result of retainprbfits
reflected in a combined overall increase in caabhequivalents and short-term investments. Foydhe ended
December 31, 2014, our net cash provided by operaititivities was approximately $585.6 million asnpared
to $342.0 million for the year ended December 31,32 Principal uses of cash flows in 2014 were Ipases of
investments, purchases of inventory, developmemuofMonster Energy® brand internationally, acdiosi of
property and equipment and acquisition of trademarkese principal uses of cash flows are expdotba and
remain our principal recurring use of cash and waykapital funds in the future (See “Part Il, It&m Liquidity
and Capital Resources”).
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Opportunities, Challenges and Risks

Looking forward, our management has identified aiarchallenges and risks for the beverage industry
and our Company, including, following the complatiof the TCCC Transaction, those relating to tlaadition
of the distribution of our products to TCCC's distition network, our significant commercial relatships with
TCCC and TCCC's status as a significant sharehotdeNewCo, in each case as described above under
“Part I, Item 1A — Risk Factors.”

In addition, legislation has been proposed anddopted at the U.S. state and/or county and/or npadic
level and proposed and/or adopted in certain fargigsdictions to restrict the sale of energy Hsir{including
prohibiting the sale of energy drinks at certaitaleishments or pursuant to certain governmentagnams),
limit caffeine content in beverages, require cerfaioduct labeling disclosures and/or warnings,aseptaxes,
limit product sizes or impose age restrictions tfeg sale of energy drinks. In addition, articlegiaal of the
caffeine content in energy drinks and their peregilienefits and articles indicating certain heastks of energy
drinks have been published. The proposal and/gpteadoof such legislation and the publication oflsarticles,
or the future proposal and/or adoption of simi&gislation or publication of similar articles, magversely affect
our Company. In addition, uncertainty and/or vditgtin our domestic and/or our international ecomno markets
could negatively affect both the stability of omdustry and our Company. Furthermore, our growthtesgy
includes expanding our international business whgposes us to risks inherent in conducting intévnal
operations, including the risks associated witheifgm currency exchange rate fluctuations. Consumer
discretionary spending also represents a challangee successful marketing and sale of our praductreases
in consumer and regulatory awareness of the hpeithlems arising from obesity and inactive lifeag/tontinue
to represent a challenge. We recognize that obesitgy complex and serious public health problemr Ou
commitment to consumers begins with our broad protine and a wide selection of diet, light and loalorie
beverages within our energy drink product line. &@atinuously strive to meet changing consumer ndadsigh
beverage innovation, choice and variety. (See “P#gm 1A — Risk Factors”).

Our historical success is attributable, in partptw introduction of different and innovative bexges
which have been positively accepted by consumeus.fi@ure success will depend, in part, upon ourtiooed
ability to develop and introduce different and imative beverages that meet consumer preferendbsugh
there can be no assurance of our ability to ddnsorder to retain and expand our market sharenwst continue
to develop and introduce different and innovatiegdrages and be competitive in the areas of quatiéghod of
distribution, brand image and intellectual propeptptection. The beverage industry is subject tangmg
consumer preferences that may adversely affedtvus imisjudge such preferences.

In addition, other key challenges and risks thaildampact our Company’s future financial results
include, but are not limited to:

« the risks associated with consummation of, and rbaization of benefits from, the TC¢
Transaction, including the transition of the distition of our products to TCCC's distribut
network;

« changes in consumer preferences and demand foraducts;

» economic uncertainty in the United States, Eurapkather countries in which we operate;
» the risks associated with foreign currency exchaatefluctuations;

« maintenance of our brand image and product quality;

» increasiy concern over various health matters, includingsdly, caffeine consumption and ene
drinks generally, and changes in regulation andwmer preferences in response to those concerns;

» profitable expansion and growth of our family ofabds in he competitive market place (¢
“Part I, Item 1 — Business — Competition” and “Haitem 1 — Sales and Marketing”);

» costs of establishing and promoting our brandsmatttonally;
restrictions on imports and sources of supply; edutor taiffs; changes in related governm
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regulations; and disruptions in the timely importexport of our products and/or ingredients du
port strikes and related labor issues;

« protection of our existing intellectual property rifolio of trademarksand copyrights and t
continuous pursuit to develop and protect new amtbvative trademarks and copyrights for
expanding product lines;

« limitations on available quantities of certain pag& containers such as the 24-ounce cap-can and co-
packing availability; and

« the imposition of additional regulation, includinggulation restricting the sale of energy dri
limiting caffeine content in beverages, requiringguct labeling and/or warnings, imposing ex
taxes and/or sales taxes, and/or limiting prodiaet and/or age restrictions.

See “Part |, Item 1A — Risk Factors” for additionmabrmation about risks and uncertainties facing
our Company.

We believe that the following opportunities exist @s:

« domestic and internationgrowth potential of our products due to our trdositto a leading glob
distribution network and the scale and platformesgres expected in connection with the T(
Transaction;

« growth potential of the energy drink category, bdtimestically and internationally;

» planned and future new product and product lineodhictions with the objective of contributing
higher profitability;

« the introduction of premium packages designed tegae strong revenue growth;

 significant package, pricing and channel opportesito increase profitable growth;

» effective strategic positioning to capitalize odustry growth;

« broadening distribution/expansion opportunitiebdath domestic and international markets;

« launching our products into new geographic marlais;

» continued focus on reducing our cost base.
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Results of Operations

(in thousands, except per share information)

Gross sales, net of discounts &
returns*

Less: Promotional and other
allowances**

Net sale

Cost of sales

Gross profit***

Gross profit as a percentage of net
sales

Operating expenses

Operating expenses as a percentage
of net sales

Operating income
Operating income as a percentage of
net sales

Other (expense) income:
Interest and other (expense)
income, net

(Loss) gain on investments and put
option, net
Total other (expense) income

Income before provision for
income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Income taxes as a percentage of
income before taxes

Net incom«

Net income as a percentagenet
sales

Net income per common she

Basic
Diluted

Case sales (in thousands) (in 192-
ounce case equivalents)

Percentage Change

2014 2013 2012 14vs. 13 13vs. 12
$ 2,827,092 $ 2586531 $2,373,499 9.3%  9.0%
362,225 340,103 312,797 6.5% 8.7%
2,464,867 2,246,428 2,060,702 9.7% 9.0%
1,125,057 1,073,497 995,046 4.8% 7.9%
1,339,810 1,172,931 1,065,656 14.2%  10.1%

54.4% 52.2% 51.7%

592,305 600,015 515,0331.3%)  16.5%
24.0% 26.7% 25.0%

747,505 572,916 550,623 30.5%  4.0%
30.3% 25.5% 26.7%

(1,676) (11,737) (2,256)(85.7%)  420.3%
(41) 2,715 787(101.5%) 245.0%
(1,717) (9,022) 469)

745,788 563,894 549,154 32.3%  2.7%

262,603 225,233 2B  166%  7.7%
35.2% 39.9% 38.1%

$ 483,185 $ 338,661 $ 340,020  42.7% (0.4%)

19.6% 15.1% 16.5%
$2.89 $2.03 $1.96 42.2%  3.8%
$2.77 $1.95 $1.86 41.9%  52%
238,280 221,348 282,91 7.6% 9.1%

*Gross sales is used internally by management amdicator of and to monitor operating performanaggluding sales performance of
particular products, salesperson performance, padgrowth or declines and overall Company perforc&nThe use of gross sales
allows evaluation of sales performance before tffece of any promotional items, which can mask aerperformance issues. We
therefore believe that the presentation of grodessprovides a useful measure of our operatinggeerdnce. Gross sales is not a measure
that is recognized under GAAP and should not besidened as an alternative to net sales, which temieined in accordance with GAAP,
and should not be used alone as an indicator ofratpg performance in place of net sales. Additibnagross sales may not be
comparable to similarly titted measures used byepttompanies, as gross sales has been definedroptemal reporting practices. In
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addition, gross sales may not be realized in threnfof cash receipts as promotional payments anowalhces may be deducted from
payments received from certain customers. (Seet“Pditem 6 — Selected Financial Data”).

** Although the expenditures described in this litem are determined in accordance with GAAP an@tn@AAP requirements, the
disclosure thereof does not conform with GAAP pred®n requirements. Additionally, our definitioof promotional and other
allowances may not be comparable to similar itemes@nted by other companies. Promotional and offlervances primarily include
consideration given to the Company’s distributorseatail customers including, but not limited tcetfollowing: (i) discounts granted off
list prices to support price promotions to end-aemers by retailers; (ii) reimbursements given te @ompany’s distributors for agreed
portions of their promotional spend with retaileiacluding slotting, shelf space allowances andeotfees for both new and existing
products; (iii) the Company’s agreed share of fge®n to distributors and/or directly to retailefsr advertising, in-store marketing and
promotional activities; (iv) the Company’s agreduaee of slotting, shelf space allowances and offieess given directly to retailers;
(v) incentives given to the Company’'s distributarsd/or retailers for achieving or exceeding certgimedetermined sales goals;
(vi) discounted or free products; (vii) contractifaks given to the Company’s distributors relateddles made by the Company direct to
certain customers that fall within the distributbssales territories; and (viii) commissions paid ¢mr customers. The presentation of
promotional and other allowances facilitates an leation of their impact on the determination of rseies and the spending levels
incurred or correlated with such sales. Promotiomaald other allowances constitute a material portmnour marketing activities. The
Company’s promotional allowance programs with itsnerous distributors and/or retailers are executi@dugh separate agreements in
the ordinary course of business. These agreemantsrglly provide for one or more of the arrangensetiéscribed above and are of
varying durations, ranging from one week to oneryea

***Gross profit may not be comparable to that ohet entities since some entities include all castsociated with their distribution
process in cost of sales, whereas others excludeitceosts and instead include such costs withinther line item such as operating
expenses. We include out-bound freight and warehoaosts in operating expenses rather than in cbsles.

Results of Operationsfor the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2013.

Gross SalesGross sales were $2,827.1 million for the yearednBecember 31, 2014, an increase of
approximately $240.6 million, or 9.3% higher thamoss sales of $2,586.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase in the gross shlear Monster Energy® brand energy drinks represeén
approximately $236.9 million, or 98.5%, of the mlérincrease in gross sales. Gross sales of oursidon
Energy® brand energy drinks increased primarily tluéncreased sales by volume as a result of isecka
domestic and international consumer demand as agselbur expansion into new international marketscePr
increases on our 24-ounce Monster Energy® brandggndrinks and our Peace Tea® line represented
approximately 7% of the overall increase in grosles No other individual product line contributeither a
material increase or decrease to gross sales &rydlar ended December 31, 2014. Promotional aner oth
allowances, as described in the footnote abovee $862.2 million for the year ended December 31,42@n
increase of $22.1 million, or 6.5% higher than potional and other allowances of $340.1 million foe year
ended December 31, 2013. Promotional and othewatoes as a percentage of gross sales decreas2d¥%
from 13.1% for the year ended December 31, 2014848, respectively. As a result, the percentagesase in
net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014igher than the percentage increase in gross sales.

Collective changes in foreign currency exchangesraid not have a material impact on gross sales fo
the year ended December 31, 2014.

Net Sales.Net sales were $2,464.9 million for the year end@etember 31, 2014, an increase of
approximately $218.4 million, or 9.7% higher thaet sales of $2,246.4 million for the year endedddalmer 31,
2013. The increase in net sales of our Monster gy®ibrand energy drinks represented approximat2R0$!
million, or 100.9%, of the overall increase in ates. Net sales of our Monster Energy® brand enérigks
increased primarily due to increased sales by velama result of increased domestic and interraltecmnsumer
demand as well as our expansion into new internakionarkets. Price increases on our 24-ounce Monste
Energy® brand energy drinks and our Peace Tea®réipeesented approximately 7% of the overall ireecia
net sales. No other individual product line cdnited either a material increase or decrease teate$ for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

Collective changes in foreign currency exchangesrdid not have a material impact on net salethfor
year ended December 31, 2014.
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Case sales, in 192-ounce case equivalents, wer8& 23Bion cases for the year ended December 31,
2014, an increase of approximately 16.9 millionesasr 7.6% higher than case sales of 221.3 mitases for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The overall geerat sales per case increased to $10.34 foretreended
December 31, 2014, which was 1.9% higher than tleeage net sales per case of $10.15 for the yedden
December 31, 2013.

Net sales for the DSD segment were $2,369.2 mifiiorihe year ended December 31, 2014, an increase
of approximately $221.9 million, or 10.3% higherath net sales of $2,147.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase in net sales of Maomster Energy® brand energy drinks represented
approximately $220.4 million, or 99.4%, of the mléincrease in net sales for the DSD segment.dskts for
the DSD segment of our Monster Energy® brand endrgyks increased primarily due to increased shies
volume as a result of increased domestic and iatemal consumer demand as well as our expanstomew
international markets. Price increases on our 2#teuMonster Energy® brand energy drinks and oucéea
Tea® line represented approximately 7% of the dvémarease in net sales for the DSD segment. Nuerot
individual product line contributed either a maakincrease or decrease to net sales for the D§Desa for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

Net sales for the Warehouse segment were $95.7omifor the year ended December 31, 2014, a
decrease of approximately $3.4 million, or 3.4% dowthan net sales of $99.1 million for the year eshd
December 31, 2013. The decrease in net salekddNarehouse segment was primarily attributabtettyeased
sales by volume of Hubert's® lemonades and appte jurhe decrease in net sales for the Warehoupgaesd
was patrtially offset by increased sales by volufmaseptic juices.

Gross Profit. Gross profit was $1,339.8 million for the yeaded December 31, 2014, an increase of
approximately $166.9 million, or 14.2% higher thdme gross profit of $1,172.9 million for the yearded
December 31, 2013. Gross profit as a percentagetcfales increased to 54.4% for the year endedritser 31,
2014 from 52.2% for the year ended December 313.200he increase in gross profit dollars was pritpdhe
result of the $236.9 million increase in gross salkour Monster Energy® brand energy drinks. Tredase in
gross profit as a percentage of net sales wasljaadfeibutable to lower promotional and other alimces as a
percentage of gross sales, price increases ondeaurZce Monster Energy® brand energy drinks andRaace
Tea® line, changes in product sales mix, lowerso$tcertain sweeteners and other raw materialgetisas an
increase in production efficiencies.

Operating Expenses Total operating expenses were $592.3 milliontfe year ended December 31,
2014, a decrease of approximately $7.7 million].866 lower than total operating expenses of $6a60lbn for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The decreasgenatmmg expenses was partially attributable toetsed
expenditures of $10.9 million relating to the coassociated with terminating existing distributadecreased
expenditures of $9.9 million for premiums, decrehsxpenditures of $8.6 million for allocated trade
development, a $2.5 million non-routine indirecx t@lated provision recorded in the third quartér2013,
subsequently reversed in the second quarter of 20#on-realization, and decreased expenditure$4dd
million for point-of-sale materials. The decreas®@perating expenses was partially offset by irsgdaut-bound
freight and warehouse costs of $7.2 million, insezh expenditures of $6.3 million for sponsorships a
endorsements, increased payroll expenses of $6libmm(inclusive of decreased stock-based compéorsaif
$0.2 million), increased expenditures of $2.7 miilirelated to regulatory matters and litigation caning our
Monster Energy® brand energy drinks and expenditofe$4.8 million for professional service costited to
the TCCC Transaction.

Contribution Margin. Contribution margin for the DSD segment was $908ilion for the year ended
December 31, 2014, an increase of approximatel® $18iillion, or 25.0% higher than contribution miargf
$726.8 million for the year ended December 31, 208 increase in the contribution margin for th8D
segment was primarily the result of the $236.9iarllincrease in gross sales of our Monster Energyé&nhd
energy drinks. Contribution margin for the Waretmusegment was $3.0 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2014, approximately $4.7 million higtian contribution loss of ($1.7) million for tiyear ended
December 31, 2013.

Operating Income. Operating income was $747.5 million for the yeaded December 31, 2014, an
increase of approximately $174.6 million, or 30.88her than operating income of $572.9 million floe year
ended December 31, 2013. Operating income as argage of net sales increased to 30.3% for the greded
December 31, 2014 from 25.5% for the year endeceidber 31, 2013, primarily due to the increase wsgr
profit as a percentage of net sales as well asdbeease in operating expenses as a percentage sdles. The
increase in operating income in dollars was prilpadue to an increase of $166.9 million in grossfipr
Operating income (loss) was $37.8 million and ($)1&illion for the years ended December 31, 201d 2013,
respectively, in relation to our operations in A#&;j Asia, Australia, Europe, the Middle East andtB@&merica.

Other (Expense) IncomeOther (expense) income was ($1.7) million fae tkear ended December 31,
2014, as compared to other (expense) income o®)$8illion for the year ended December 31, 2013efem
currency transaction losses were ($3.4) million éP.9) million for the years ended December 3 42and
2013, respectively. The decrease in foreign cuprdnsses during the year ended December 31, 20584 wa
primarily related to our foreign currency transec# in Australia, Japan, Ireland and South Africderest
income was $1.7 million and $1.0 million for theaye ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes Provision for income taxes was $262.6 milliorr the year ended
December 31, 2014, an increase of $37.4 milliod&6% higher than the provision for income taxe$2115.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Efffective combined federal, state and foreign tate r
decreased to 35.2% from 39.9% for the years endm@éber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The deeriea
the effective tax rate was primarily the resulipobfits earned in certain foreign subsidiaries theate no related
income tax expense, as a result of the prior @stabent of valuation allowances on their defereeddssets.

Net Income Net income was $483.2 million for the year end®tember 31, 2014, an increase of
$144.5 million or 42.7% higher than net income 888.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2018
increase in net income was primarily attributalol@n increase in gross profit of $166.9 millioneTihcrease in
net income was partially offset by an increasdnengrovision for income taxes of $37.4 million.

Results of Operationsfor the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2012.

Gross SalesGross sales were $2,586.5 million for the yearednBecember 31, 2013, an increase of
approximately $213.0 million, or 9.0% higher thamoss sales of $2,373.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in the gross sélear Monster Energy® brand energy drinks represeén
approximately $207.4 million, or 97.4%, of the mlérincrease in gross sales. Gross sales of oursion
Energy® brand energy drinks increased primarily tluéncreased sales by volume as a result of isecka
domestic and international demand as well as opamsion into new international markets. The in@dagross
sales of our Hubert’'s® lemonades represented appadely $10.5 million, or 4.9%, of the overall iease in
gross sales. Gross sales of our Hubert's® lemonadesased primarily due to increased sales bymelas a
result of increased distribution and increased ddimelemand. Pricing changes did not have a matensact on
the increase in gross sales. No other individuatlpet line contributed either a material increaseexrrease to
gross sales for the year ended December 31, 20dmdHonal and other allowances, as describeddrfdbtnote
above, were $340.1 million for the year ended DdmarB1, 2013, an increase of $27.3 million, or 81igher
than promotional and other allowances of $312.8aniffor the year ended December 31, 2012. Promatiand
other allowances as a percentage of gross salessed to 13.1% from 13.2% for the years ended ibleee31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Collective changes in foreign currency exchangesraid not have a material impact on gross sales fo
the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Net Sales.Net sales were $2,246.4 million for the year en@etember 31, 2013, an increase of
approximately $185.7 million, or 9.0% higher thaet sales of $2,060.7 million for the year endedddalmer 31,
2012. The increase in net sales of our Monster @gy®ibrand energy drinks represented approximat&k7
million, or 95.6%, of the overall increase in nates. Net sales of our Monster Energy® brand endrigks
increased primarily due to increased sales by velasia result of increased domestic and interratib@mand
as well as our expansion into new internationalkeis: The increase in net sales of our Hubert's®oleades
represented approximately $8.4 million, or 4.5%thaf overall increase in net sales. Net sales pHubert's®
lemonades increased primarily due to increased $gi&olume as a result of increased distributioth iacreased
domestic demand. Pricing changes did not have arrabimpact on the increase in net sales. No dtidévidual
product line contributed either a material increasdecrease to net sales for the year ended Dexe3tth2013.

Collective changes in foreign currency exchangesrdid not have a material impact on net salethfor
year ended December 31, 2013.

Case sales, in 192-ounce case equivalents, wer8 2dllion cases for the year ended December 31,
2013, an increase of approximately 18.4 millionesasr 9.1% higher than case sales of 202.9 mitases for
the year ended December 31, 2012. The overall geerat sales per case decreased to $10.15 foe#hneegded
December 31, 2013, which was 0.1% lower than trerame net sales per case of $10.16 for the yeadend
December 31, 2012.

Net sales for the DSD segment were $2,147.4 mifioorihe year ended December 31, 2013, an increase
of approximately $180.9 million, or 9.2% higher thaet sales of $1,966.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales of Mamster Energy® brand energy drinks represented
approximately $177.5 million, or 98.1%, of the mléincrease in net sales for the DSD segment.dskts for
the DSD segment of our Monster Energy® brand endrgyks increased primarily due to increased shies
volume as a result of increased domestic and iat@mal demand as well as our expansion into nésvnational
markets. Pricing changes did not have a materiphghon the increase in net sales for the DSD segri®
other individual product line contributed eithematerial increase or decrease to net sales foD8i2 segment
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Net sales for the Warehouse segment were $99.lomilor the year ended December 31, 2013, an
increase of approximately $4.9 million, or 5.1% Heg than net sales of $94.2 million for the yeadezh
December 31, 2012. The increase in net salehéoYarehouse segment was primarily attributabladeased
sales by volume of Hubert's® lemonades. The in@dasnet sales for the Warehouse segment was lpartia
offset by decreased sales by volume of Hansen'si&.so

Gross Profit. Gross profit was $1,172.9 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013, an increase of
approximately $107.3 million, or 10.1% higher thdne gross profit of $1,065.7 million for the yearded
December 31, 2012. Gross profit as a percentagetcfales increased to 52.2% for the year endedritser 31,
2013 from 51.7% for the year ended December 312.200he increase in gross profit dollars was pritpdhe
result of the $207.4 million increase in gross salktour Monster Energy® brand energy drinks. Tredase in
gross profit as a percentage of net sales waslyaaggibutable to changes in product sales mixval as a
reduction in the cost of certain containers.

Operating Expenses Total operating expenses were $600.0 milliontfer year ended December 31,
2013, an increase of approximately $85.0 millian1®.5% higher than total operating expenses ob$bfhillion
for the year ended December 31, 2012. The incri@asperating expenses was partially attributablentoeased
expenditures of $19.4 million for professional segvcosts, including legal and accounting feesafoich $15.9
million related to regulatory matters and litigati@oncerning our Monster Energy® brand energy dink
increased payroll expenses of $13.7 million (of akhi0.4 million was related to an increase in stoaked
compensation), increased out-bound freight and eause costs of $11.9 million, increased expendstofe$9.3
million relating to the costs associated with terating existing distributors, increased expendguoé $7.3
million for sponsorships and endorsements and &sa@ expenditures of $5.2 million for merchandiseldys.
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Total operating expenses as a percentage of rest wals 26.7% for the year ended December 31, 20&#ared
to 25.0% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Contribution Margin. Contribution margin for the DSD segment was $726ilion for the year ended
December 31, 2013, an increase of approximately2$®@lion, or 10.0% higher than the contributiommin of
$660.6 million for the year ended December 31, 20l# increase in the contribution margin for th8
segment was primarily the result of the $207.4 iamllincrease in gross sales of our Monster Energyé&nhd
energy drinks. Contribution margin for the Wareb®usegment was ($1.7) million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, approximately $5.2 million lowean the contribution margin of $3.5 million fdret year
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in the lmatidn margin for the Warehouse segment was priynari
attributable to increased promotional and othevedinces as well as increased operating expenses.

Operating Income. Operating income was $572.9 million for the yeaded December 31, 2013, an
increase of approximately $22.3 million, or 4.0%Her than operating income of $550.6 million foe tyear
ended December 31, 2012. Operating income as amgage of net sales decreased to 25.5% for theeyehd
December 31, 2013 from 26.7% for the year endecidber 31, 2012, primarily due to the increase erajing
expenses as a percentage of net sales. The incmegserating income dollars was primarily due harecrease in
gross profit of $107.3 million, partially offset gn $85.0 million increase in operating expensgseréling
income was negatively affected by combined opegatisses of $12.9 million and $10.1 million for thears
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectivetglation to our operations in Africa, Asia, AusiaalEurope,
the Middle East and South America.

Other (Expense) IncomeOther (expense) was ($9.0) million for the yeaded December 31, 2013, as
compared to other (expense) of ($1.5) million foe tyear ended December 31, 2012. Foreign currency
transaction losses were $12.9 million and $3.7 ionillfor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The increase in foreign currency éssduring the year ended December 31, 2013 wasaplym
related to our operations in Australia, Europe adaand South Africa. Interest income was $1.0 arniliand $1.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2013 d&i®2respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes Provision for income taxes was $225.2 milliorr the year ended
December 31, 2013, an increase of $16.1 millio@.@% higher than the provision for income taxe$209.1
million for year ended December 31, 2012. Thectiffe combined federal, state and foreign tax irateeased to
39.9% from 38.1% for the years ended December @13 2nd 2012, respectively. The increase in theciiie
tax rate during the year ended December 31, 20E3pnimarily the result of the impact of increasedsks in
certain foreign subsidiaries for which there istaw benefit and the establishment of a full valmatallowance
against the deferred tax assets of certain forsidpsidiaries.

Net Income Net income was $338.7 million for the year en@stember 31, 2013, a decrease of $1.4
million or 0.4% lower than net income of $340.0loit for the year ended December 31, 2012. Theedeer in
net income was partially attributable to: (i) arisase in professional service costs of $15.9 anillielated to
regulatory matters and litigation concerning thgemtising, marketing, promotion, ingredients, usagdety and
sale of our Monster Energy® brand energy drinkg;ai increase in expenditures attributable to ¢bets
associated with terminating existing distributofs$6.3 million; (iii) an increase in foreign currenlosses of
$9.2 million primarily related to our operationsAaistralia, Europe, Japan and South Africa; anfgivincrease
in the effective combined federal, state and fordax rate from 38.1% to 39.9% due in part to & $4illion
increase in the impact of both existing and nevellelished valuation allowances against the defaae assets
of certain foreign subsidiaries.

Sales

The table set forth below discloses selected guartiata regarding sales for the past five yedbaita
from any one or more quarters is not necessardicative of annual results or continuing trends.
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Sales of beverages are expressed in unit case goldnfunit case” means a unit of measurement equal
to 192 U.S. fluid ounces of finished beverage (@hteounce servings). Unit case volume means tieber of
unit cases (or unit case equivalents) of beveragleisby us.

Our quarterly results of operations reflect seaktreands that are primarily the result of increased
demand in the warmer months of the year. It has loee experience that beverage sales tend to ber ldwring
the first and fourth quarters of each calendar .ylaaddition, our experience with our energy drjpvoducts
suggests they are less seasonal than the seaganqiécted from traditional beverages. Quartetlgtfiations
may also be affected by other factors includingittieoduction of new products, the opening of nearkets
where temperature fluctuations are more pronounitedaddition of new bottlers, distributors andtonters,
changes in the sales mix of our products and clsaimgand/or increased advertising and promotiorpkeses.
(See “Part |, Item 1 — Business — Seasonality”).

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Unit Case Volume / Sales (in Thousands)
Quarter 1 51,926 47,749 44,396 34,681 24,205
Quarter 2 65,587 61,615 57,525 44,272 35,861
Quarter 3 62,204 59,204 54,611 46,277 37,856
Quarter 4 58,563 52,780 46,386 39,431 31,109
Total 238,280 221,348 202,918 164,661 129,031

Net Sales (in Thousan

Quarter 1 $ 536,129 $ 484,223 $ 454,605 856,419 $ 238,110
Quarter 2 687,199 630,934 592,640 462,145 365,701
Quarter 3 635,972 590,422 541,940 474,709 381,466
Quarter 4 605,567 540,849 471,517 409,957 318,665
Total $ 2,464,867 $ 2,246,428 $ 2,060,702 1$703,230 $ 1,303,942
Average Net Sales Per Case
Quarter 1 $ 10.32 $ 10.14 $ 10.24 $ 10.28 $ 9.84
Quarter 2 10.48 10.24 10.30 10.44 10.20
Quarter 3 10.22 9.97 9.92 10.26 10.08
Quarter 4 10.34 10.25 10.17 10.40 10.24
Total $ 10.34 $ 10.15 $ 10.16 $ 1034 % 10.11
Inflation

We do not believe that inflation had a significanpact on our results of operations for the yeaied
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activitiesNet cash provided by operating activities was $85
million for the year ended December 31, 2014, aspaved with net cash provided by operating actsitof
$342.0 million for the year ended December 31, 20B8r the year ended December 31, 2014, cashdao\by
operating activities was primarily attributablertet income earned of $483.2 million and adjustméortgertain
non-cash expenses consisting of $28.6 million @flsbased compensation and $25.7 million of deptieei and
other amortization. For the year ended DecembeRB14, cash provided by operating activities atsrdased
due to a $42.8 million decrease in inventory, a.$2fillion increase in accrued promotional allowesica $11.3
million increase in accounts payable, a $8.4 nilliocrease in income taxes payable, a $4.6 milliecrease in
distributor receivables, a $3.4 million increaseagtrued compensation and a $3.0 million increasaccrued
liabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2@b&h provided by operating activities was reducee  a
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$14.3 million increase in accounts receivable, h.$ million increase in tax benefit from the exsecof stock
options, a $9.8 million increase in deferred incdmees, an $8.1 million decrease in deferred resemd a $2.3
million decrease in accrued distributor terminasion

For the year ended December 31, 2013, cash probilegperating activities was primarily attributale
net income earned of $338.7 million and adjustméntsertain non-cash expenses consisting of $28l®n of
stock-based compensation and $22.7 million of deatien and other amortization. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, cash provided by operatingiiefvalso increased due to a $34.3 million inceéasncome
taxes payable, a $24.0 million decrease in prepaidme taxes, a $8.9 million increase in accruenmotional
allowances, a $3.0 million increase in deferredcenere, a $2.3 million increase in accrued liabgitia $2.0
million increase in accrued compensation and a 8fllén increase in accrued distributor terminasoFor the
year ended December 31, 2013, cash provided bytipgractivities was reduced due to a $43.0 milliammease
in accounts receivable, a $30.3 million increastainbenefit from the exercise of stock option$24.6 million
increase in inventory, a $7.1 million increase efedred income taxes, a $8.2 million decrease Towatts
payable, a $4.5 million increase in prepaid expemasel other current assets, a $7.4 million increadestributor
receivables, and a $3.6 million gain on investments

Cash flows (used in) provided by investing actsit-Net cash used in investing activities was $440.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2014, aspaved to net cash used in investing activitie$389.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2013. theryear ended December 31, 2014, cash used istimge
activities was primarily attributable to purchasé$ield-to-maturity and available for sale investiise purchases
of property and equipment, and additions to inthlegi. For the year ended December 31, 2013, cash ins
investing activities was primarily attributablegarchases of held-to-maturity investments, purchageroperty
and equipment (including the Company’s new corpoddfices), and additions to intangibles. For tearyended
December 31, 2014, cash provided by investing itieivwas primarily attributable to maturities oéldtt-to-
maturity investments, sales of trading investmamis proceeds from the sale of property and equiprien the
year ended December 31, 2013, cash provided bytingeactivities was primarily attributable to maties of
held-to-maturity investments and proceeds fromstde of property and equipment.

For both the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2848 used in investing activities also includweal t
acquisitions of fixed assets consisting of vans airmanotional vehicles, coolers and other equipnersupport
our marketing and promotional activities, productiequipment, furniture and fixtures, office and quier
equipment, computer software, and equipment useddl®s and administrative activities, as well again
leasehold improvements. We expect to continuestoaiportion of our cash in excess of our requirgsnéor
operations for purchasing short-term and long-témaestments, and for other corporate purposesudiirad)
leasehold improvements, the acquisition of cagitplipment, specifically, vans, trucks and promalarehicles,
coolers, other promotional equipment, merchandisplays, warehousing racks as well as items of yrtdn
equipment required to produce certain of our existand/or new products and to develop our brand in
international markets. From time to time, we magogburchase additional real property related tobmwerage
business and/or acquire compatible businessesiss af cash in excess of our requirements for tipesa

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing actddti-Net cash provided by financing activities was
$19.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2@%4compared to net cash used in financing aetsvaf $17.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Fw year ended December 31, 2014, cash provided by
financing activities was primarily attributable $17.2 million received from the issuance of comnstock in
connection with the exercise of certain stock optiand an $11.9 million tax benefit from the ex@radf stock
options. For the year ended December 31, 2014, essth in financing activities was primarily attrible to
$8.2 million of re-purchases of common stock. Hoe tyear ended December 31, 2013, cash provided by
financing activities was primarily attributable ad630.3 million tax benefit from the exercise afct options and
$21.3 million received from the issuance of comnsbock in connection with the exercise of certaiockt
options. For the year ended December 31, 2013, esat in financing activities was primarily attrigble to
$67.6 million of re-purchases of common stock.
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Purchases of inventories, increases in accountsvedide and other assets, acquisition of propemty a
equipment, leasehold improvements, acquisition raathtenance of trademarks, payments of accounisbpay
income taxes payable and purchases of our comnook ate expected to remain our principal recurtsgs of
cash.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-tenastments -As of December 31, 2014, we had
$370.3 million in cash and cash equivalents andt#8gillion in short-term and long-term investmege have
historically invested these amounts in U.S. Treadills, U.S. government agency securities and wipal
securities (which may have an auction reset fegtwertificates of deposit, commercial paper, Jagarate
demand notes and money market funds meeting ceddteria. We maintain our investments for cash
management purposes and not for purposes of sgiecul@ur risk management policies emphasize copditity
(primarily based on short-term ratings by nationaéicognized statistical rating organizations) @hesting and
maintaining our investments. We regularly asses&ehaisk of our investments and believe our curlicies
and investment practices adequately limit thodesrislowever, certain of these investments are stitjegeneral
credit, liquidity, market and interest rate riskéiese risks associated with our investment podfiiay have an
adverse effect on our future results of operatibgsidity and financial condition.

Of our $370.3 million of cash and cash equivaldwtsl at December 31, 2014, $117.8 million was held
by our foreign subsidiaries. No short-term or ldagn investments were held by our foreign subsiesant
December 31, 2014. We do not intend, nor do westmea need, to repatriate undistributed earningsuof
foreign subsidiaries other than to repay certaieredompany debt owed to our U.S. operations. Undeent tax
laws, if funds in excess of intercompany amountgedwere repatriated to our U.S. operations, we eviel
required to accrue and pay additional income taxesuch excess funds at the tax rates then inteffec

We believe that cash available from operationduiting our cash resources and our revolving line of
credit, will be sufficient for our working capitaeeds, including purchase commitments for raw naseand
inventory, increases in accounts receivable, paysneh tax liabilities, expansion and developmeneds
purchases of shares of our common stock, as wefluashases of capital assets, equipment and piegert
through at least the next 12 months. Based onwuemt plans, at this time we estimate that capitplenditures
are likely to be less than $120.0 million througbcBmber 31, 2015. However, future business oppitiets may
cause a change in this estimate.

The following represents a summary of the Compangistractual commitments and related scheduled
maturities as of December 31, 2014:

Payments due by period (in thousands)

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Obligations Total 1 year years years 5 years
Contractual Obligations? $ 77981 % 46,290 $28,898 $2,793 -
Capital Leases 467 467 - - -
Operating Leases 12,973 5,310 5,507 990 1,166
Purchase Commitments? 31,253 31,253 - -

$ 122,674 $ 83,320 $ 34,405 $3,783 $ 1,166

1Contractual obligations include our obligationkted to sponsorships and other commitments.

2Purchase commitments include obligations madeshgnd our subsidiaries to various suppliers for naaterials used in the
production of our products. These obligations varierms, but are generally satisfied within onarye

In addition, approximately $0.9 million of recogeiztax benefits have been recorded as liabilittesfa
December 31, 2014. It is expected that any chamdleel amount of unrecognized tax benefit within tleat 12
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months will not be significant. We have also reeara liability for potential penalties and intere§60.4 million
as of December 31, 2014.

Accounting Policies and Pronouncements
Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparestcordance with GAAP. GAAP requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegbamounts in our consolidated financial statémefrhe
following summarizes our most significant accougtamd reporting policies and practices:

Investments- Our investments in debt securities are claskifie either held-to-maturity, available-for-
sale or trading, in accordance with the Financietdunting Standards Board (the “FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") 320. Held-to-matwyrigecurities are those securities that we have the
positive intent and ability to hold until maturityrading securities are those securities that wenihto
sell in the near term. All other securities notlinied in the held-to-maturity or trading categorg a
classified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturdgcurities are recorded at amortized cost which
approximates fair market value. Trading securities carried at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses charged to earnings. Available-for-salergessiare carried at fair value with unrealizedhgaand
losses recorded within accumulated other compréfernacome (loss) as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. ASC 820 defines fair valuetlaes price that would be received to sell an asset
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandantbetween market participants at the measurentet
ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchyclirequires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs, where available (see Note ¥ ‘¥alue of Certain Financial Assets and Liabilitigs

the notes to consolidated financial statementsdedrASC 320-10-35, a security is considered to be
other-than-temporarily impaired if the present eabf cash flows expected to be collected are lems t
the security’s amortized cost basis (the differeloemg defined as the “Credit Loss”) or if the fa#lue

of the security is less than the security’s amedizost basis and the investor intends, or willdogiired,

to sell the security before recovery of the segigiamortized cost basis. If an other-than-temporar
impairment exists, the charge to earnings is lichttethe amount of Credit Loss if the investor dones
intend to sell the security, and will not be reqditto sell the security, before recovery of theugggs
amortized cost basis. Any remaining difference leetwfair value and amortized cost is recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss), net of applectintes. We evaluate whether the decline in fdueva
of our investments is other-than-temporary at euedrter-end. This evaluation consists of a revigw b
management, and includes market pricing informasind maturity dates for the securities held, market
and economic trends in the industry and informatiorthe issuer’s financial condition and, if apabte,
information on the guarantors’ financial conditidfactors considered in determining whether a Isss i
temporary include the length of time and extenwhich the investment’s fair value has been less itsa
cost basis, the financial condition and near-terospects of the issuer and guarantors, including an
specific events which may influence the operatiohthe issuer and our intent and ability to retdia
investment for a reasonable period of time sufficte allow for any anticipated recovery of failwe.

Accounts Receivable We evaluate the collectability of our trade actus receivable based on a number
of factors. In circumstances where we become awéra specific customer’s inability to meet its
financial obligations to us, a specific reserve lfad debts is estimated and recorded, which redhees
recognized receivable to the estimated amount vievieewill ultimately be collected. In addition to
specific customer identification of potential bagbts, bad debt charges are recorded based oncaunt re
loss history and an overall assessment of pastrdde accounts receivable outstanding.

Inventories— Inventories are stated at the lower of costucipase and/or manufacture the inventory or
the current estimated market value of the inventdfg regularly review our inventory quantities antd

and record a provision for excess and obsoletentove based primarily on our estimated forecast of
product demand, production availability and/or abrlity to sell the product(s) concerned. Demand fo
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our products can fluctuate significantly. Factonattcould affect demand for our products include
unanticipated changes in consumer preferencesrajanarket and economic conditions or other factors
that may result in cancellations of advance ordarseductions in the rate of reorders placed by
customers and/or continued weakening of economiditions. Additionally, management’s estimates of
future product demand may be inaccurate, whichccogsult in an understated or overstated provision
required for excess and obsolete inventory.

Long-Lived Assets Management regularly reviews property and equiiraed other long-lived assets,
including certain definite-lived identifiable intgible assets, for possible impairment. This revomeurs
annually or more frequently if events or changesimumstances indicate the carrying amount of the
asset may not be recoverable. If there is indipatdd impairment of property and equipment or
amortizable intangible assets, then managemename@n estimate of future cash flows (undiscounted
and without interest charges) expected to resafhfthe use of the asset and its eventual dispositio
these cash flows are less than the carrying anwfuthie asset, an impairment loss is recognizedriie w
down the asset to its estimated fair value. Thevalue is estimated at the present value of therdu
cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate wahagement’s estimates of the business risks. No
impairment indicators were identified as of Decenfig 2014 or 2013. Long-lived assets held for sale
are recorded at the lower of their carrying amanirfair value less cost to sell.

Management believes that the accounting estimé&tgeceto impairment of its long-lived assets, iniohg

its trademarks (as discussed below), is a “critcalounting estimate” because: (1) the estimaligtdy
susceptible to change from period to period becatsequires Company management to make
assumptions about cash flows and discount rates;(2nthe impact that recognizing an impairment
would have on the assets reported on our consetidaalance sheet, as well as net income, could be
material. Management’'s assumptions about cash flmwes discount rates require significant judgment
because actual revenues and expenses have flucindke past and are expected to continue to do so

Intangibles— Intangibles are comprised primarily of tradersattat represent our exclusive ownership of
the Monster Energy@‘,F-@, Monster Rehab®, Java Monster®, Muscle Monstdd®leash the Beast®,
Punch Monster®, Juice Monster™, Peace Tea®, Has®enBlue Sky®, and the Junior Juice®
trademarks, all used in connection with the martufe¢ sale and distribution of supplements and
beverages. We also own in our own right a numbetteér trademarks in the United States, as weh as
a number of countries around the world. During 2008 adopted ASC 350. Under the provisions of
ASC 350, we discontinued amortization on indefitited trademarks while continuing to amortize
remaining definite-lived trademarks over one tos/28rs.

In accordance with ASC 350, we evaluate our tradksnannually for impairment or earlier if thereais
indication of impairment. If there is an indicatiohimpairment of identified intangible assets sobject

to amortization, management compares the estinfiaitedalue with the carrying amount of the ass&h
impairment loss is recognized to write down theamgiible asset to its fair value if it is less tithe
carrying amount. The fair value is calculated usihg income approach. However, preparation of
estimated expected future cash flows is inherenhjective and is based on management’s best ¢stima
of assumptions concerning expected future conditiddased on management’s impairment analysis
performed for the year ended December 31, 2014eskimated fair values of trademarks exceeded the
carrying values.

In estimating future revenues, we use internal btglgnternal budgets are developed based on recent
revenue data and future marketing plans for exjsgmoduct lines and planned timing of future
introductions of new products and their impact anfature cash flows.

Revenue Recognitior We recognize revenue when persuasive evidencanodrrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixedleterminable and collectability is reasonably asdur
Generally, ownership of and title to our products$to customers upon delivery of the products to
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customers. Certain of our distributors may alsdquer a separate function as a co-packer on ourlbeha
In such cases, ownership of and title to our prtsltiat are co-packed on our behalf by those ckgrac
who are also distributors, passes to such disbibuihen we are notified by them that they haverak
transfer or possession of the relevant portion wf finished goods. Net sales are determined after
deducting promotional and other allowances in at@moce with ASC 605-50. The Company’'s
promotional and other allowances are calculateddas various programs with its distributors artdire
customers, and accruals are established duringehe for anticipated liabilities. These accruals a
based on agreed upon terms as well as the Comphisgtsical experience with similar programs and
require management’s judgment with respect to esing consumer participation and/or distributor and
retail customer performance levels. DifferencesvBen such estimated expense and actual expenses for
promotional and other allowances have historicaégn insignificant and are recognized in earnings i
the period such differences are determined. Amouateived pursuant to new and/or amended
distribution agreements entered into with certaistridbutors, relating to the costs associated with
terminating our prior distributors, are accounted ds revenue ratably over the anticipated lifehef
respective distribution agreement, which is gehed years.

Management believes that adequate provision has tmele for cash discounts, returns and spoilage
based on our historical experience.

Cost of Sales Cost of sales consists of the costs of raw nadgeutilized in the manufacture of products,
co-packing fees, repacking fees, in-bound freigharges, as well as certain internal transfer costs,
warehouse expenses incurred prior to the manufactfuour finished products and certain quality coint
costs. Raw materials account for the largest portibthe cost of sales. Raw materials include cans
bottles, other containers, flavors, ingredients packaging materials.

Operating Expenses Operating expenses include selling expenses asctistribution expenses to
transport products to customers and warehousingresgs after manufacture, as well as expenses for
advertising, commissions, sampling and in-store aestration costs, costs for merchandise displays,
point-of-sale materials and premium items, sporsprexpenses, other marketing expenses and design
expenses. Operating expenses also include payst,ctravel costs, professional service fees dnotu
legal fees, termination payments made to certaiouofprior distributors, entertainment costs, iasze
costs, postage costs, depreciation and other dearetadministrative costs.

Stock-Based CompensatienThe Company accounts for stock-based compensatider the provisions
of ASC 718. The Company records compensation esgéor employee stock options based on the
estimated fair value of the options on the datgraht using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
formula. The Company records compensation expeasedn-employee stock options based on the
estimated fair value of the options as of the eartif (1) the date on which a commitment for
performance by the non-employee to earn the stptkrois reached or (2) the date on which the non-
employee’s performance is complete, using the Bfakoles-Merton option pricing formula. Stock-
based compensation cost for restricted stock awamdsrestricted stock units is measured based @n th
closing fair market value of the Company's commdock at the date of grant. In the event that the
Company has the option and intent to settle aicestr stock unit in cash, the award is classifisdaa
liability and revalued at each balance sheet date.

Income Taxes- We utilize the liability method of accountingrfimcome taxes as set forth in ASC 740.
Under the liability method, deferred taxes are itheiieed based on the temporary differences betwesn t
financial statement and tax basis of assets ahilitiies using tax rates expected to be in effaging) the
years in which the basis differences reverse. Matan allowance is recorded when it is more likibign

not that some of the deferred tax assets will rotrdalized. In determining the need for valuation
allowances we consider projected future taxablerme and the availability of tax planning strategiés

in the future we determine that we would not beedbl realize our recorded deferred tax assets, an
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increase in the valuation allowance would be reedydiecreasing earnings in the period in which such
determination is made.

We assess our income tax positions and record ¢arfits for all years subject to examination based
upon our evaluation of the facts, circumstances iafamation available as of the reporting dater Fo
those tax positions where there is a greater ti386 lkelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained:
have recorded the largest amount of tax benefitrttay potentially be realized upon ultimate settéamn
with a taxing authority that has full knowledgeatifrelevant information. For those income tax foas
where there is less than 50% likelihood that aliarefit will be sustained, no tax benefit has been
recognized in the financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Partll, Item 8 — Financial Statements andpfupentary Data — Note 1 — Organization and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Recéatcounting Pronouncements” for a full descriptioh
recent accounting pronouncements including theaase expected dates of adoption and expectedtsfba the
Company’s consolidated financial position, resaftsperations or liquidity.

Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9@he “Act”) provides a safe harbor for forward-
looking statements made by or on behalf of the Gomp Certain statements made in this report magtidate
forward-looking statements (within the meaning ett®n 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amen(ke
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Excharge, as amended) regarding our expectations wipeaet to
revenues, profitability, adequacy of funds frommpiens and our existing credit facility, amongaeatlthings. All
statements containing a projection of revenuespnme (loss), earnings (loss) per share, capital redipees,
dividends, capital structure or other financiahite a statement of management’s plans and objediwveduture
operations, or a statement of future economic pedioce contained in management’s discussion arlgsisaf
financial condition and results of operations, utlthg statements related to new products, volunogvitr and
statements encompassing general optimism aboutefutperating results and non-historical informatiane
forward-looking statements within the meaning af #kct. Without limiting the foregoing, the wordseleves,”
“thinks,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “estiates,” and similar expressions are intended totifyeiorward-
looking statements.

Management cautions that these statements ardiggiddy their terms and/or important factors, maify
which are outside our control and involve a numblerisks, uncertainties and other factors, thatld@mause
actual results and events to differ materially fribra statements made including, but not limitedhe,following:

« Our ability to consummate the TCCC Transactioreaognize any benefits from the TCCC Transaction;

« Following the TCCC Transaction, the effect of esiga commercial arrangements between NewCo and
TCCC on NewCo'’s future performance;

» Following the TCCC Transaction, the effect of TC8€-oming a significant shareholder of NewCo and the
potential divergence of TCCC's interests from thoSether NewCo stockholders;

« Disruption in distribution or sales and/or declimesales due to the termination and/or appointnaént
existing and/or new domestic and/or internationstridbutors;

« Lack of anticipated demand for our products innmégional markets;

« Unfavorable regulations, including taxation reqoments, product registration requirements, tariffisl/ar
trade restrictions;

« The effect of inquiries from and/or actions by stattorneys general, the Federal Trade Commissian (
“FTC"), the FDA, municipalities or city attorneys@or other government agencies and/or quasi-govenih
agencies and/or government officials, including rhermm of Congress, into the advertising, marketing,
promotion, ingredients, sale and/or consumptioausfenergy drink products, including voluntary ches to
our business practices;
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Our ability to achieve profitability from our opéi@ns outside the United States;

Our ability to manage legal and regulatory requegta in foreign jurisdictions, potential difficids in
staffing and managing foreign operations, potelgti@gher incidence of fraud or corruption and éreigk of
foreign customers and distributors;

Our ability to produce our products in internatibraarkets in which they are sold, thereby redudneight
costs and/or product damages;

Our ability to effectively manage our inventoriewifor our accounts receivables;

Our foreign currency exchange rate risk with resgecour sales, expenses, profits, assets anditiiedi
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dallaich will continue to increase as foreign salesease;
Changes in accounting standards may affect ourtegbprofitability;

Any proceedings which may be brought against uthbySecurities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”),
the FDA, the FTC or other governmental agencidsodies;

The outcome of shareholder securities litigatiod/anshareholder derivative actions filed agairstad/or
against certain of our officers and directors, thedpossibility of other private shareholder litiga;

The possibility of future shareholder derivativéi@ts or shareholder securities litigation filechangt us;

The outcome of product liability litigation and/olass action litigation regarding the safety of puwducts
and/or the ingredients in and/or claims made imeation with our products and/or alleging falseeatiging,
marketing and/or promotion, and the possibilityuatire product liability and/or class action lawsui

The current uncertainty and volatility in the na@gband global economy;

Our ability to address any significant deficiencoesmaterial weakness in our internal control dueancial
reporting;

Our ability to continue to generate sufficient cdkiws to support capital expansion plans and gdner
operating activities;

Decreased demand for our products resulting froemgls in consumer preferences and/or from decreased
consumer discretionary spending power and/or fraghdr gasoline prices;

Changes in demand that are weather related, particin areas outside of California;

Competitive products and pricing pressures andaduiiity to gain or maintain our share of sales he t
marketplace as a result of actions by competitors;

Our ability to introduce new products;

An inability to achieve volume growth through pratdand packaging initiatives;

Our ability to sustain the current level of saled/ar increase the sales of our Monster Energy®demergy
drinks and/or our other products, including, follogythe TCCC Transaction, the energy drinks we will
acquire from TCCC,;

The impact of criticism of our energy drink prodsicdnd/or the energy drink market generally and/or
legislation enacted, whether as a result of suititism or otherwise, that restrict the sale of rgiyedrinks
(including prohibiting the sale of energy drinkscattain establishments or pursuant to certain morental
programs), limit caffeine content in beveragesunexcertain product labeling disclosures and/orniveys,
impose excise and/or sales taxes, limit produetssiz impose age restrictions for the sale of gnérigks;

Our ability to comply with and/or resulting lowesrtsumer demand for energy drinks due to proposeéthan
future U.S. federal, state and local laws and ®grs and/or proposed or existing laws and reguiatin
certain foreign jurisdictions and/or any changesdin, including changes in taxation requiremeinis{ding
tax rate changes, new tax laws, new and/or incdeaseise and/or sales and/or other taxes on owlupts
and revised tax law interpretations) and envirortaldaws, as well as the FFDC Act, including as adwssl

by the Dietary Supplement Health and Education Aail regulations made thereunder or in connection
therewith, as well as changes in any other foodg dr similar laws in the United States and intdomally,
especially those that may restrict the sale ofgndrinks (including prohibiting the sale of enemyynks at
certain establishments or pursuant to certain gowental programs), limit caffeine content in begess
require certain product labeling disclosures andfarnings, impose excise taxes, limit product sizes
impose age restrictions for the sale of energykdrias well as laws and regulations or rules madmimrced
by the FDA, and/or the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacoad &irearms and Explosives, and/or the Federalélrad
Commission;
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« Our ability to satisfy all criteria set forth inwmodel energy drink guidelines, including, withdimitation,

those adopted by the American Beverage Associatbrwhich the Company is a member, and/or any

international beverage association and the impatth® Company of such guidelines;

« Disruptions in the timely import or export of ourogucts and/or ingredients due to port strikes rahated
labor issues;

« The effect of unfavorable or adverse public refai@nd/or press and/or articles, comments and/diame
attention;

« Changes in the cost, quality and availability ohtadners, packaging materials, raw materials arerot
ingredients and juice concentrates, and our aliitpbtain and/or maintain favorable supply arrangets
and relationships and procure timely and/or sudficiproduction of all or any of our products to mee
customer demand;

« Our ability to pass on to our customers all or #ipo of any increases in the costs of raw materald/or
ingredients and/or commodities and/or other cqattis affecting our business;

« Our ability to achieve both domestic and internaioforecasts, which may be based on projectedmedu
and sales of many product types and/or new prodeaettain of which are more profitable than othéngre

can be no assurance that we will achieve projeltedls of sales as well as forecasted product and/o

geographic mixes;

« Our ability to penetrate new domestic and/or irdéomal markets and/or gain approval or mitigate delay
in securing approval for the sale of our productgdrious countries;

« Economic or paolitical instability in one or more aiir international markets;

«  Our ability to secure and/or retain competent anefi@ctive distributors internationally;

« The effectiveness of sales and/or marketing effoftdistributors of our products, most of whichtdtaute
products that are competitive with our products;

« Unilateral decisions by distributors, convenienbains, grocery chains, specialty chain stores, stobes
and other customers to discontinue carrying adlror of our products that they are carrying at amg tand/or
restrict the range of our products they carry andévote less resources to the sale of our products

« The costs and/or effectiveness, now or in the &jtaf our advertising, marketing and promotionedtsgies;

« Changes in product category consumption;

« Unforeseen economic and political changes;

« Possible recalls of our products and/or defectreglpction;

- Our ability to make suitable arrangements for theacking of any of our products both domesticalhg
internationally and/or the timely replacement afadintinued co-packing arrangements;

« Our ability to make suitable arrangements for tiiely procurement of non-defective raw materials;

« Our inability to protect and/or the loss of oureiltgéctual property rights and/or our inability t@euour
trademarks and/or trade names or designs in cextaintries;

« Volatility of stock prices which may restrict stos&les, stock purchases or other opportunities;

« Provisions in our organizational documents andémtrol by insiders which may prevent changes intrabn
even if such changes would be beneficial to ottaakholders;

« The failure of our bottlers and contract packersiemufacture our products on a timely basis oflat a

« Exposure to significant liabilities due to litigatti, legal or regulatory proceedings;

« Any disruption in and/or lack of effectiveness afranformation technology systems that disrupts our

business or negatively impacts customer relatigssland
« Recruitment and retention of senior managemengrditly employees and our employee base in general.

The foregoing list of important factors and othisks detailed from time to time in our reports dilith
the Securities and Exchange Commission is not estiveu See “Part |, Item 1A — Risk Factors,” fomere
complete discussion of these risks and uncertairtrel for other risks and uncertainties. Thoseofacind the
other risk factors described therein are not necégall of the important factors that could caastual results or
developments to differ materially from those expegkin any of our forward-looking statements. ©thrknown
or unpredictable factors also could harm our res@bnsequently, our actual results could be naledifferent
from the results described or anticipated by ouwéwd-looking statements due to the inherent ungest of
estimates, forecasts and projections and may lerlmt worse than anticipated. Given these unc#itai, you

should not rely on forward-looking statements. Fanmdviooking statements represent our estimates and
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assumptions only as of the date that they were miate expressly disclaim any duty to provide upddtes
forward-looking statements, and the estimates asdmptions associated with them, after the dathigieport,
in order to reflect changes in circumstances oeetggions or the occurrence of unanticipated ewexdspt to the
extent required by applicable securities laws.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

In the normal course of business, our financialitipss is routinely subject to a variety of riskslhe
principal market risks (i.e., the risk of loss argsfrom adverse changes in market rates and prioeshich we
are exposed are fluctuations in commodity pricdscéihg the costs of our raw materials (includibgit not
limited to, increases in the costs of juice conas, increases in the price of aluminum for ceasin for PET
plastic bottles, as well as cane sugar and otheet®mers, glucose, sucrose, milk, cream and pratiof which
are used in some or many of our products), fluainatin energy and fuel prices, and limited avaligbof
certain raw materials. We generally do not use imgdggreements or alternative instruments to mattageisks
associated with securing sufficient ingredientsaar materials. We are also subject to market nigikis respect
to the cost of commodities because our abilitysimover increased costs through higher pricingmétdid by the
competitive environment in which we operate.

We do not use derivative financial instruments ritgct ourselves from fluctuations in interest ssed
do not hedge against fluctuations in commoditygsic

Our gross sales to customers outside of the Udtatks were approximately 23% of consolidated gross
sales for both the years ended December 31, 20d42643. Our growth strategy includes expanding our
international business. As a result, we are sulieaisks from changes in foreign currency excharajes.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, we enfatedorward currency exchange contracts with ficial
institutions to create an economic hedge to smadiji manage a portion of the foreign exchange eisosure
associated with certain consolidated subsidianesi-functional currency denominated assets anditiab. All
foreign currency exchange contracts entered intosbgs of December 31, 2014 have terms of one nwnidss.

We do not enter into forward currency exchangereois for speculation or trading purposes.

We have not designated our foreign currency exahaagtracts as hedge transactions under ASC 815.
Therefore, gains and losses on our foreign currenahange contracts are recognized in interestcdimer
(expense) income, net, in the consolidated stateredrincome, and are largely offset by the changeke fair
value of the underlying economically hedged iteme Wb not consider the potential loss resulting fram
hypothetical 10% adverse change in quoted foreigmeacy exchange rates as of December 31, 2014to b
significant.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $370.3 million astc and cash equivalents and $824.1 million in
short-term and long-term investments including Ur8asuries, certificates of deposit and municgedurities
which may have an auction reset feature. Certaithe$e investments are subject to general creglitidity,
market and interest rate risks. At the current tiwie are not increasing our investments in auatba securities.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required to be furnished in resgotusthis ITEM 8 follows the signature page andekd
to Exhibits hereto at pages 73 through 110.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurebinder the supervision and with the participatdn
the Company’s management, including our Chief EttreeuOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and tiperaf our disclosure controls and proceduresd@tined in
Rules 13(a)-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e) of the Exchangg &s of the end of the period covered by thi®oreBased
upon this evaluation, the Chief Executive OfficadaChief Financial Officer have concluded that disclosure
controls and procedures are effective to ensuterf@mation we are required to disclose in repdhiat we file
or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recordedcgssed, summarized and reported within the tieregs
specified in rules and forms of the SEC and (2uaedated and communicated to our management, imgud
our principal executive and principal financialioffrs as appropriate to allow timely decisions reéiya required
disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finahd&eporting— Our management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoaitrol over financial reporting, as defined in Bange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the superuisind with the participation of our managementiudiag our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeour management conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheceporting as of December 31, 2014, based onrtmadwork in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiminthe
Treadway Commission. Based on our management'su@vah under the framework imternal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013pur management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting was
effective as of December 31, 2014.

Our internal control over financial reporting as@écember 31, 2014, has been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, an independent registered public addogirfirm, as stated in their attestation reporhich is
included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogir There were no changes in the Company’s

internal controls over financial reporting duringetquarter ended December 31, 2014, that have iaibter
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, our internal control over financial reporting
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Monster Beverage Corporation
Corona, California

We have audited the internal control over financial reporhlylonster Beverage Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria establish@ternal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ef Ttreadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internataomter financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reportingluded in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our respotigibis to express an opinion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards Buthlee Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perforauditeto obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was mairgdim all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial repor@sgessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intesnabl based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstdfecdselieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is ragess designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financial officergpesons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company’s board of directors, management, and other personpedvide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fioiah statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internalot@vier financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recordmtredsonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the comg2ngrovide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemexdsardance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compabgiage made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reésassurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposiiiothe company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control owericial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
improper management override of controls, material misstaterdeetgo error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evatuaf the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk thatcthdrols may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the polmigsocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material eetsy effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2014, based on the criteria establishetemmal Control — Integrated Framework (201i83ued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadveayn@ssion.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Bobtpany Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statestieedule as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014 of the Company and our report dated Mag&fH 3, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 2, 2015
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item regarding directors is included under the caption “Prop@a¢
— Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement éar 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to bedfiveth the
SEC within 120 days after the end of the fiscalryareded December 31, 2014 (the “2015 Proxy Statéinand
is incorporated herein by reference.

Information concerning compliance with Section }&(fthe Exchange Act is included under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coieapte” in our 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorfgala
herein by reference.

Information concerning the Audit Committee and £halit Committee Financial expert is reported under
the caption “Audit Committee; Report of the Audibr@mittee; Duties and Responsibilities” in our 20faxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct anadsEthat applies to all our directors, officers
(including our principal executive officer, prinaipfinancial officer, principal accounting officand controllers)
and employees and is available_at http://investayssterbevcorp.com/governance.cfm. The Code ofnBasi
Conduct and Ethics and any amendment thereto, bhsasvany waivers that are required to be discldsethe
rules of the SEC or NASDAQ, may be obtained at ost ¢o you by writing or telephoning us at the daling
address or telephone number:

Monster Beverage Corporation
1 Monster Way
Corona, CA 92879
(951) 739-6200
(800) 426-7367

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information concerning the compensation of our does and executive officers and Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation eparted under the captions “Compensation Discusaiah
Analysis,” and “Compensation Committee,” respedyivin our 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorpordteckin
by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The disclosure set forth in Item 5, “Market for tRegistrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securitéshis report is incorporated herein.

Information concerning the beneficial ownershiptttd Company’s Common Stock of (a) those persons
known to the Company to be the beneficial ownenmnaife than 5% of the Company’s common stock; (bl ed
the Company’s directors and nominees for direcamil (c) the Company’s executive officers and allthad
Company’s current directors and executive officass a group is reported under the caption “Principal
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Stockholders and Security Ownership of Managemiendur 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihdyy
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information concerning certain relationships andtesl transactions is reported under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactionszirettor Independence” in our 2015 Proxy Statenagt is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information concerning our accountant fees andfaudit Committee’s pre-approval of audit and
permissible non-audit services of independent atalis reported under the captions “Principal Acting Firm
Fees” and “Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Sees,” respectively, in our 2015 Proxy Statemert ian
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@ The following documents are filed as a paithaf Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accognimm 73

Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&u12013 74
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@iicember 31, 2014,

2013 and 2012 75
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomingoyears ended

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 76
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytHeryears ended

December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 77
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeated December 31, 2014,

2013 and 2012 78
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 80

Financial Statement Schedule:
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the yeansled December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 110

Exhibits:

The Exhibits listed in the Index of Exhibits, whiappears immediately
following the signature page and is incorporateeineby reference, as filed as
part of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or) Ii(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ameénde
the registrant has duly caused this report to d¢peesi on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunty alithorized.

MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION

/s RODNEY C. SACKS Rodney C. Sacks Date: March 2, 2015
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgph Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpow
the following persons on behalf of the registranthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ RODNEY C. SACKS Chairman of the Board of Directors March 2, 2015
Rodney C. Sacks and Chief Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)
/s/ HILTON H. SCHLOSBERG Vice Chairman of the Board of March 2, 2015
Hilton H. Schlosberg Directors, President, Chief

Operating Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Secretary (principal
financial officer, controller and
principal accounting officer)

/s NORMAN C. EPSTEIN Director March 2, 2015
Norman C. Epste

/s/ BENJAMIN M. POLK Director March 2, 2015
Benjamin M. Polk

/sl SYDNEY SELATI Director March 2, 2015
Sydney Selati
/s/ HAROLD C. TABER, JR. Director March 2, 2015

Harold C. Taber, Jr.

/sl MARK S. VIDERGAUZ Director March 2, 2015
Mark S. Vidergauz

/sl MARK J. HALL Director March 2, 2015
Mark J. Hall
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

The following designated exhibits, as indicatebeglare either filed or furnished, as applicableeiadgth

or have heretofore been filed or furnished with $®eurities and Exchange Commission under the Hesulct
of 1933, as amended, or the Securities ExchangefAd34, as amended, as indicated by footnote.

2.1

Transaction Agreement, dated as of August 24 2by and among MonstBeverage Corporatio
New Laser Corporation, New Laser Merger Corp, Theda=Cola Company and European
Refreshments (incorporated by reference from ekBitiito our Form 8-K dated August 18, 201

2.2

Asset Transfer Agreement, dated as of Augus?Q24, by and among Monster Beverage
Corporation, New Laser Corporation and The Cocaa@ampany Refreshments (incorporated
reference from exhibit 2.2 to our Form 8-K datecyist 18, 2014).

by

3.1

Certificate of Incorporation of the Companyaasended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit !
to our Form 10-K dated February 29, 2012).

8.1

3.2

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Qoyr(gecorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
our Form 8-K dated August 2, 2013).

to

10.1+

Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreemeegiaing to the amendment of certain stock op
agreements between Hansen Natural Corporationtsieaecutive officers and directors)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to oarrf 8-K dated January 8, 2007).

lion

10.2

Form of Indemnification Agreement (to be pdwd by Hansen Natural Corporation to its direct
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to oarr 8-K dated November 14, 2005).

ors)

10.3+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@ogbporation and Harold Taber (made as of
November 11, 2005) (incorporated by reference tailkx10.42 to our Form 10-K dated March
2006).

15,

10.4+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@ogboration and Hilton H. Schlosberg (made
of November 11, 2005) (incorporated by referendéxioibit 10.46 to our Form 10-K dated
March 15, 2006).

10.5+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@ogboration and Rodney C. Sacks (made as
November 11, 2005) (incorporated by reference taitkix10.47 to our Form 10-K dated March
2006).

Df
15,

10.6

Single Tenant Industrial Lease, made and eshieto as of October 13, 2006 by and between
Watson Land Company, a California Corporation, Hadsen Beverage Company, a Delaware
Corporation (incorporated by reference to exhibitd our Form 10-K dated June 6, 2007).

10.7+

Hansen Natural Corporation 2001 Amended asiafRed Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A to our Proxy Statement d&8egtember 25, 2007).

10.8

Business Loan Agreement between Hansen Bav&€magppany and Comerica Bank (incorporat
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-Q daiedust 9, 2007).

D
o

10.9

Monster Energy Distribution Coordination Agremt, dated October 3, 2008, between Hanser
Beverage Company and The Coca Cola Company (incatgzbby reference to exhibit 10.1 to o
Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2008).

10.10

Monster Energy International Distribution @lination Agreement, dated Octot#r2008, betwes
Tauranga Ltd, trading as Monster Energy, and Caala-Enterprises Inc. (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q datedeviaber 10, 2008).

10.11

Monster Energy Distribution Agreement, dadedober 3, 2008, between Hansen Beverage
Company and Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc. (incorpdrhy reference to exhibit 10.3 to our
Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2008).

10.12

Monster Energy Canadian Distribution Agreemmeéated October 3, 2008, between Hansen
Beverage Company and Coca-Cola Bottling Compango(porated by reference to exhibit 10.4
our Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2008).

| to

10.13

Monster Energy International Distribution Agment, dated October 3, 2008, between Tauran
Ltd, trading as Monster Energy, and Coca-Cola pniggs Inc. (incorporated by reference to

ga

exhibit 10.5 to our Form 10-Q dated November 1080
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10.14

Monster Energy Belgium Distribution Agreemetatted October 3, 2008, between Tauranga L{d,

trading as Monster Energy, and Coca-Cola Enterptise (incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.6 to our Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2008).

10.15+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen NaDangoration and Rodney C. Sacks (made as

June 2, 2008) (incorporated by reference to exhibid4 to our Form 10-K dated March 1, 2010).

10.16A+

Amendment to Stock Option Agreement betwdansen Natural @poration and Rodney C. Sa
(made as of August 2, 2008) (incorporated by refezd¢o exhibit 10.44A to our Form 10-K date
March 1, 2010).

10.17+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen NaBangooration and Hilton H. Schlosberg (made
of June 2, 2008) (incorporated by reference tolsxhD.45 to our Form 10-K dated March 1, 20

S
10).

10.18A+

Amendment to Stock Option Agreement betwdansen Natural Corporation and Hilton H.
Schlosberg (made as of August 2, 2008) (incorpdriayereference to exhibit 10.45A to our
Form 10-K dated March 1, 2010).

10.19+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@angoration and Thomas J. Kelly (made as of

June 2, 2008) (incorporated by reference to exhibid7 to our Form 10-K dated March 1, 2010).

10.20+

2009 Hansen Natural Corporation Stock IneerRlan for Non-Employee Directors (incorporatg
by reference to Exhibit A to our Proxy StatemeriedaApril 24, 2009).

ed

10.21+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@angoration and Thomas J. Kelly (made as of

June 1, 2009) (incorporated by reference to exhibid9 to our Form 10-K dated March 1, 2010j).

10.22+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen NaDangooration and Rodney C. Sacks (made as
December 1, 2009) (incorporated by reference tibaxt0.51 to our Form 10-K dated March 1,
2010).

10.23+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen NaDangooration and Hilton H. Schlosberg (made
of December 1, 2009) (incorporated by referenaxtobit 10.52 to our Form 10-K dated March
2010).

10.24+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@angooration and Mark J. Hall (made as of
December 1, 2009) (incorporated by reference tabext0.53 to our Form 10-K dated March 1,
2010).

10.25+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@angoration and Thomas J. Kelly (made as of
December 1, 2009) (incorporated by reference tibaxt0.55 to our Form 10-K dated March 1,
2010).

10.26+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen Na@angooration and Thomas J. Kelly (made as of
December 1, 2010) (incorporated by reference tiaxt0.53 to our Form 10-K dated March 1,
2011).

10.27+

Stock Option Agreement between Hansen NaDangooration and Mark J. Hall (made as of
December 1, 2010) (incorporated by reference tdaxt0.54 to our Form 10-K dated March 1,
2011).

10.28+

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pard to the 2009 Hansen Natural Corporation Stg
Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Directors (incoigded by reference to exhibit 10.55 to our
Form 10-K dated March 1, 2011).

ck

10.29+

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incoapext by reference to exhibit 10.1 to our Form 10-
dated August 9, 2011).

10.30+

Monster Beverage Corporation 2011 Omnibasritive Plan (incorporated by reference to exhipit

10.1 to our Form 8-K dated May 24, 2011).

10.31+

Agreement between the Company and Mark Haled October 28, 2013 (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.52 to our Form 10-K datemirdh 3, 2014).

10.32+

Employment Agreement between Monster Bewe@agporation and Rodney C. Sacks
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to oarrf 8-K dated March 19, 2014).

10.33+

Employment Agreement between Monster Bewe@yporation and Hilton H. Schlosberg
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to oarr 8-K dated March 19, 2014).

21*

Subsidiaries

23*

Consent of Independent Registered Public ActingrFirm
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31.1* Certification by CEO pursuant to Rule 13A-d)6r 15D-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act ¢
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002 *

31.2* Certification by CFO pursuant to Rule 13A-d)6r 15D-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of thea8as-Oxley Act of 2002 *

32.1* Certification by CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.Ccti® 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90begf t
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

32.2* Certification by CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.Cct8m 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906egf t
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

101* The following materials from Monster Bevera@erporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 are fuedisterewith, formatted in XBRL (eXtensihle

Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolid&alhnce Sheets as of December 31, 2014
2013, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of IncomdHe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
2012, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Stoctbrd’ Equity for the years ended December

=

—h

and
and
31,

2014, 2013 and 2012, (iv) Consolidated Statemein@omprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (v) Consolid&tdements of Cash Flows for the yaqars

ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, and ¢vi)Niotes to Consolidated Finand
Statements.

Filed herewith.
+  Management contract or compensatory plans or azraagts.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Monster Beverage Corporation
Corona, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balasheets of Monster Beverage Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31,4264d 2013, and the related consolidated statenténts
income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ eqaiity cash flows for each of the three years in #rog
ended December 31, 2014. Our audits also incltidedinancial statement schedule listed in the Xnaeltem
15(a). These consolidated financial statements farahcial statement schedule are the responsibilit the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is toresg an opinion on the consolidated financial statgs and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting Oversigharfgo
(United States). Those standards require thatlaregnd perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about
whether the consolidated financial statements rae ¢f material misstatement. An audit includesngixning, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts setbsures in the consolidated financial statemeits audit
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managememekh as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial staat presentation. We believe that our audits igeowa
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position
of Monster Beverage Corporation and subsidiariesfd3ecember 31, 2014 and 2013, and the resultheif
operations and their cash flows for each of theghyrears in the period ended December 31, 20kgriformity
with accounting principles generally accepted ie thnited States of America. Also, in our opiniguch
financial statement schedule, when consideredlatioa to the basic consolidated financial stateth¢zken as a
whole, presents fairly, in all material respedtg, information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloar
(United States), the Company'’s internal controlrdigancial reporting as of December 31, 2014, base the
criteria established iinternal Control—Integrated Framework (201&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and oponedated March 2, 2015, expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company'’s internal control over fin@l reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Costa Mesa, California
March 2, 2015
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013 (In Thousands, Erpt Par Value)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Distributor receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Intangibles held-for-sale
Prepaid income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

INVESTMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
INTANGIBLES, net
OTHER ASSETS
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued promotional allowances
Deferred revenue
Accrued compensation
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

DEFERRED REVENUE
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 10)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock - $0.005 par value; 240,000 shard®egned;

207,004 shares issued and 167,722 outstandiofecember 31, 2014;
206,014 shares issued and 166,822 outstandiofecember 31, 2013

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Common stock in treasury, at cost; 39,282 sharé88r192 shares as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

2014 2013
$ 370,323 $ 211,349
781,134 402,247
280,203 291,638
552 4,542
174,573 221,449
19,673 21,376
18,079 -
8,617 9,518
40,275 20,924
1,693,429 1,183,043
42,940 9,792
90,156 88,143
54,106 63,611
50,748 65,774
7,496 10,146
$ 1,938875 $ 1,420,509
$ 127,641 $ 119,376
40,271 59,113
114,047 99,470
49,926 13,832
17,983 14,864
5,848 9,359
355,716 316,014
68,009 112,216
1,035 1,030
426,145 368,069
2,330,510 1,847,325
(11,453) (1,233)
(1,231,087)  (1,222,912)
1,515,150 992,279
$ 1,938875 $ 1,420,509

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&sients.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2@
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2014 2013 2012
NET SALES $ 2,464,867 $ 2,246,428 $ 2,060,702
COST OF SALES 1,125,057 1,073,497 995,046
GROSS PROFIT 1,339,810 1,172,931 1,065,656
OPERATING EXPENSES 592,305 600,015 515,033
OPERATING INCOME 747,505 572,916 550,623
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME:
Interest and other (expense) income, net (,676) (11,737) (2,256)
(Loss) gain on investments and put option, net (Note 2) (41) 2,715 787
Total other (expense) income (1,717) (9,022) (1,469)
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 745,788 563,894 549,154
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 262,603 225,233 209,134
NET INCOME $ 483,185 $ 338,661 $ 340,020
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
Basic $ 289 $ 203 % 1.96
Diluted $ 277 % 195 $ 1.86
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK AND COMMON STOCK
EQUIVALENTS:
Basic 167,257 166,679 173,712
Diluted 174,285 173,387 183,083

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2@ (In Thousands)

2014 2013 2012
Net income, as reped $ 483,185 $ 338,661 $ 340,020
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (10,220) (1,782) 2,096
Available-for-sale investments:
Change in net unrealized gains - - 1,525
Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in
net income - (1,525) -
Net change in available-for-sale investments - (1,525) 1,525
Other comprehensive (loss) income (10,220) (3,307) 3,621
Comprehensive income $ 472,965 $ 335,354 $ 343,641

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2@ (In Thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common stock Paid-in Retained = Comprehensive Treasury stock Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Shares  Amount Equity
Balance, January 1, 2012
198,729 $ 994 $ 229,301 $1,168,644 $ (1,547) (24,452) $ (418,234 $ 979,158
Stock-based compensation - - 28,007 - - - - 28,00°
Exercise of stock options 5,030 25 10,989 - - - - 11,01«
Excess tax benefits from share based
payment arrangements - - 19,656 - - - - 19,65¢
Repurchase of common stock - - - - - (13,531) (737,079 (737,079
Foreign currency translation - - - - 2,096 - - 2,09¢
Change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities,
net of tax - - - - 1,525 - - 1,52¢
Net incom: - - - 340,020 - - - 340,02(
Balance, December 31, 2012 203,759 1,019 287,953 1,508,664 2,074 (37,983) (1,155,313 644,39
Stock-based compensation - - 28,528 - - - - 28,52¢
Exercise of stock options 2,255 11 21,240 - - - - 21,25:
Excess tax benefits from share based
payment arrangements - - 30,348 - - - - 30,34¢
Repurchase of common stock - - - - - (2,209) (67,599 (67,599
Foreign currency translation - - - - (1,782) - - (1,782)
Reclassification adjustments for net
gains included in net income - - - - (1,525) - - (1,525
Net income - - - 338,661 - - - 338,66:
Balance, December 31, 2013 206,014 1,030 368,069 1,847,325 (1,233) (39,192) (1,222,912 992,27
Stock-based compensation - - 28,989 - - - - 28,98¢
Exercise of stock options 990 5 17,163 - - - - 17,16¢
Excess tax benefits from share based
payment arrangements - - 11,924 - - - - 11,92.
Repurchase of common stock - - - - - (90) (8,179 (8,175
Foreign currency translation - - - - (10,220) - - (20,22()
Net incom: - - - 483,185 - - - 483,18!
Balance, December 31, 2014 207,004 $1,035 $ 426,145 $2,330,510 $ (11,453) (39,282% (1,231,087) $ 1,515,15

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2@ (In Thousands)

2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net incom $ 483,185 $ 338,661 $ 340,020
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,651 22,762 20,562
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment (408) 506 25
Stock-based compensation 28,552 28,764 28,413
Loss on put option 842 838 1,111
Gain on investments, net (801) (3,553) (1,897)
Deferred income taxes (9,846) (7,074) (2,460)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options (11924 (30,348) (19,656)
Effect on cash of changes in operating assetsiabitities:
Accounts receivable (14,290) (42,901) (17,782)
Distributor receivables 4,580 (7,382) 3
Inventories 42,763 (21,552) (47,568)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 888 (4,501) (4,523)
Prepaid income taxes 157 24,008 (33,210)
Accounts payable 11,282 (8,204) 3,659
Accrued liabilities 3,019 2,265 6,458
Accrued promotional allowances 20,530 8,932 2,723
Accrued distributor terminations (2,338) 1,552 794
Accrued compensation 3,394 1,970 2,498
Income taxes payable 8,438 34,308 14,165
Deferred revenue (8,107) 2,982 (5,659)
Net cash provided by operating activities 585,567 342,033 287,676
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Maturities of held-to-maturity investments 710,294 256,843 841,576
Sales of available-for-sale investments - 5,793 68,451
Sales of trading investments 13,075 2,250 17,050
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (1,13D),6 (557,419) (597,155)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments (4,001 - (9,502)
Purchases of property and equipment (27,952) (40,762) (42,935)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 963 9,022 288
Additions to intangibles (3,411) (11,175) (6,301)
(Increase) decrease in other assets 1,230 (4,360) 377
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (440,403) (339,808) 271,849
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal payments on debt (1,619) (1,887) (2,076)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 11,924 30,348 19,656
Issuance of common stock 17,168 21,252 11,015
Purchases of common stock held in treasury (8,175) (67,599) (727,670)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 19,298 (17,886) (699,075)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatnts (5,488) 4,496 2,733
NET INCREASE (DECREAS) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 158,974 (11,165) (136,817)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 2113 222,514 359,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 370,323 $ 211,349 $ 222,514
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 34 $ 49 $ 48
Income taxes $ 267,251 $ 174278  $ 230,221

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@gsients.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ITEMS:

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012amhd, the Company entered into capital leases of
$0.8 million, $2.6 million and $1.5 million, resgely, for the acquisition of promotional vehicles

Included in accounts payable as of December 312 26d treasury stock purchases of $9.4 million.

Included in accounts payable was equipment purchas&0.7 million, $0.1 million and $0.4 million as
of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amants)

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

Organization — Monster Beverage Corporation (the “Company”, fider”, “Hansen” or “Hansen
Beverage Company”) was incorporated in Delawardpril 25, 1990. The Company is a holding compang an
has no operating business except through its colasedl subsidiaries.

Nature of Operations- The Company develops, markets, sells and dig&“alternative” beverage
category beverages primarily under the followingrar names: Monster Energy®, Monster Rehab®, Monster
Energy Extra Strength Nitrous Technology®, Java Mer®, Muscle Monster®, Punch Monster®, Juice
Monster™, Peace Tea®, Hansen's®, Hansen’s NatuxabeGoda®, Junior Juice®, Blue Sky® and Hubert's®.
The “alternative” beverage category combines nobaated ready-to-drink iced teas, lemonades, juice
cocktails, single-serve juices and fruit beverageady-to-drink dairy and coffee drinks, energynlsi, sports
drinks, and single-serve still water (flavored, lambred and enhanced) with “new age” beveragesudng
sodas that are considered natural, sparkling jinéddlavored sparkling beverages.

Acquisitions and Divestituress On August 14, 2014, the Company and The Coca-@dmpany
(“TCCC") entered into definitive agreements forand-term strategic relationship in the global egedgnk
category (the “TCCC Transaction”). In the TCCC Taction, the Company, New Laser Corporation, a lhol
owned subsidiary of the Company (“NewCo"), New Lra§krger Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of NewCo
(“Merger Sub”), TCCC and European Refreshmentsndimect wholly owned subsidiary of TCCC, enteratbi
a transaction agreement, and the Company, TCCQNamcCo entered into an asset transfer agreemerst{teqg
the “TCCC Transaction Agreements”). Pursuant to T@®CC Transaction Agreements, the Company will
reorganize into a new holding company by mergingdde Sub into the Company, with the Company sungvi
as a wholly owned subsidiary of NewCo. In the reergach outstanding share of the Company’s constomk
will be converted into one share of NewCo’s comrataotk.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the TCC3aation Agreements, upon the closing of the TCCC
Transaction, (1) NewCo will issue to TCCC newlyuisd shares of common stock representing approxiynate
16.7% of the total number of shares of issued anstanding NewCo common stock (after giving effiecthe
new issuance) and TCCC will have the right to natenwo (reduced to one upon the earlier of (in8thths
after the closing of the TCCC Transaction andT{)CC's equity interest in NewCo exceeding 20% df th
outstanding shares of NewCo common stock) indivgltaNewCo’s Board of Directors, (2) TCCC will tister
its global energy drink business (including the NEDSull Throttle®, Burn®, Mother®, Play® and Power
Play®, and Relentless® brands) to NewCo, and thengamy will transfer its non-energy drink business
(including the Hansen’s® Natural Sodas, Peace Téaert's® Lemonade and Hansen's® Juice Produots) t
TCCC, (3) the Company and TCCC will amend theirentr distribution coordination agreements, whicti wi
contemplate expanding distribution of the Comparpreducts into additional territories pursuant aag-term
distribution agreements with TCCC's network of odner controlled bottlers/distributors and indepeande
bottling and distribution partners, and (4) TCCGl wiake a net cash payment of $2.15 billion to @@mpany
(up to $625.0 million of which will be held in esev, subject to release upon achievement of milestoalating
to the transfer of distribution rights).

The waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino &nst Improvements Act of 1976 with respect to the
TCCC Transaction expired on October 15, 2014, dhdegessary approvals or consents from foreigitrast
authorities have been obtained. The closing oftittuesaction is subject to customary closing coadgiand is
expected to close in the second quarter of 2015.

Basis of Presentatiorr The accompanying consolidated financial statésnéave been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) andlude
the accounts of the Company and its consolidatbsidiaries.
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amants)

Principles of Consolidation- The Company consolidates all entities that its by ownership of a
majority voting interest. All intercompany balan@esl transactions have been eliminated in consmitda

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investisewith an original
maturity of three months or less from date of pasehto be cash equivalents. Throughout the yeaCémpany
has had amounts on deposit at financial institstitnat exceed the federally insured limits. The Gany has not
experienced any loss as a result of these defogitsloes not expect to incur any losses in thedutu

Investments- The Company’s investments in debt securitiesctassified as either held-to-maturity,
available-for-sale or trading, in accordance withalRcial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”)cAanting
Standards Caodification (“ASC”) 320. Held-to-matyrdecurities are those securities that the Comasythe
positive intent and ability to hold until maturityrading securities are those securities that thiegany intends
to sell in the near term. All other securities mmiuded in the held-to-maturity or trading categare classified
as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity securitige recorded at amortized cost which approxima@sniarket
value. Trading securities are carried at fair valith unrealized gains and losses charged to egsnifvailable-
for-sale securities are carried at fair value witirealized gains and losses recorded within acateualother
comprehensive income (loss) as a separate compohstackholders’ equity. ASC 820 defines fair \@aks the
price that would be received to sell an asset @t fgatransfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants at the measurement date. ASC 820estsblishes a fair value hierarchy which requireemtity to
maximize the use of observable inputs, where avail§see Note 3). Under ASC 320-10-35, a secusty i
considered to be other-than-temporarily impairethé present value of cash flows expected to bleated are
less than the security’s amortized cost basisdifierence being defined as the “Credit Loss”) fahe fair value
of the security is less than the security’s amedizost basis and the investor intends, or wiltdgpiired, to sell
the security before recovery of the security’s aimed cost basis. If an other-than-temporary impaint exists,
the charge to earnings is limited to the amounCifdit Loss if the investor does not intend to ge#l security,
and will not be required to sell the security, befeecovery of the security’s amortized cost ba&is, remaining
difference between fair value and amortized costetognized in other comprehensive income (lossd,af
applicable taxes. The Company evaluates whetherdd#atine in fair value of its investments is otliean-
temporary at each quarter-end. This evaluationistnef a review by management, and includes mamkeing
information and maturity dates for the securitieklhmarket and economic trends in the industryiafatmation
on the issuer’s financial condition and, if appliteg information on the guarantors’ financial cdiadi. Factors
considered in determining whether a loss is temponaclude the length of time and extent to whidte t
investment’s fair value has been less than its basts, the financial condition and near-term pectp of the
issuer and guarantors, including any specific evevitich may influence the operations of the issrat our
intent and ability to retain the investment foremsonable period of time sufficient to allow folyanticipated
recovery of fair value.

Accounts ReceivableThe Company evaluates the collectability of itsl&r@ccounts receivable based on

a number of factors. In circumstances where the 2o becomes aware of a specific customer’s gl

meet its financial obligations to the Company, acsjc reserve for bad debts is estimated and dszhrwhich
reduces the recognized receivable to the estinmaterint the Company believes will ultimately be ectéd. In
addition to specific customer identification of eotial bad debts, bad debt charges are recordext lwas the
Company’s recent loss history and an overall agsesisof past due trade accounts receivable ouisigndn
accordance with ASC 210-20-45, in its consolidabedance sheets, the Company has presented accounts
receivable, net of promotional allowances, only fbose customers that it allows net settlement. oiier
accounts receivable and related promotional alleesmre shown on a gross basis.

Inventories— Inventories are valued at the lower of firstfirst-out, cost or market value (net realizable
value).
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amants)

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are stated at cost. digion of furniture and
fixtures, office and computer equipment, computdtveare, equipment, and vehicles is based on #simated
useful lives (three to ten years) and is calculaieohg the straight-line method. Amortization oadehold
improvements is based on the lesser of their etunaseful lives or the terms of the related leamas is
calculated using the straight-line method. Normgpairs and maintenance costs are expensed aseidcurr
Expenditures that materially increase values oerektuseful lives are capitalized. The related castd
accumulated depreciation of disposed assets amgnated and any resulting gain or loss on dispmsiis
included in net income.

Intangibles— Intangibles are comprised primarily of tradersattkat represent the Company’s exclusive

ownership of the Monster Energy@‘“@, Monster Rehab®, Java Monster®, Unleash the BeaBunch
Monster®, Juice Monster™, Peace Tea®, Hansen's@e Blky® and the Junior Juice® trademarks, all tised
connection with the manufacture, sale and distioioubf supplements and beverages. The Companyoalge in
its own right a number of other trademarks in thdtédl States, as well as in a number of countnieara the
world. In accordance with ASC 350, intangible asseith indefinite lives are not amortized but irsteare
measured for impairment at least annually, or wleents indicate that an impairment exists. The Gomp
calculates impairment as the excess of the carryatge of its indefinite-lived assets over theitireated fair
value. If the carrying value exceeds the estiméfaiovalue a write-down is recorded. The Companyortizes
its trademarks with finite useful lives over thedspective useful lives, which range from 1 to 2arng. For the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 20d4r2 were no impairments recorded.

Long-Lived Assets Management regularly reviews property and equiyiraed other long-lived assets,
including certain definite-lived intangible assdts, possible impairment. This review occurs anlyyar more
frequently if events or changes in circumstancdgate the carrying amount of the asset may naoebeverable.

If there is indication of impairment, managemersdrttprepares an estimate of future cash flows (oodiged

and without interest charges) expected to resoifh fthe use of the asset and its eventual disposifithese cash
flows are less than the carrying amount of thetasseimpairment loss is recognized to write dotva &sset to

its estimated fair value. The fair value is estiedlatising the present value of the future cash fidissounted at a
rate commensurate with management’s estimatesedfulkiness risks. Preparation of estimated expdatace

cash flows is inherently subjective and is basedn@magement’s best estimate of assumptions congerni
expected future conditions. For the fiscal yeardeenDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were no
impairment indicators identified. Long-lived asslke¢dd for sale are recorded at the lower of thairying amount

or fair value less cost to sell.

Foreign Currency Translation and TransactionsThe accounts of the Company’s foreign subsiesari
are translated in accordance with ASC 830. Foremgmency transaction gains and losses are recaiize
interest and other income, net, at the time theguod\et foreign currency exchange gains or lossssalting
from the translation of assets and liabilitiesarkeign subsidiaries whose functional currency isthe U.S. dollar
are recorded as a part of accumulated other compsare (loss) income in stockholders’ equity. Ulizeal
foreign currency exchange gains and losses onirenéercompany transactions that are of a longiter
investment nature (i.e., settlement is not planoednticipated in the foreseeable future) are atsmrded in
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomedokhblders’ equity. During the year ended Decendtier
2014, we entered into forward currency exchangéraots with financial institutions to create an eomic hedge
to specifically manage a portion of the foreign lexage risk exposure associated with certain caredel
subsidiaries non-functional currency denominatesktgsand liabilities. All foreign currency excharmgmtracts
entered into by us as of December 31, 2014 havest&f one month or less. We do not enter into fodwa
currency exchange contracts for speculation oingapurposes.

We have not designated our foreign currency exahaagtracts as hedge transactions under ASC 815.
Therefore, gains and losses on our foreign curre@hange contracts are recognized in interestcdner
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MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amants)

(expense) income, net, in the consolidated statesradrincome, and are largely offset by the charnigdke fair
value of the underlying economically hedged iterar the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 2012
aggregate foreign currency transaction lossesudnf) the gains or losses on forward currency exgba
contracts, amounted to $3.4 million, $12.9 millexmd $3.7 million, respectively, and have been medin other
(expense) income in the accompanying consoliddtgdmaents of income.

Revenue Recognition The Company recognizes revenue when persuagidenee of an arrangement
exists, delivery has occurred, the sales pricaxiedfor determinable and collectability is reasdpassured.
Generally, ownership of and title to the Compamrsducts passes to customers upon delivery of ib@éupts to
customers. Certain of the Company’s distributoes/ralso perform a separate function as a co-pawkehe
Company’s behalf. In such cases, ownership of dledtd the Company’s products that are co-packedhe
Company’s behalf by those co-packers who are atgoliitors, passes to such distributors when thegany is
notified by them that they have taken transfer assgssion of the relevant portion of the Compafigished
goods. Net sales have been determined after deduatipromotional and other allowances in accordanith
ASC 605-50. The Company’s promotional and othevadinces are calculated based on various prograthstsvi
distributors and retail customers, and accrualseatablished during the year for the anticipatabilities. These
accruals are based on agreed upon terms as wile @&8ompany’s historical experience with similaogmams
and require management’s judgment with respectstimating consumer participation and/or distribusod
retail customer performance levels. Differenceswbet such estimated expense and actual expenses for
promotional and other allowance costs have hisattyibeen insignificant and are recognized in eggsiin the
period such differences are determined. Amount®ived pursuant to new and/or amended distribution
agreements entered into with certain distribut@gting to the costs associated with terminativg@ompany’s
prior distributors, are accounted for as revenuabitg over the anticipated life of the respectivstribution
agreement, generally 20 years.

Management believes that adequate provision has tmele for cash discounts, returns and spoilage
based on the Company’s historical experience.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales consists of the costs of raw nadd¢eutilized in the manufacture of
products, co-packing fees, repacking fees, in-bolweidht charges, as well as certain internal fiemsosts,
warehouse expenses incurred prior to the manufactfithe Company’s finished products and certaialityu
control costs. Raw materials account for the largestion of the cost of sales. Raw materialsudel cans,
bottles, other containers, flavors, ingredients packaging materials.

Operating Expenses Operating expenses include selling expenses asactistribution expenses to
transport products to customers and warehousingresgs after manufacture, as well as expenses Vertesihg,
sampling and in-store demonstration costs, costenrchandise displays, point-of-sale materials mnium
items, sponsorship expenses, other marketing ezpemsd design expenses. Operating expenses aladédn
such costs as payroll costs, travel costs, prafeakservice fees including legal fees, terminapagments made
to certain of the Company'’s prior distributors, degiation and other general and administrativescost

Freight-Out Costs- For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 @l1®] Zeight-out costs amounted
to $92.7 million, $84.0 million and $76.1 milliorespectively, and have been recorded in operatipgreses in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Advertising and Promotional ExpensesThe Company accounts for advertising productiosts by
expensing such production costs the first timertiated advertising takes place. A significant antoaf the
Company’s promotional expenses result from paymamsder endorsement and sponsorship contracts.
Accounting for endorsement and sponsorship paymentssed upon specific contract provisions. Géiyera
endorsement and sponsorship payments are expensedtoaight-line basis over the term of the cattedter

83



MONSTER BEVERAGE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amants)

giving recognition to periodic performance comptiarprovisions of the contracts. Advertising andnpwtonal
expenses, including but not limited to productiasts, amounted to $171.5 million, $181.8 milliord &165.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 28468 2012, respectively. Advertising and promotiona
expenses are included in operating expenses iactt@npanying consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes- The Company utilizes the liability method of agnting for income taxes as set forth in

ASC 740. Under the liability method, deferred taaes determined based on the temporary differebetgeen
the financial statement and tax basis of assetdiabifities using tax rates expected to be in @fféuring the
years in which the basis differences reverse. Aatadn allowance is recorded when it is more likbign not that
some of the deferred tax assets will not be redlize determining the need for valuation allowanties
Company considers projected future taxable inconaketlhe availability of tax planning strategiesinifthe future
the Company determines that it would not be ablee#dize its recorded deferred tax assets, anaserén the
valuation allowance would be recorded, decreasamgiegs in the period in which such determinat®made.

The Company assesses its income tax positions eoords tax benefits for all years subject to
examination based upon the Company’s evaluatiotheffacts, circumstances and information availailéhe
reporting date. For those tax positions where tler@ greater than 50% likelihood that a tax beneiil be
sustained, the Company has recorded the largestiranad tax benefit that may potentially be realiagobn
ultimate settlement with a taxing authority thas lall knowledge of all relevant information. Fdrose income
tax positions where there is less than 50% likelththat a tax benefit will be sustained, no taxdfiémas been
recognized in the financial statements.

Stock-Based CompensatieriThe Company accounts for stock-based compensatider the provisions
of ASC 718. The Company records compensation esgofr employee stock options based on the estihiaie
value of the options on the date of grant usingBlaek-Scholes-Merton option pricing formula. Therpany
records compensation expense for non-employee sfaadns based on the estimated fair value of fiimas as
of the earlier of (1) the date at which a committrfen performance by the non-employee to earn theksoption
is reached or (2) the date at which the non-emgglsygerformance is complete, using the Black-SciMerton
option pricing formula. Stock-based compensatiost ¢or restricted stock awards and restricted stouks is
measured based on the closing fair market valdleso€ompany’s common stock at the date of grarthdrevent
that the Company has the option and intent toesatttestricted stock unit in cash, the award issifi@d as a
liability and revalued at each balance sheet 8&e Note 13).

Net Income Per Common Shardn accordance with ASC 260, net income per comsla@re, on a basic
and diluted basis, is presented for all periodasi®net income per share is computed by dividiglgncome by
the weighted average number of common shares odistaduring each period. Diluted net income pearshs
computed by dividing net income by the weightedrage number of common and dilutive common equitalen
shares outstanding. The calculation of common edgin shares assumes the exercise of dilutive siptikns,
net of assumed treasury share repurchases at aveeaget prices, as applicable.

Concentration of Risk €ertain of the Company’s products utilize compoadrdaw materials and/or co-
packing services) from a limited number of sourc&sdisruption in the supply of such components doul
significantly affect the Company’s revenues frorag products, as alternative sources of such coamp®may
not be available at commercially reasonable ratesvithin a reasonably short time period. The Conypan
continues to take steps on an ongoing basis taedlca availability of alternative sources for swdmponents
and minimize the risk of any disruption in prodocti

Coca-Cola Refreshments USA, Inc. (“CCR"), a custoofethe Direct Store Delivery segment (“DSD”)
with sales within specific markets in the Unite@t®s and Canada, accounted for approximately 29%, &nd
28% of the Company’s net sales for the years eddmember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Credit Risk— The Company sells its products nationally andrivationally, primarily to full service
beverage distributors, retail grocery and speciahains, wholesalers, club stores, drug chains,smas
merchandisers, convenience chains, health foodigirs and food service customers. The Companipes
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers andegaly does not require collateral. The Companyntadns
reserves for estimated credit losses, and histlyricaich losses have been within management’satapens.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying value of the Company’'s financiastinments,
including cash and cash equivalents, accountsvauiei, accounts payable and accrued liabilitiepr@pmate
fair value due to the relatively short maturitytiogé respective instruments.

Use of Estimates The preparation of the consolidated financiateshents in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assuashiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabititles
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilaiethe date of the financial statements and therted amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reportinggheAatual results could differ from those estinsate

Recent Accounting Pronouncement$n-September 2014, the Company elected to earptaBASB
ASU No. 2014-08, “Presentation of Financial Statetmeand Property, Plant, and Equipment - Reporting
Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of DismosBlComponents of an Entity”. ASU 2014-08 progicew
guidance related to the definition of a discontohwperation and requires new disclosures of bathoditinued
operations and certain other disposals that doreett the definition of a discontinued operatione Bldoption of
ASU 2014-08 did not have a material impact on tfmn@any’s financial position, results of operatiaors
liquidity.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, “pemnsation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718):
Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Tefrasi Award Provide That a Performance Target Could
Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Periodof@sensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Fora&pU
2014-12 clarifies that a performance target thédcéd vesting and that could be achieved afterréugiisite
service period be treated as a performance condificeporting entity should apply existing guidarin Topic
718 as it relates to awards with performance camditthat affect vesting to account for such awafdssuch,
the performance target should not be reflectedsimeating the grant-date fair value of the awardm@ensation
cost should be recognized in the period in whidieitomes probable that the performance targebwitichieved
and should represent the compensation cost atiblauto the period(s) for which the requisite ses\hias already
been rendered. ASU 2014-12 is effective for anpesiods, and interim periods within those yeargifm@ng
after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is perchiteeSU 2014-12 may be applied either (a) prospettito all
awards granted or modified after the effective daté€b) retrospectively to all awards with perfonna targets
that are outstanding as of the beginning of théesarannual period presented in the financialestents and to
all new or modified awards thereafter. The adoptibASU 2014-12 is not expected to have a matériphct on
the Company’s financial position, results of opiera or liquidity.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Rexe from Contracts with Customers”, which
supersedes previous revenue recognition guidarsd. 2014-09 requires that a company recognize revahan
amount that reflects the consideration to whichdbmpany expects to be entitled in exchange forstearing
goods or services to a customer. In applying thve gieidance, a company will (1) identify the cont{agwith a
customer; (2) identify the performance obligatiamghe contract; (3) determine the transactiongyr{d) allocate
the transaction price to the contract’s performaniai@ations; and (5) recognize revenue when (dthaes entity
satisfies a performance obligation. ASU 2014-06ffsctive for reporting periods beginning after Betber 15,
2016 and can be adopted using either a full re¢rispe or modified approach. The Company is culyent
evaluating the impact of ASU 2014-09 on its finahgiosition, results of operations and liquidity.
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2. INVESTMENTS

The following table summarizes the Company’s investts at:

Continuous Continuous
Gross Gross Unrealized Unrealized
Unrealized Unrealized Loss Position Loss Position
Holding Holding Fair lessthan 12  greater than 12
December 31, 2014 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value Months Months
Held-to-Maturity
Short-term:
Commercial paper $ 19,482 $ (2) $ - $ 19,480 $ - $ -
Municipal securities 744,542 105 - 744,647 - -
U.S. Government Agencies 9,199 (1) - 9,198 - -
Long-term:
Municipal securities 42,940 10 - 42,950 - -
Available-for-sale
Short-term:
Variable rate demand notes 4,001 - - 4,001 - -
Total $ 820,164 $ 112 $ - 820,276 % - $ -
Trading
Short-term:
Auction rate securities 3,910
Long-term:
Auction rate securities -
Total $ 824,186
Continuous Continuous
Gross Gross Unrealized Unrealized
Unrealized Unrealized Loss Position  Loss Position
Holding Holding Fair less than 12  greater than 12
December 31, 2013 Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value Months Months
Held-to-Maturity
Short-term:
Certificates of deposit $ 22,045 $ - $ - $ 22,045 $ - $ -
Commercial paper 5,991 - - 5,991 - -
Municipal securities 367,819 48 - 367,867 - -
Total $ 395,855 $ 48 $ - 395903 % - $ -
Trading
Short-term:
Auction rate securities 6,392
Long-term:
Auction rate securities 9,792
Total $ 412,087

During the year ended December 31, 2014, realiagusgr losses recognized on the sale of invessnent

were not significant. During the year ended Decerfie 2013, the Company recognized $2.5 millioneailized
gains on the sale of available-for-sale investmeReslized gains or losses on the sale of all atherstments

during the year ended December 31, 2013 were moifisant. During the year ended December 31, 2012,

realized gains or losses recognized on the saleve$tments were not significant.

The Company recognized a net gain through earronggs trading securities as follows for the years

ended:
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2014 2013 2012
Gain (loss) on transfer from available-for-sale
to trading $ - $ - $ -
Gain on trading securities sold 978 255 1,130
(Loss) gain on trading securities held (177) 816 753
Gain on trading securities $ 801 $ 1,071 $ 1,883

The Company’s investments at December 31, 20142818 in certificates of deposit, commercial
paper, municipal securities, U.S. government agesenurities and/or variable rate demand notes (‘NRP
carried investment grade credit ratings. VRDNsflar@ting rate municipal bonds with embedded putars that
allow the bondholder to sell the security at parspaccrued interest. All of the put options areusstt by a
pledged liquidity source. While they are classifeimarketable investment securities, the put o@iows the
VRDNSs to be liquidated at par on a same day, oreng@nerally on a seven day, settlement basis. fAthe®
Company’s investments at December 31, 2014 and @0d®inicipal, educational or other public bodygéces
with an auction reset feature (“auction rate s¢ies’) also carried investment grade credit ratings

The following table summarizes the underlying cactual maturities of the Company’s investments at:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Less than 1 year:
U.S. Treasuries $ - $ - $ - $ -

Certificates of deposit - - 22,045 22,045

Commercial paper 19,482 19,480 5,991 5,991

Municipal securities 744,542 744,647 367,819 367,867

U.S. government agency securities 9,199 9,198 - -
Due 1 -10 years:

Municipal securities 42,940 42,950 - -
Due 11 - 20 years:

Auction rate securities 3,910 3,910 11,102 11,102
Due 21 - 30 years:

Variable rate demand notes 4,001 4,001 - -

Auction rate securities - - 5,082 5,082

Total $ 824074 $ 824,186 $ 412,039 $ 412,087

3. FAIR VALUE OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABLITIES

ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring faiueahnd requires expanded disclosures regarding fair
value measurements. ASC 820 defines fair valudagptice that would be received to sell an asse¢taat to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants at the measurement dat€. 829 also
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requireseatity to maximize the use of observable inpuibere
available. The three levels of inputs required gy $tandard that the Company uses to measurediaie \are
summarized below.

» Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assefiabilities.

» Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssajuated prices for similar assets or liabilities;
guoted prices in markets that are not active; beinputs that are observable or can be corrobdiay
observable market data for substantially the &t of the related assets or liabilities.
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* Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by littl@@market activity and that are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

ASC 820 requires the use of observable market snfmutoted market prices) when measuring fair value
and requires a Level 1 quoted price to be usedetsnre fair value whenever possible.

The following tables present the Company’s heldniturity investments at amortized cost as welhas t
fair value of the Company’s financial assets thatracorded at fair value on a recurring basisieggged among
the appropriate levels within the fair value hietgr at:

December 31, 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash $ 196,090 $ - % - % 196,090
Money market funds 106,928 - - 106,928
Certificates of deposit - - - -
Commercial paper - 19,482 - 19,482
Municipal securities - 854,787 - 854,787
U.S. government agency securities - 9,199 - 9,199
Variable rate demand notes - 4,001 - 4,001
Auction rate securities - - 3,910 3,910
Put option related to auction rate securities - - 250 250
Foreign currency derivatives - (262 - (252
Total $ 303,018 $ 887,217 $ 4,160 $ 1,194,395
Amounts included in:
Cash and cash equivalents $303,018 $ 67,305 $ - $ 370,323
Short-term investments - 777,224 3,910 781,134
Accounts receivable, net - 83 - 83
Investments - 42,940 - 42,940
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 250 250
Other assets - - - -
Accrued liabilities - (33p - (335
Total $ 303,018 $ 887,217 $ 4160 $ 1,194,395
December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash $ 139,300 $ - % - % 139,300
Money market funds 60,102 - - 60,102
Certificates of deposit - 22,045 - 22,045
Commercial paper - 5,991 - 5,991
Municipal securities - 379,766 - 379,766
Auction rate securities - - 16,184 16,184
Put option related to auction rate securities - - 1,092 1,092
Total $ 199,402 $ 407,802 $ 17,276 $ 624,480
Amounts included in:
Cash and cash equivalents $199,402 $ 11,947 $ - $ 211,349
Short-term investments - 395,855 6,392 402,247
Investments - - 9,792 9,792
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 486 486
Other assets - - 606 606
Total $ 199,402 $ 407,802 $ 17,276 $ 624,480
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The majority of the Company’s short-term investrseante classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of ttaer f
value hierarchy. The Company’s valuation of itsé¢lel investments, which include money market funsls
based on quoted market prices in active marketglémtical securities. The Company’s valuationtsflievel 2
investments, which include certificates of deposammercial paper, municipal securities, U.S. gorent
agency securities and VRDNS, is based on othemedisie inputs, specifically a market approach whithzes
valuation models, pricing systems, mathematicalst@md other relevant information for the same iorilar
securities. The Company'’s valuation of its Levébizign exchange contracts is based on quoted ingrices of
the same or similar instruments, adjusted for cempatrty risk. There were no transfers between Lévahd
Level 2 measurements during the year ended Decedib@014 or the year ended December 31, 2013thene
were no changes in the Company’s valuation teclesiqu

The Company’s Level 3 assets are comprised of @uctte securities and put options. The Company’s
Level 3 valuation utilized a mark-to-model approaghich included estimates for interest rates, tgnand
amount of cash flows, credit and liquidity premiyras well as expected holding periods for the aunctate
securities. These assumptions are typically veladihd subject to change as the underlying dataces®wand
market conditions evolve. A significant change ny &ingle input could have a significant valuatiompact;
however, no single input has a more significantaoipn valuation than another. There were no clsimgthe
Company’s valuation techniques of its Level 3 asdeting the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table presents quantitative inforroatirelated to the significant unobservable inputs
utilized in the Company’s Level 3 recurring failva measurements as of December 31, 2014.

Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted-Average)

Auction Rate Securities Discounted cash flow  Maximum rate probability — 1.37%-3.(2%8%)
Principal returned 84.78%-94.07% (87.05%)
probability
Default probability 4.56%-12.21% (10.37%)
Liquidity risk 2.50%-2.50% (2.50%)
Recovery rate 60-60 (60)

Put Options Discounted cash flow  Counterparty risk 0.73%-0.79%A@)7

At December 31, 2014, the Company held auction seturities with a face value of $4.2 million
(amortized cost basis of $3.9 million). A Level alwation was performed on the Company’s auctioe rat
securities as of December 31, 2014 resulting miravilue of $3.9 million for the Company’s tradiagction rate
securities (after a $0.3 million impairment), white included in short-term and long-term investisien

In June 2011, the Company entered into an agree(tiemt’2011 ARS Agreement”), related to $24.5
million of par value auction rate securities (tf2011 ARS Securities”). Under the 2011 ARS Agreeimte
Company has the right to sell the 2011 ARS Seegriticluding all accrued but unpaid interest therébe
“2011 Put Option”) as follows: (i) on or after July 2013, up to $1.0 million aggregate par valiigpt or after
October 1, 2013, up to an additional $1.0 milliggegate par value; and (iii) in quarterly instadimts thereafter
based on a formula of the then outstanding 2011 8B&urities, as adjusted for normal market redemgptiwith
full sale rights available on or after April 1, Z0IThe 2011 ARS Securities will continue to acdnterest until
redeemed through the 2011 Put Option, or as datednby the auction process, or should the auctioness
fail, the terms outlined in the prospectus of thgpective 2011 ARS Securities. Under the 2011 A& &ment,
the Company has the obligation, should it receivittem notification from the put issuer, to seletB011 ARS
Securities at par plus all accrued but unpaid @sterDuring the year ended December 31, 2014, i@6ldn of
2011 ARS Securities were redeemed at par througtesiercise of a portion of the 2011 Put Option $6®
million of 2011 ARS Securities were redeemed attpeough normal market channels ($2.3 million, $hiBion
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and $3.7 million of 2011 ARS Securities were redeérat par through normal market channels during/ézes
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respsgtividie 2011 Put Option does not meet the defimitd
derivative instruments under ASC 815. Therefdre,Gompany elected the fair value option under 836-10
in accounting for the 2011 Put Option. As of Decenfil, 2014, the Company recorded $0.3 millionhasfair
market value of the 2011 Put Option, included iapaid expenses and other current assets, as wiellatiser
assets, in the consolidated balance sheet.

The net effect of (i) the revaluation of the 201t Pption as of December 31, 2014; (ii) the redéompt
at par of certain 2011 ARS Securities; and (ii§ thvaluation of the Company’s trading auction s#eurities as
of December 31, 2014 resulted in a loss of ($0rBiljon, which is included in other (expense) ina®fior the
year ended December 31, 2014. The net effect thidiyevaluation of the 2011 Put Option as of Dduem31,
2013; (ii) the redemption at par of certain 2011SARecurities; (iii) the revaluation of the Compantrading
auction rate securities as of December 31, 2018; (af) a recognized gain resulting from the redaorptof
previously other-than-temporary impaired securjtiesulted in a gain of $2.7 million, which is inded in other
(expense) income for the year ended December 3B, 20

The following table provides a summary reconcitiatiof the Company’s financial assets that are
recorded at fair value on a recurring basis usigigificant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Auction Auction
Rate Rate
Securities  Put Options  Securities Put Options
Opening Balance $ 16,184 $ 1,092 $ 23,156 $ 1,929
Transfers into Level 3 - - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 - - - -
Total gains (losses) for the period:
Included in earnings 801 (842) 3,553 (837)
Included in other comprehensive income - - (2,482) -
Settlements (13,075) - (8,043) -
Closing Balance $ 3910 $ 250 $ 16,184 $ 1,092

4. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchaatgerisks related primarily to its foreign busiae
operations. During the year ended December 31, ,204Company entered into forward currency exchang
contracts with financial institutions to create esonomic hedge to specifically manage a portiothefforeign
exchange risk exposure associated with certainotioiased subsidiaries’ non-functional currency denwated
assets and liabilities. All foreign currency excparcontracts entered into by the Company as of mbee 31,
2014 have terms of one month or less. The Compagag dot enter into forward currency exchange cotstriar
speculation or trading purposes.

The Company has not designated its foreign curremxchange contracts as hedge transactions under
ASC 815. Therefore, gains and losses on the Conpdoneign currency exchange contracts are receghia
interest and other (expense) income, net, in tmsaaated statements of income, and are largégebby the
changes in the fair value of the underlying ecomaifty hedged item.
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The notional amount and fair value of all outstagdforeign currency derivative instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets consist of the follgwain

December 31, 2014

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments under Notional Fair
FASB ASC 815-20 Amount Value Balance Sheet Location
Assets:
Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Receive CAD/pay USD $ 19940 $ 83 Accounts receivable, net
Liabilities:
Foreign currency exchange contracts:
Receive EUR/pay USD $13265 $ (75) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay AUD 8,343 (48) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay JPY 10,620 (84) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay ZAR 14,760 (105) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay MXN 4,961 (11) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay CLP 2,685 (10) Accrued liabilities
Receive USD/pay COP 2,845 (2) Accrued liabilities

The Company had no foreign currency exchange atstoatstanding at December 31, 2013.
The net gain on derivative instruments in the cbidated statements of income were as follows:

Amount of gain
recognized in income on

derivatives
Year ended
Derivatives not designated as Location of gain
hedging instruments under recognized in income on December 31, December 31,
FASB ASC 815-20 derivatives 2014 2013
Foreign currency exchange contractiterest and other income (expense), net $ 1,424 $ -
5. INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following at December 31
2014 2013
Raw materials $ 59,938 $ 68,088
Finished goods 114,635 153,361

$ 174,573 $ 221,449
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6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, Net

Property and equipment consist of the followin@patember 31:

2014 2013

Land $ 6,792 $ 5,382
Leasehold improvements 2,796 2,222
Furniture and fixtures 3,371 3,474
Office and computer equipment 10,072 14,135
Computer software 1,317 791
Equipment 84,263 62,552
Building 37,311 33,468
Vehicles 27,813 30,442

173,735 152,466
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 3,5(®) (64,323)

$ 90,156 $ 88,143

7. INTANGIBLES, Net

The following provides additional information comgig the Company'’s intangibles as of December 31.:

2014 2013
Amortizing intangibles $ 233 $ 1,076
Accumulated amortization (50) (590)
183 486
Non-amortizing intangibles 50,565 65,288

$ 50,748 $ 65774

All amortizing intangibles have been assigned dimased finite useful life and such intangibles are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the nundbgrears that approximate their respective uséfeklranging
from one to 25 years (weighted-average life of &a@rg). Total amortization expense recorded was 1Bilibn,
$0.05 million and $0.05 million for the years endedcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyofAs
December 31, 2014, future estimated amortizatigpelese related to amortizing intangibles through ytear
ending December 31, 2019 is approximately $0.0fianiper year. At December 31, 2014, $18.0 milladmon-
amortizing intangibles and $0.1 million of amontigiintangibles (net of accumulated amortizatioe) aubject to
divestiture under the TCCC Transaction and areuded in intangibles held-for-sale in the accompagyi
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2014.

8. DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENTS

Amounts received pursuant to new and/or amendedhdison agreements entered into with certain
distributors, relating to the costs associated wetiminating agreements with the Company’s priatritiutors,
have been accounted for as deferred revenue iacttmmpanying consolidated balance sheets and argnieed
as revenue ratably over the anticipated life ofréspective distribution agreement, generally 28ryeRevenue
recognized was $7.8 million, $8.4 million and $&#lion for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 2012,
respectively.
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The Company incurred termination amounts (net gusithents to estimated amounts previously
accrued) to certain of its prior distributors amiog to a credit of ($0.2) million and an expen$§&b0.8 million
and $1.5 million in aggregate for the years endextdinber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Such
termination amounts have been expensed in full amedincluded in operating expenses for the yeadedn
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

As part of the TCCC Transaction, the amended Higion coordination agreements to be entered into
with TCCC will provide for the transition of thirdarties’ rights to distribute the Company’s produict most
territories in the U.S. and Canada to members o€T8 distribution network, which consists of owned
controlled bottlers/distributors and independerttling/distribution partners. On February 9, 20h5accordance
with its existing agreements with the applicabliedtparty distributors, the Company sent noticeseomination
to certain affected third-party distributors, indilng the majority of the Company’s Anheuser-Busdtrgbutors
(the “AB Distributors”) in the U.S., providing fahe termination of their respective distributiomegments, to be
effective at various dates beginning in March 20IEhe associated distribution rights will be trdiosied to
TCCC's distribution network in each applicable itermy as of the effective date of the terminatioh tie
applicable third party’s rights in such territoffhe Company estimates the termination costs asedowith the
transition of its distribution arrangements to lmpraximately $280.0 million, the majority of whickill be
recognized in the first quarter of 2015 in accomawith ASC No. 420 “Exit or Disposal Cost Obligumts.”
Actual termination amounts may differ materiallprir those estimated, which could have a materiah@gnhpn
the Company’s financial position, results of opiera or liquidity. The Company anticipates that rapgpmately
$38.2 million of deferred revenue will be recoguiZeto income in the first quarter of 2015 assadatvith the
terminated AB Distributors. As a result, this ambhbas been classified as a current liability in @lseompanying
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2014.

9. DEBT

The Company entered into a credit facility with Goioa Bank (“Comerica”) consisting of a revolving
line of credit, which was amended in June 2013 eunchich the Company may borrow up to $10.0 millafn
non-collateralized debt. The revolving line ofdites effective through June 1, 2015. Interestbomrowings
under the line of credit is based on Comerica’l{pame) rate minus 1% to 1.5%, or London Inteko@ffered
Rates plus an additional percentage of 1.25% t8%, depending upon certain financial ratios maigdiby the
Company. The Company had no outstanding borronamgthis line of credit at December 31, 2014. Unithes
revolving line of credit, the Company may also sstandby Letters of Credit with an aggregate amotiap to
$4.0 million. The fee on the standby Letters oédir ranges from 1.00% to 1.50% depending uporaicert
financial ratios maintained by the Company. Then@any had no outstanding standby Letters of Cratdit
December 31, 2014.

The Company’s debt of $0.4 million and $1.3 milliah December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
consisted of capital leases, collateralized by alekj payable over 12 months in monthly installraaitvarious
effective interest rates, with final payments egaam or before December 31, 2015.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the assets acquirddr capital leases had a net book value of $3.7
million and $4.2 million, net of accumulated depation of $3.5 million and $2.3 million, respectiye

Interest expense for capital lease obligations antemlito $0.03 million, $0.05 and $0.05 for the gear
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resparctivel
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is obligated under various non-caruell&ease agreements providing for office space,
warehouse space, and automobiles that expire iaugadates through the year 2023.

Rent expense under operating leases was $6.8 milic4 million and $4.6 million for the years edde
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments at December 31, 20iter the operating leases referred to above are
as follows:

Year Ending December 31:

2015 $ 5,310
2016 4,329
2017 1,178
2018 495
2019 495
2020 and thereafter 1,166
_$ 12,973

Contractual obligations- The Company has the following contractual obiayes related primarily to
sponsorships and other commitments as of Decenih@034:

Year Ending December 31:

2015 $ 46,290
2016 25,296
2017 3,602
2018 2,793
2019 -

2020 and thereafter -
$ 77,981

Purchase Commitments The Company has purchase commitments aggregafipgpximately $31.3
million at December 31, 2014, which represent commants made by the Company and its subsidiaries to
various suppliers of raw materials for the produttof its products. These obligations vary in terimst are
generally satisfied within one year.

The Company purchases various raw material itentdiding, but not limited to, flavors, ingredients,
dietary ingredients, containers, milk, cream amatgin, from a limited number of resources. Aniniption in
supply from any of such resources could resulhen@ompany’s inability to produce certain proddotsiimited
or possibly extended periods of time. The aggregahlge of purchases from suppliers of such limitesburces
described above for the years ended December 34, 2013 and 2012 was $292.8 million, $282.5 milland
$264.2 million, respectively.

Guarantees- The Company from time to time enters into certigipes of contracts that contingently

require the Company to indemnify parties againistl fharty claims. These contracts primarily refate(i) certain
agreements with the Company’s officers, directord employees under which the Company may be retjtire
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indemnify such persons for liabilities arising aft their employment relationship, (ii) certain disttion or
purchase agreements under which the Company may toaindemnify the Company’s customers from any
claim, liability or loss arising out of any actuai alleged injury or damages suffered in connectiath the
consumption or purchase of the Company’s productth® use of Company trademarks, and (iii) certeml
estate leases, under which the Company may bereelgta indemnify property owners for liabilitiescanther
claims arising from the Company’s use of the aptlie premises. The terms of such obligations vary a
typically, a maximum obligation is not explicithtated. Generally, the Company believes that itsirarsce
coverage is adequate to cover any resulting ltsslior claims.

Litigation —On October 17, 2012, Wendy Crossland and Richatdriter filed a lawsuit in the Superior
Court of the State of California, County of Rivelesi styledWendy Crossland and Richard Fournier v. Monster
Beverage Corporatignagainst the Company claiming that the death efrti4 year old daughter (Anais
Fournier) was caused by her consumption of two @4ece Monster Energy® drinks over the course of dags
in December 2011. The plaintiffs allege strict prodliability, negligence, fraudulent concealmemteach of
implied warranties and wrongful death. The plafatiflaim general damages in excess of $25,000 andiye
damages. The Company filed a demurrer and a mutisitrike the plaintiffs’ complaint on November 2412,
and the plaintiffs filed a first amended complaintDecember 19, 2012. The Company filed its ansavére first
amended complaint on June 7, 2013. The partiendstte a court ordered mediation on January 23, 2014.
Discovery has commenced and trial has been scleedofeAugust 21, 2015. The Company believes that th
plaintiffs’ complaint is without merit and plansveégorous defense. The Company also believes thatsaoh
damages, if awarded, would not have a materialradveffect on the Company'’s financial position esuits of
operations.

The Company has also been named as a defendattiteincmmplaints containing similar allegations to
those presented in the Fournier lawsuit, each aéwthe Company believes is also without merit awodild not
have a material adverse effect on the Companyan@ial position or results of operations in the rdvany
damages were awarded.

Securities Litigation- On September 11, 2008, a federal securities eletson complaint styleGunha v.
Hansen Natural Corp., et alvas filed in the United States District Court fbe Central District of California (the
“District Court”). On September 17, 2008, a secdederal securities class action complaint styBrdwn v.
Hansen Natural Corp., et alvas also filed in the District Court. After thedbict Court consolidated the two
actions and appointed the Structural Ironworkersal®nion #1 Pension Fund as lead plaintiff, a ©bdated
Complaint for Violations of Federal Securities Lawgs filed on August 28, 2009 (the “Consolidated
Class Action Complaint”).

The Consolidated Class Action Complaint purportedbe brought on behalf of a class of purchasers of
the Company’s stock during the period November@62through November 8, 2007 (the “Class Periol”).
named as defendants the Company, Rodney C. Sadksn H. Schlosberg, and Thomas J. Kelly. Plaintiff
principally alleged that, during the Class Perité, defendants made false and misleading statemedatsg to
the Company’s distribution coordination agreemevith Anheuser-Busch, Inc. (*“AB”) and its sales d&llied”
energy drink lines, and engaged in sales of sharethe Company on the basis of material non-public
information. Plaintiff also alleged that the Comparfinancial statements for the second quarte2G§f7 did not
include certain promotional expenses. The Conselii€lass Action Complaint alleged violations ofttBms
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act @841 as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder, and sought an unspecifiexiiat of damages.

The District Court dismissed the Consolidated Chstion Complaint, with leave to amend, on July 12,
2010. Plaintiff thereafter filed a Consolidated Arded Class Action Complaint for Violations of Fealer
Securities Laws on August 27, 2010 (the “Amendeas€IAction Complaint”). While similar in many respeto
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the Consolidated Class Action Complaint, the Amehd&lass Action Complaint dropped certain of the
allegations set forth in the Consolidated Classolc€omplaint and made certain new allegationduiting that
the Company engaged in “channel stuffing” during tBlass Period that rendered false or misleadieg th
Company’s reported sales results and certain ataéements made by the defendants. In additiamg ibnger
named Thomas J. Kelly as a defendant.

On September 4, 2012, the District Court dismissedain of the claims in the Amended Class Action
Complaint, including plaintiff's allegations relag to promotional expenses, but denied defendamttion to
dismiss with regard to the majority of plaintifitdaims, including plaintiff’'s channel stuffing afations. Plaintiff
filed a motion seeking class certification on Debenmb, 2012, which the court denied, without prijedon
January 17, 2014.

Following a mediation conducted by an independesdiaior, the Company entered into a Stipulation of
Settlement on April 16, 2014 to resolve the litigat Following a fairness hearing, on January2®5, the
District Court granted final approval of the seatilnt and entered a final judgment dismissing th®m@avith
prejudice.

Under the terms of the settlement, certain of then@any’s insurance carriers paid $16.25 milliow iaih
escrow account for distribution to a settlemensslaertified by the District Court for settlemguirposes only
and consisting of all persons who purchased omaile acquired the Company’s stock during the ClRessod
(with certain exclusions as specified in the setdat agreement). Under the settlement, defendenatsvarious
of their related persons and entities receivedladlease of all claims that were or could haverbbrought in
the action as well as all claims that arise outaog based upon or relate to the allegations, dcdioss, facts,
representations, omissions or other matters indlwvethe complaints filed in the action or any staént
communicated to the public during the Class Perdod, the purchase, acquisition or sale of the Cogipatock
during the Class Period.

The settlement contained no admission of any ligtilr wrongdoing on the part of the defendantghea
of whom continues to deny all of the allegationaiagt them and believes that the claims were withoerit.
Because the full amount of the settlement was pgithe Company’s insurance carriers, the settlerdishhot
have an effect on the Company’s results of oparatio

State Attorney General Inquiry In July 2012, the Company received a subpoema the Attorney
General for the State of New York in connectionhwiis investigation concerning the Company’s adsieng,
marketing, promotion, ingredients, usage and shits dlonster Energy® brand of energy drinks. Prithn of
documents pursuant to that subpoena was completguproximately May 2014.

On August 6, 2014, the Attorney General for theeStd New York issued a second subpoena seeking
additional documents and the deposition of a Copganployee. On September 8, 2014, the Company mioved
quash the second subpoena. The motion has begrbfidgfed and argument has been scheduled on thiermo
for March 17, 2015. It is unknown what, if any,iantthe state attorney general may take againsCtirapany,
the relief which may be sought in the event of aogh proceeding or whether such proceeding could ha
material adverse effect on the Company’s busiriges)cial condition or results of operations.

San Francisco City Attorney Litigation On October 31, 2012, the Company received denritequest
for information from the City Attorney for the Citgnd County of San Francisco concerning the Comipany
advertising and marketing of its Monster Energy@nar of energy drinks and specifically concerning shafety
of its products for consumption by adolescenta latter dated March 29, 2013, the San FrancisgoATiorney
threatened to bring suit against the Company didt not agree to take the following five steps indmagely:

(i) “Reformulate its products to lower the caffeicentent to safe levels” - (ii) “Provide adequat@ming labels”;
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(i) “Cease promoting over-consumption in markgtin (iv) “Cease use of alcohol and drug referenaes
marketing”; and (v) “Cease targeting minors.”

() The Company Actior On April 29, 2013, the Company and its whollynad subsidiary, Monster
Energy Company, filed a complaint for declaratong &njunctive relief against the San Francisco @itiorney
(the “Company Action”) in United States District @bfor the Central District of California (the “G&al District
Court”), styledMonster Beverage Corp., et al. v. Dennis HerréFae Company sought a declaration from the
Central District Court that the San Francisco Gitjorney’s investigation and demands are imperriesand
preempted, subject to the doctrine of primary flig8on, are unconstitutional in that they violdake First and
Fourteenth Amendments’ prohibitions against congoeipeech, content-based speech and commercighspee
are impermissibly void-for-vagueness, and/or violdte Commerce Clause. On June 3, 2013, the Citrrgy
filed a motion to dismiss the Company Action, anguin part that the complaint should be dismisselight of
the San Francisco Action (described below) fileavay 6, 2013. On August 22, 2013, the Central stCourt
granted in part and denied in part the City Attgimsemotion. On October 17, 2013 (after the San €isao
Action, described below, was remanded to San Fsaacbuperior Court), the City Attorney filed a remeel
motion to dismiss the Company Action and on Decemtbe 2013, the Central District Court granted @iey
Attorney’s renewed motion, dismissing the Compaiign. The Company filed a Notice of Appeal to ttieth
Circuit on December 18, 2013. The Company filedbfiening brief on November 28, 2014. The City Atgy’'s
filed an answering brief on February 13, 2015, #ved Company’s reply brief is currently due on Felyl7,
2015.

(i) The San Francisco Action On May 6, 2013, the San Francisco City Attorfieyd a complaint for
declaratory and injunctive relief, civil penaltiesd restitution for alleged violation of CaliforfgaUnfair
Competition Law, Business & Professions Code sestil/y200et seq., styled People Of The State Of California
ex rel. Dennis Herrera, San Francisco City Attorrveyonster Beverage Corporatipim San Francisco Superior
Court (the “San Francisco Action”). The City Attesnalleges that the Company (1) mislabeled its yetsdas a
dietary supplement, in violation of California’s éman Food, Drug and Cosmetic Law, California Heé&lt
Safety Code sections 109875 et. seq.; (2) is gelim “adulterated” product because caffeine isgeaterally
recognized as safe (“GRAS”) due to the alleged tzcscientific consensus concerning the safetyheflévels of
caffeine in the Company'’s products; and (3) is gedain unfair and misleading business practicessx its
marketing (a) does not disclose the health risks ¢émergy drinks pose for children and teens;dtg to warn
against and promotes unsafe consumption; (c) imtgligromotes mixing of energy drinks with alcolal drugs;
and (d) is deceptive because it includes unsubatedtclaims about the purported special benefitssdkiller”
ingredients and “energy blend.” The City Attorneught a declaration that the Company has engagadfair
and unlawful business acts and practices in vimatf the Unfair Competition Law; an injunction fno
performing or proposing to perform any acts in aimn of the Unfair Competition Law; restitutionda civil
penalties. On June 3, 2013, the Company remove&aneFrancisco Action to the United States Distdiotirt
for the Northern District of California (the “Nortn District Court”). On July 3, 2013, the City éthey filed a
motion to remand the San Francisco Action backtatescourt. On September 18, 2013, the NorthertriBtis
Court granted the City Attorney’s motion to remahe San Francisco Action back to state court.

On January 15, 2014, the Company filed a demuor@ntl motion to strike allegations in the complaint
in the San Francisco Action. On March 5, 2014,Goert overruled the demurrer, granted the motiostiize as
to one theory for relief pleaded by the City Atteynand lifted the stay on discovery.

On March 20, 2014, the City Attorney filed an amethccomplaint, adding allegations supporting the
theory for relief as to which the Court had granteel motion to strike. On April 18, 2014, the Comypdiled a
renewed motion to strike, challenging the theonyrédief previously rejected by the Court, as wasdla motion
asking the Court to bifurcate and/or stay claimstiieg to the safety of Monster Energy® drinks, ¢ieg
resolution of the ongoing FDA investigation of thafety and labeling of food products to which dateis
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added. On May 22, 2014, the Court denied the Cogipamotion to strike and motion to bifurcate andétay
claims relating to safety.

On June 16, 2014, the Company filed a petitionifior of mandate with the Court of Appeal, asking éo
writ directing the trial court to vacate its ord#gnying the Company’s motion to bifurcate and/ayghe San
Francisco Action, and instead to stay proceedirggling FDA'’s investigation. On June 19, 2014, tlven® of
Appeal denied the petition. On June 25, 2014, tbengany filed a petition for review with the Califda
Supreme Court. On July 23, 2014, the Supreme @aumitd the petition.

On August 27, 2014, the Court issued an ordemsgttie case for a two-week bench trial beginning on
February 8, 2016. On September 5, 2014, the CitgrAey filed a second amended complaint, adding $ton
Energy Company as a defendant. The Company and tbtoesergy Company filed answers to the second
amended complaint on October 4, 2014 and Novene2d14, respectively. A case management confenence
scheduled for March 10, 2015. Discovery is ongoing.

The Company denies that it has violated the Ur@aimpetition Law or any other law and believes that
the City Attorney’s claims and demands are preedhatel unconstitutional, as alleged in the actienGompany
filed in the Central District Court. The Companyeinds to vigorously defend against this lawsuitthid time, no
evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable @ute or range of potential loss can be expressed.

In addition to the above matters, the Company leas Inamed as a defendant in various false adwertisi
putative class actions and in a private attorneyegd action. In these actions, plaintiffs allegattdefendants
misleadingly labeled and advertised Monster Enerdiy@nd products that allegedly were ineffective tloe
advertised benefits (including, but not limited & allegation that the products do not hydratadeertised
because they contain caffeine). The plaintiffstfartallege that the Monster Energy® brand prodattssue are
unsafe because they contain one or more ingredibatsallegedly could result in illness, injury death. In
connection with these product safety allegatiohs, plaintiffs claim that the product labels did mpvbvide
adequate warnings and/or that the Company didnotide sufficiently specific statements with reggeaontra-
indications and/or adverse reactions associatdu tivt consumption of its energy drink productsi@idmg, but
not limited to, claims that certain ingredients, emhconsumed individually or in combination with eth
ingredients, could result in high blood pressuddpipations, liver damage or other negative heeftbcts and/or
that the products themselves are unsafe). Basedese allegations, the plaintiffs assert claimsviotation of
state consumer protection statutes, including umf@npetition and false advertising statutes, amdofeach of
warranty and unjust enrichment. In their prayenrs rigief, the plaintiffs seek, inter alia, competasg and
punitive damages, restitution, attorneys’ fees,, amgome cases, injunctive relief. The Companyarédg these
cases and allegations as having no merit. Furthesntioe Company is subject to litigation from titoetime in
the normal course of business, including intellatproperty litigation and claims from terminatadtdbutors.

The Company evaluates, on a quarterly basis, dewelots in legal proceedings and other matters that
could cause an increase or decrease in the ambtim bability that is accrued, if any, or in tlaenount of any
related insurance reimbursements recorded. As otmber 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company’
consolidated balance sheets include accrued logsgencies of approximately $3.7 million and $1imlion,
respectively, and receivables for insurance reis¢ments of approximately $0.0 million and $16.2%Hioni,
respectively. Although it is not possible to predite ultimate outcome of such litigation, basedtlo@ facts
known to the Company, management believes that l#igdttion in the aggregate will likely not haven@aterial
adverse effect on the Company’s financial positoresults of operations.
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11. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The components of accumulated other comprehenssgedre as follows at December 31:

2014 2013

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 11,458 1,233

12. TREASURY STOCK PURCHASE

On April 7, 2013, the Company’s Board of Directarghorized a new share repurchase program for the
repurchase of up to $200.0 million of the Companysstanding common stock (the “April 2013 Repusgha
Plan”). During the year ended December 31, 2014 simares of common stock were purchased under the
April 2013 Repurchase Plan. During the year endedeimber 31, 2013, the Company purchased 0.95Jomilli
shares of common stock under the April 2013 RemsgetPlan at an average purchase price of $56.98hpes
for a total amount of $54.2 million (excluding beskcommissions).

During the year ended December 31, 2014, 0.09anikhares were purchased from employees in lieu
of cash payments for options exercised or withimgjdaxes due for a total amount of $8.2 million. iWIsuch
purchases are considered common stock repurchhsgsare not counted as purchases against the @gfapa
authorized share repurchase programs, includingpiné 2013 Repurchase Plan.

13. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has two stock-based compensation plagar which shares were available for grant at
December 31, 2014: the Monster Beverage Corporadiil Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2011 Omnibus
Incentive Plan”) and the 2009 Monster Beverage @aon Stock Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Dioes
(the “2009 Directors Plan”).

The 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan permits the grgntihoptions, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, restricted stock units, performance awardsather stock-based awards up to an aggregat¢,500d,000
shares of the common stock of the Company to erspywr consultants of the Company and its submdiar
Shares authorized under the 2011 Omnibus InceRfia are reduced by 2.16 shares for each sharéedran
issued with respect to a Full Value Award. A Fulllife Award is an award other than an incentivekstgtion, a
non-qualified stock option, or a stock appreciatiaght, which is settled by the issuance of shaf®stions
granted under the 2011 Omnibus Incentive Plan neayptentive stock options under Section 422 ofitiernal
Revenue Code, as amended, or non-qualified stotknsp The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) has sahel @&xclusive authority to grant stock awards to all
employees who are not new hires and to all newshirleo are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Hu¢
Compensation Committee and the Executive Commdtdbe Board of Directors (the “Executive Commitdee
each independently has the authority to grant stalrds to new hires who are not Section 16 empkye
Awards granted by the Executive Committee are mbjest to approval or ratification by the Board the
Compensation Committee. Options granted under 4 Dmnibus Incentive Plan generally vest overva-fi
year period from the grant date and are generaiBrogsable up to 10 years after the grant date.ofs
December 31, 2014, 3,620,280 shares of the Compaayhmon stock have been granted, net of canceifati
and 9,865,555 shares of the Company’s common stekin available for grant under the 2011 Omnibus
Incentive Plan.

The 2009 Directors Plan permits the granting ofams, stock appreciation rights (each, an “SARN a
other stock-based awards to purchase up to angaggref 1,600,000 shares of common stock of thegaomto
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non-employee directors of the Company. The 2008ddirs Plan is administered by the Board of DinectBach
award granted under the 2009 Directors Plan wik¥widenced by a written agreement and will contaenterms
and conditions that the Board of Directors deen@piate. The Board of Directors may grant suclarae on
the last business day prior to the date of the anmeeting of stockholders. Any award granted urnider2009
Directors Plan will vest, with respect to 100% atls award, on the last business day prior to the dathe
annual meeting, in the calendar year following ¢aéendar year in which such award is granted. Toard of
Directors may determine the exercise price peresbarthe Company’s common stock under each optan,
such price may not be less than 100% of the clgsiitg of the Company’s common stock on the datepion

is granted. Option grants may be made under th® Bd@ctors Plan for 10 years from June 4, 200%® Bbard
of Directors may also grant SARs, independentlyinazonnection with an option grant. The Board @afebtors
may determine the exercise price per share of tmepgany’s common stock under each SAR, but sucle pniy
not be less than the greater of (i) the fair maviedtie of a share on the date the SAR is grantddigrthe price
of the related option, if the SAR is granted in mection with an option grant. Additionally, the Bdaof
Directors may grant other stock-based awards, winichude awards of shares of the Company’s comnbacks
restricted shares of the Company’s common stoat,savards that are valued based on the fair maeevof
shares of the Company’s common stock. SARs and etbek-based awards are subject to the generailspos

of the 2009 Directors Plan. The Board of Directmady amend or terminate the 2009 Directors Plamwatiae.
As of December 31, 2014, options to purchase 81sh@Pes of the Company’s common stock had beertegran
under the 2009 Directors Plan, and options to @gehl,518,840 shares of the Company’s common stock
remained available for grant.

The Company recorded $28.6 million, $28.8 milliord &28.4 million of compensation expense relating
to outstanding options, restricted stock awardassksappreciation rights and restricted stock utitsng the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respgctivel

The excess tax benefit realized for tax deductiooms non-qualified stock option exercises, disdyaig
dispositions of incentive stock options, vestingdtricted stock units and restricted stock aw&wdshe years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $1Mi@m$30.3 million and $19.7 million, respectiyel

Stock Options

Under the Company’s stock-based compensation péirstpck options granted as of December 31, 2014
were granted at prices based on the fair valuehef Gompany’s common stock on the date of grant. The
Company records compensation expense for emplage& sptions based on the estimated fair valuehef t
options on the date of grant using the Black-SaiMerton option pricing formula with the assumpson
included in the table below. The Company recordspeEnsation expense for non-employee stock optiassd
on the estimated fair value of the options as efdhrlier of (1) the date at which a commitmentderformance
by the non-employee to earn the stock option ishred or (2) the date at which the non-employeetfopmance
is complete, using the Black-Scholes-Merton oppoicing formula with the assumptions included ie tiable
below. The Company uses historical data to detexrthie exercise behavior, volatility and forfeituage of the
options.

The following weighted-average assumptions werel useestimate the fair value of options granted

during:
2014 2013 2012
Dividend yield 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %
Expected volatility 41.4 % 475 % 48.1 %
Risk-free interest rate 1.55% 0.98 % 0.74 %
Expected term 5.8 Years 5.7 Years 5.4 Years
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Expected Volatility The Company uses historical volatility as it pd®ms a reasonable estimate of the
expected volatility. Historical volatility is basesh the most recent volatility of the stock priceepa period of
time equivalent to the expected term of the option.

Risk-Free Interest Ratd he risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8asury zero coupon yield curve
in effect at the time of grant for the expectedntef the option.

Expected Term The Company’'s expected term represents the weslghwerage period that the
Company’s stock options are expected to be outstgn@he expected term is based on expected tinpost-
vesting exercise of options by employees. The Compeses historical exercise patterns of previogsgnted
options to derive employee behavioral patterns tséorecast expected exercise patterns.

The following table summarizes the Company’'s agési with respect to its stock option plans as

follows:
Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Number of Exercise  Contractual
Shares (In Price Per Term (In Aggregate
Options thousands) Share years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 12,97% 15.70 3.7 $ 675,595
Granted 01/01/14 - 03/31/14 689 % 70.06
Granted 04/01/14 - 06/30/14 104$ 69.15
Granted 07/01/14 - 09/30/14 -$ -
Granted 10/01/14 - 12/31/14 195% 111.30
Exercised (767) $ 22.38
Cancelled or forfeited (128) $ 45.49
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 13,068 19.73 31 $ 1,158,412
Vested and expected to vest in the future at
December 31, 2014 12,670 % 18.31 29 $ 1,141,163
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 10,568 10.24 18 $ 1,036,675

The following table summarizes information aboubckt options outstanding and exercisable at

December 31, 2014:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Number Weighted

Number Remaining Average Exercisable Average

Range of Exercise Outstanding (In Contractual Exercise (In Exercise

Prices (%) Thousands) Term (Years) Price ($) Thousands) Price ($)
$3.29 - $3.29 4,400 0.2 $3.29 4,400 $3.29
$5.72 - $6.21 13 0.5 $6.18 13 $6.18
$8.44 - $8.44 2,445 0.9 $8.44 2,445 $8.44
$13.37 - $15.60 111 3.7 $13.56 111 $13.56
$15.86 - $15.86 1,700 3.4 $15.86 1,700 $15.86
$15.94 - $19.20 1,307 4.8 $17.83 1,307 $17.83
$19.23 - $53.96 1,700 7.1 $41.19 558 $34.33
$55.92 - $71.05 1,190 8.7 $66.22 33 $63.85
$74.78 - $74.78 4 7.5 $74.78 - $0.00
$111.30 - $111.30 196 9.9 $111.30 - $0.00
13,066 3.1 $19.73 10,567 $10.24
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The weighted-average grant-date fair value of ogtigranted during the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012 was $31.49 per share, $22r5hpee and $25.21 per share, respectively. Theittinsic
value of options exercised during the years endecebber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $47.1 mil§éa,6
million and $248.8 million, respectively.

Cash received from option exercises under all pfanshe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 was approximately $17.2 million, $21.3 milliand $10.3 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, there was $48.5 million d¢&ltanrecognized compensation expense related to
nonvested options granted to employees under thep@ay’'s share-based payment plans. That cost isceegh
to be recognized over a weighted-average peri@idfears.

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

Stock-based compensation cost for restricted sta@dds and restricted stock units is measured b@sed
the closing fair market value of the Company’s camrstock at the date of grant. In the event thatGbmpany
has the option and intent to settle a restrictedkstinit in cash, the award is classified as alltgland revalued
at each balance sheet date. Total cash paid te settricted stock unit liabilities and the incgean the liabilities
for future cash settlements during the years emds@mber 31, 2014 and 2013 were not material.

The following table summarizes the Company’s atiéigi with respect to non-vested restricted stock
awards and non-vested restricted stock units &sifsi

Weighted
Number of Average
Shares (in  Grant-Date
thousands) Fair Value

Non-vested at January 1, 2014 391 $ 49.27
Granted 01/01/14 - 03/31/14 - -
Granted 04/01/14 - 06/30/14 10 69.00
Granted 07/01/14 - 09/30/14 - -
Granted 10/01/14 - 12/31/14 6 111.30
Vested (241) 44.16
Forfeited/cancelled (17) 51.79

Non-vested at December 31, 2014 149 $ 61.09

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of ieett stock units and restricted stock awards gdant
during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 281®@ was $84.38, $53.50 and $61.73 per share,
respectively. As of December 31, 2014, 0.1 millohrestricted stock units and restricted stock awaaire

expected to vest.

At December 31, 2014, total unrecognized compemsakpense relating to non-vested restricted stock
awards and non-vested restricted stock units wa® #6llion, which is expected to be recognized oeer
weighted-average period of 2.2 years.

Employee and Non-Employee Share-Based Compen&atimmse

The table below shows the amounts recognized ircdmsolidated financial statements for the twelve-
months ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201héveased compensation related to employees and no
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employees. Employee and non-employee share-basepeosation expense of $28.6 million for the yeateen
December 31, 2014 is comprised of $4.8 million ttedates to incentive stock options and $23.8 arillthat
relates to non-qualified stock options and regdatinits and awards. Employee and non-employee-4izaed
compensation expense of $28.8 million for the yeated December 31, 2013 is comprised of $5.2 milliat
relates to incentive stock options and $23.6 nmillibat relates to non-qualified stock options agstricted units
and awards. Employee and non-employee share-basgukasation expense of $28.4 million for the yewutee
December 31, 2012 is comprised of $5.1 million tfedates to incentive stock options and $23.3 arillthat
relates to non-qualified stock options and residainits and awards. The portion of share-basegeonsation
expense that relates to incentive stock optionsibbeen considered in the tax benefit computdigiaw.

2014 2013 2012
Operating expenses $ 28,552 $28,764 $ 28,413
Total employee and non-employee share-based compensation expense
included in income, before income tax 28,552 28,764 38,41
Less: Amount of income tax benefit recognized in earnings 322,9 (7,730) (8,933)
Amount charged against net income 25,620 $21,034 $ 19,480

14. INCOME TAXES

The domestic and foreign components of the Comangome (loss) before provision for income taxes
are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Domestic* $ 711,917 $ 596,899 $ 568,225
Foreign* 33,871 (33,005) (19,072
Income before provision for income taxes 45,788 $ 563,894 $ 549,154

*After intercompany royalties, management fees imterest charges from the Company’s domestic teigor entities of $34.9 million,
$25.9 million and $22.9 million for the years enddetcember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Components of the provision for income taxes ar®lkswvs:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ 228,348 $ 191,596 $ 177,372
State 36,633 36,662 30,268
Foreign 7,467 4,052 3,951
272,448 232,310 211,591
Deferred:
Federal (8,473) (7,44) (743)
State (442) (1,443 (483)
Foreign 3,476 (9,694 (7,373)
(5,439) (18,579 (8,599)
Valuation allowance (4,406) 11,501 6,142
$ 262,603 $ 225,233 $ 209,134
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The differences in the total provision for inconages that would result from applying the 35% federa
statutory rate to income before provision for ineotaxes and the reported provision for income taresas
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

U.S. Federal tax expense at statutory rates $ 261,028 197,363 $ 192,204
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 23,859 22,640 20,252
Permanent differences 4,816 936 5,968
Domestic production deduction (20,607) (16,039) (15,469)
Other (1,267) 266 (388)
Foreign rate differential (817) 8,566 425
Valuation allowance (4,406) 11,501 6,142

$ 262,603 § 225,233 $ 209,134

Major components of the Company’s deferred taxtagabilities) at December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013
Deferred Tax Assets:

Reserve for sales returns $ 289 $ 583
Reserve for doubtful accounts 36 62
Reserve for inventory obsolescence 3,030 2,06(
Reserve for marketing development fund 9,118 9,47(
Capitalization of inventory costs 2,527 1,94¢
State franchise tax 8,160 6,04:
Accrued compensation - 867
Accrued other liabilities 3,503 4,871
Deferred revenue 47,319 50,81
Stock-based compensation 25,268 21,96:
Securities impairment 288 27¢
Foreign net operating loss carryforward 17,256 19,34¢
Prepaid supplies 4,195 4,63¢
Gain on intercompany transfer 8,347 -

Total gross deferred tax assets $ 129,336 182,939

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Amortization of trademarks $ (11,923) $ (10,393)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments - -
Other deferred tax liabilities (327) (99
Depreciation (5,022) (5,82¢)

Total gross deferred tax liabilities (17,272) (16,315
Valuation Allowance (17,683) (22,089

Net deferred tax assets $ 94,381 84,535

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 20132842, the Company established full valuation
allowances against certain deferred tax assetsltirgsfrom cumulative net operating losses incdrby certain
foreign subsidiaries of the Company. The effedhefvaluation allowances and the subsequent reliadealct on
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the Company’s overall tax rate was to (decreasgpase the Company’s provision for income taxegdy4)
million, $10.8 million and $6.1 million for the yeaended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, regplgctit
December 31, 2014, the Company had net operatsgydarryforwards of approximately $78.5 million. {bfs
amount, $65.0 million may be carried forward indiély. The remaining $13.5 million will begin to@re in
2017.

The following is a rollforward of the Company’s a@btgross unrecognized tax benefits, not including
interest and penalties, for the years ended Dece®ih@014, 2013 and 2012:

Gross Unrealized Tax

Benefits

Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 1,910
Additions for tax positions related

to the current year -
Additions for tax positions related to

the prior year 520
Decreases for tax positions related

to prior years (1,504)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 926

Additions for tax positions related

to the current year -
Additions for tax positions related

to the prior year 9
Decreases for tax positions related

to prior years -
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 935
Additions for tax positions related

to the current year -
Additions for tax positions related

to the prior year -
Decreases for tax positions related

to prior years -
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 935

The Company recognizes accrued interest and pemaldlated to unrecognized tax benefits in the
provision for income taxes in the Company’'s comaikd financial statements. As of December 31, 201el
Company had accrued approximately $0.4 milliomieriest and penalties related to unrecognized dagfiis. If
the Company were to prevail on all uncertain tasifans it would not have a significant impact dret
Company'’s effective tax rate.

It is expected that the amount of unrecognizedbenefit change within the next 12 months will net b
significant.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tawell as to income tax in multiple state and fonei
jurisdictions.
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On March 8, 2013, the Internal Revenue Service §")Rbegan its examination of the Company’s U.S.
federal income tax returns for the years ended mbee31, 2010 and 2011. The Company is also irowari
stages of examination with certain states. The 20122013 U.S. federal income tax returns are stbjelRS
examination. State income tax returns are subjeekamination for the 2010 through 2013 tax years.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

A reconciliation of the weighted average sharesl iisehe basic and diluted earnings per commoneshar
computations for the years ended December 31, 2B and 2012 is presented below (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 167,257 166,679 173,712
Dilutive securities 7,028 6,708 9,371
Diluted 174,285 173,387 183,083

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and, 2(@tions and awards outstanding totaling 0.7
million shares, 1.3 million shares and 0.3 millgirares respectively, were excluded from the cdions as their
effect would have been antidilutive.

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Employees of the Company may participate in the $tlemBeverage Corporation 401(k) Plan, a defined
contribution plan, which qualifies under Sectiorl@) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participatingplyees
may contribute up to 15% of their pretax salarytapstatutory limits. The Company contributes 25%tfoe#
employee contribution, up to 8% of each employeainings, which vest 20% each year for five yeftes the
first anniversary date. Matching contributions w$@e6 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million for ¢hyears ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two operating and reportable setgmeamely Direct Store Delivery (“DSD”), the
principal products of which comprise energy drinked Warehouse (“Warehouse”), the principal prosiudt
which comprise juice based and soda beverages.D3@ segment develops, markets and sells products
primarily through an exclusive distributor networihereas the Warehouse segment develops, marledisels
products primarily direct to retailers. Corporatel ainallocated amounts that do not relate to DSW/arehouse
segments specifically have been allocated to “Catec Unallocated.” No asset information has bpmvided
for the Company’s reportable segments as managetoest not measure or allocate assets on a segsst b
Following the consummation of the TCCC Transactitie, Company anticipates that it will have two @pieg
and reporting segments: Concentrate, the pringigaducts of which will likely include the variousergy drink
brands transferred to the Company from TCCC, anaiéd Products, the principal products of which hiely
include the Company’s Monster Energy® drink produtitat currently make up the majority of the DSD
segment.

The net revenues derived from DSD and Warehouseesgg and other financial information related
thereto for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d2012 are as follows:
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Year Ended December 31, 2014

Corporate
and
DSD Warehouse Unallocated Total
Net sale $ 2,369,208 $ 95,659 $ - $ 2,464,867
Contribution margin* 908,781 3,003 - 911,78
Corporate & unallocated expenses - - (164,279) (164,279
Operating income 747,50!
Interest and other income, net 664 3 (2,378) (12,7179
Income before provision for income taxes 745,78
Depreciation & amortization (19,778) (293) (5,540) (25,61))
Trademark amortization - (33) (8) (41
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Corporate
and
DSD Warehouse Unallocated Total

Net sale $ 2,147,355 $ 99,073 $ - $ 2,246,428
Contribution margin* 726,826 (1,652) - 725,174
Corporate & unallocated expenses - - (152,258 (152,258)
Operating income 572,916
Interest and other income, net 755 (2) (9,775 (9,022)
Income before provision for income taxes 563,894
Depreciation & amortization (19,023) (244) (3,446 (22,713)
Trademark amortization - (44) (5) (49)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Corporate
and
DSD Warehouse Unallocated Total
Net sale $ 1,966,481 $ 94,221 $ - $2,060,702
Contribution margin* 660,607 3,496 - 664,103
Corporate & unallocated expenses - - (113,480) (113,480)
Operating income 550,623
Interest and other income, net 494 (2) (1,961) (1,469)
Income before provision for income taxes 549,154
Depreciation & amortization (15,660) (139) (4,714) (20,513)
Trademark amortization - (44) 5) (49)

*Contribution margin is defined as gross profit desertain operating expenses deemed by manageroehe tdirectly
attributable to the respective reportable segm@&auntribution margin is used by management as aitkéigator of reportable segment
profitability.

Revenue is derived from sales to external custan®@perating expenses that pertain to each segment
allocated to the appropriate segment.

Corporate and unallocated expenses were $164.8miibr the year ended December 31, 2014 and
included $86.2 million of payroll costs, of whict2&6 million was attributable to stock-based conga¢ion
expense (see Note 13, “Stock-Based Compensati$d3.8 million of professional service expensesiuidiag
accounting and legal costs, $7.4 million of insgercosts and $26.9 million of other operating espsn
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Corporate and unallocated expenses were $152.®Bmfibr the year ended December 31, 2013 and iedud
$82.5 million of payroll costs, of which $28.8 nolh was attributable to stock-based compensatiperse (see
Note 13, “Stock-Based Compensation”), $38.7 milladrprofessional service expenses, including aciog@and
legal costs, and $31.1 million of other operatingpaenses. Corporate and unallocated expenses wéaf551
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 actiged $73.0 million of payroll costs, of which $28nillion
was attributable to stock-based compensation erpies Note 13, “Stock-Based Compensation”), $afllibn

of professional service expenses, including acdéogrand legal costs, $4.4 million of depreciatiord &16.4
million of other operating expenses.

CCR, a customer of the DSD segment, accounteddr, 29% and 28% of the Company’s net sales for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 28 atively.

Net sales to customers outside the United Statesiated to $534.2 million, $467.2 million and $415.8
million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2848 2012, respectively. Such sales were approgiyna
21.7%, 20.8% and 20.2% of net sales for the yeatedDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively

The Company’'s net sales by product line for yeanded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, were as follows:

Product Line 2014 2013 2012
Energy drinks $ 2,302,225 $2,082,238 $ 1,906,236
Non-carbonated (primarily juice based

beverages) 119,204 120,145 110,217
Carbonated (primarily soda beverages) 28,425 2470, 31,044
Other 15,013 14,800 13,205

$ 2,464,867 $2,246,428 2,060,702

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Two directors and officers of the Company and tli@milies are principal owners of a company that
provides promotional materials to the Company. Espse incurred with such company in connection with
promotional materials purchased during the yeade@mbecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $0.6mill

$1.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Net Income per

Common

Share
Net Sales Gross Profit Net Income Basic Diluted

Quarter ended:

March 31, 2014 $ 536,129 $ 286,818 $ 95,250 $70% 055
June 30, 2014 687,199 379,288 141,003 $ 084 081
September 30, 2014 635,972 341,920 121,600 0.3 $ 0.70
December 31, 2014 605,567 331,784 125,332 5 08 0.72

$ 2,464,867 $1,339,810 $ 483,185
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Quarter ended:

March 31, 2013 $ 484,223 $ 252,039% 63,496 $ 038 $ 0.37
June 30, 2013 630,934 336,262 106,873 $ 08$4 0.62
September 30, 2013 590,422 307,470 92,187 35 0% 0.53
December 31, 2013 540,849 277,160 76,105 4 0$ 044

$ 2,246,428 $1,172,931 $ 338,661

Certain of the figures reported above may diffenfrpreviously reported figures for individual quast
due to rounding.
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Balance at Charged to Balance at
beginning cost and end of
Description of period expenses Deductions period
Allowance for doubtful accounts, sales returns and cash discoun
2014 $ 2,926 $ 2,652 $ (3,874) $ 1,704
2013 $ 1,430 $ 4,894 $ (3,398) $ 2,926
2012 $ 1,893 $ 9,148 $ (9,611) $ 1,430
Allowance on Deferred Tax Assets and Unrecognized Tax Benefits:
2014 $ 24,130 $ (4,344) $ $ 19,786
2013 $ 12,579 $ 11551 % - $ 24,130
2012 $ 7,592 $ 6,142 $ (1,155) $ 12,579
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